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THURSDAY, MAY 22, 1975 

2 THIRD SESSION 

3 (The bearing w.e reconvened at 8:15p.m •• 

4 pureuant to the receaa on Wedneaday, May 21, 1975.) 

5 

6 CBA I &UN Hit.LE: The C~itte~ will 

7 pleaae come to order. 

8 The Clerk will call the roll. 

9 (The Clerk called the roll.) 

10 CHAXIKAN HALE: S:&Jt? There ilil a quorum 

11 preaent. (Gavel.) 

12 We apologize to all of you in the audience here 

13 for the late start. Unfol'tuaataly 1 there 1o other 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

bualneee baina transacted that all of ue are involved 

ia this week and it 1a extreaely difficult for us to 

attead to everytbina that we bave to do. 

There are one or two iteaa of bualueas, Members 

of the co .. ittee, that the Chair would like to dispose 

of, before we atal't bnrift& teltlm.ony. 

lirtt 1 With 1'81pect to the Witaaaa tbit we 

beard leat aisbt, Rodolfo M. Cou11na 1 you will remeaber 

that be .ea the one who wee the fol'aer tax collector at 

tbe Beaavidea Iadependeat School Dlatrlct, aad to moat of 

the queattoae and all aeenlaaful queatioaa tblt were 

propouaded to bia, be claimed bit privlleae under the 
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Fifth Amendment. He is under subpoana ~nd th~ Chair sees 

no r .. aon to .. intain that atatua with reap~ct to this 

3 witneae, in view of hia statue, so I would entertain a 

4 aotioa.. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

14 

IS 

16 

!7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

HR. KASTER: All right. 

CHAIRMAN BALE: Mr. &aste~ movea that Mr. 

iodolfo M. Couling be released from the subpOti~ under 

which he baa been held for the last two days. 

Ia there any diecusaion oa the motion? 

(No reapoaae.) 

(The aotlqa., t.elna pll't to a vote, •a ca rriad.) 

CHAIIMAN HALE: The Chair baa a request 

for the laeuance of a subpoena here this evening for a 

wltaa•• who le here. Marvin Foater, •• a wita•aa. We have 

beea requeated to iaaue • aubpoeaa for ht.. 

HR. URDBICKS: I ao aove. 

CUllMAN BALE: HI'. BteruiZ'ieka tDOYea tba t 

the Chllr be authorised to iaaue a eubpoeaa 1n the name 

of the Coaalttee for the etteadaaoe at these heartnga of 

Kr. •nln Poater. 

Ia there anJ dlaouaaloa oa the aotloa? 

(The aotl.o~a, be us put co e vote 1 waa carr ted • ) 

CIAliMAB BALl: Tbe .. tioa pce¥alla. 

(The Chair 11sned the lubpoena.) 

CBADHAH BALE: Will JOU tel've it, Hr. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

!I 

!2 

!3 

!4 

!5 

3-06 

:Kelly? 

(Hr. Kelly aervea the ~ubpoena.) 

CB.AIIKAH HALE: Next, Mr. Mitchell, the 

Chair would like to make inquiry of you, if I miy, at 

thll tiae, in order to deter~ine aome action that the 

C~!r may aeed to takw. 

It was my Udd~rstauding from one of my previous 

convereationa with you that you nava in your poasession 

the ledaer, the regular bank lilf:UtE~uulnts e rtd Qiiaceled 

cbecka and the deposit olipa troa these accounts for the ... 
Zertuche General Store and the ftrm and Ranch Store. Is 

that cornet? 

MI. MITCRILLs I have in my poasession all 

of the booka end recorda, goiag beck since 1964~ of 

all eat it lea. 

CUllMAN BALE: waa 1 correct tn ay in­

terpretetion tblt you lateud to make those reco:da 

available to the C~ltceef 

MB.. lllTCBELL: Bo • I can 1 t taake them 

ava11a•1•• becauae I am. fac1aa a Federal triAl• as the 

Co.-it tee knowa • but I am so:laa to •nt to t.l'ill& them ln 

here wit• the perllieeion of tM Chair aad baotna an 

accouataat ia at the tiM, aad I would like Ito develop 

eo.. aort of a bloepwtat. where 1 could uae thh for 

ratana~• co ol .. l" ., .. tara that •lahc •• t:alMd at tbe 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

3-07 

time tblt I offer them, Mr. Chairman. But I don't want 

to introduce them for obvious reasons. I need them in 

defeaae of thia man who standa trtal in the Southern 

Dlatrlct, but I will bring them before the Committee. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Will you permit the 

Committee aeabera and/or our agents to e~mine those 

recorda end photocopy any plllrta of them that we feel are 

pertinent to tbla inquiry? 

MR. MITCHELL: No. Unless they become 

relevant. I aean, I don't want to make a bl6nket 

dbco91ery in to them at this point, Mr. Cbairliiililn. Because 

if they don't become relevaat• I don't int~nd to offer 

th .. , beoeuae 1 don't .ant to jeopardize ay cllent•a 

rta•t• before a redetel Grand Jury. 

CJIAIIHAN HALE: Let the Oblil' atate that 

tt•a Cbe intention of tbe C._lr to recommead to tbe 

Coaalttee tbet if you do aot Mite t'beae recorda a.allable 

to ua. that a lubpoeaa be iuued to the beak down there, 

to o~catn alcrofila ooplea of them, photocopies from tbei~ 

aloroflla recorda. 

1 bave diacua1ed it with the Preeideat of the 

Baak aud be telll me that tbey have aicrofila record• 

of all tbeae reeorda aad tbat under proper IUbpoeua. be 

will be llappy to p1"0dtaea those l!'ecoria foe ... 'benefit 

of •• c-u:t ... 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Farm and Ranch Supply, Zertuche General Store and the 

2 partnership, the tax returns that go ~ith toe~. I 

3 believe if I am going to be put to the requireaenta of 

4 delivery, I would like to put it in a context to.sbow an 

~derly presentation. which 1 intend to do and that is, 

6 to show the input into the t~x returns, introduce ell of 

7 the tax returns, all oi the items of s.ale~t, all of the 

8 lt--. of deductions. I have nothing to hide oa them. 

9 That la what I intended to do. M~. Chairman, wnen I 

10 called the Chair. 

11 C,HAIRMAN HAL£: Let me aay, Mr. Witcbell, 

12 the Cheil' 11 asking you whether or not you are voluntarUv 

13 wtlllag to do this. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

MR. MlTOHELLI Yes. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: You seem to imply by your 

ldteeant Cbat I was P••••••!.R& you into dolag it. The 

Cbair bid no 1ntentiona of atteaptina to elicit anytbiag 

f~oa you or your clienta at thll point to thlt beerin&. 

But, if, to tbe extent that you wlah to voluntarily 

do t~t, thea we would app .. olate it. 

MR. MI'l'CRELLa Fia. Of couwee • as the 

Chair knowa, I've tot the obllaatioa to daf•ad ay cliaut. 

d.abt•. 

CHAIBKAll IUti.B: I wuteretaacl that .. 

Mlt. MITCHELL: I don 1 t want to waive any 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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CHAIRMAN HALE: T~t is your first respon-

sibility and I commead you foz it. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am saying to the Chair, 

4 tblt if tbe Chair will indicate to me what they want, I'll 

make tbem available, but I would like to alao make 

6 them available in the context of fA":! prli!S~Il'i:<llt1on 11 Mr. 

7 Chairman. And if I do~vt cov~r it-- we~i, I'll just cell 

8 the Chair in the pres~nce of the Co~ittae t~t I will 

10 in pieces and patches here &nd there and yon. I intended 

11 to offer aU of them; or at least to have them ~vailable; 

12 not to offer them, because I just don't want to get into 

I3 the phyatcal proble• of witbdrawins them and then having 

14 to go down to Corpus three weeks from now and not having 

15 ay recorda. 

16 CHAIIMAN HALE: What we would do on any of 

17 the recorda you IQIIke available to us, with your plilrmisaion 

18 what we would do, we have ample photocopying equipment 

19 here ta the capitol Buildins at our disposol. What we woul 

20 do la-tbat anythiaa in which we were interested, we would 

21 slaply photocopy it, and give you your originals back. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: ~y I say this to the 

Chair that upon receiving of the request, that I would .ak 

the preUainary indication to the Chair thet 1 would ID8ke 

them aveila•l•• eubject only to ay clients invoking his 
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right, in which event, I will notify the C~ir immediatel . 

CHAIRMAN HALE: All right. 

MR. MITCHELL: But at this point in an 

infor .. l statement, I intend to offer thea anyway. I 

intend to paint the entire picture, Mr. Chairman. I 

just didn't want to nave them pick~d he~e a~ci thQre and yDn. 

TbeJ do include those 1 incidentally~ but not fxom 1970. 

Tbey 10 beck, the indictment is f~o~ '~1. We~~~ cutting 

it all up. All the notice I have, of cours@, 1' 

for the indictaent. I would like to go back to 1964 with 

the Zertuche Store and bring it all forwa~d. It will 

fill tld.a I'OOIIl. 

CHA IRM.AN HALE: You will haves tbiii t oppor­

tual&Jt Hr. Mitchell. 

MR.. MITCBELL: Thank you. 

CHAliMAN HALE: Could I inqui#O as to when 

we could flrat eee tbeee records and eaaiae then, not 

necea .. r11J to introduce them into evidence here, but wbep 

the C~1ttee ie not in aeeaion, could we have an attor­

aey, or one of our .. abera check thea toaor~ow, for 

MR. MITCHELL: Mr. Chairman. I do reapect 

tbe CO..lttee. but I •• not going to let Mr. canales 

ba ve cia• uder any circualta:a.ces. '1'ha t '1 the f irat 
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CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. CWru~~l.as is not an 

agent of this Committee any more t~n you are. 

MR. MITCHELL: Hea' doing a lot of talking 

and I've been a criminal lawyer for 25 years and--

MR. CANALES: I haven 1 t said a word. 

Mr. CM irllll n. (La ugbter.) 

MR. MITCHELL~ I m~n th~ laat three or 

four days. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Well, you will have your 

opportunity, Mr. Mitchell. You are aware that we have to 

ba w a due order of proceedinga here-

MR. MITCHELL: I understand. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: --and you both can't 

talk at the tame tlae, At least we can't understand you 

when you do. 

MR. MITCHELL: Out of fairneas to the 

record, it all started when I informed the Chair about 

four or five daya ago that I planned to bring an 

accountant up and planned to put all this evidence in. 

Tbat•a the facta. Then then, I'd like to do it that 

way 1 if I could, Mr. Chairman; to do it the way I had 

already telegraphed to the Chair tba t I waa soing to 

do. I bate to have it come in and him tend aomebody 

over there to paw around in them, because. you know, 

I've been chaaing rabbits and hauling equipment and busting 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

3-13 

people out of back doors and whatnot and I have no notice 

of :Lt. I just don't want to be put in the poaition where 

I'• ao:Lng to waive the rights of ay clients. That's all. 

CHAIRMAN BALE: Mr. canalea'l 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Cha irmii'ln • ~it:b your 

pe~aiasiou, I would like to subpoena wh&t hG i~sued, 

simply because 1 think I am entitled to ~e~ th~Ge docu­

meats. If they will be kept from me, i~ will ~~riously 

iapede ey presentation of thi~ case. 

CllAI:RMAN: HALE: You get the !iiUbJ?oena 

pcepared tbat you want and then we'll see. 

Mr. Mitchell? 

MR. HENDRICKS: I would lik~ to ask 

eoaethlna. 

CHAIRMAN B.ALE: Mr. Mendr:Lcko? 

MR. KENDRICKS: Mr. Mi tcbell• is it my 

unde.:ataudlaa that you waat us to eee tbeee records a • 

you latroduce thea into evidence? 

Mll. HlTOHELL, t .. would have an order of 

pl' eleDta t :Lon • 

Kl. HENDRICKS: In other worda, you want 

to preaeat tbeat youreelf, :Lato evidence? 

MR • MITCHELL: Yes • 

Mil. HENDlllCKS: CoiiUIU!!nt on th811 and-

Mlt. MITCJIELL: I!w made arraaaementa, 1f 
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it pleaae the Member, to have tbam duplica~~d and so 

inform the Chair. t don't hav~j aow~ver, any desire, to 

have Hr. canales subpoena me, because if he doua, I'm 

golna to stand on my privileges. 

MR. CANALES: I have no conversation to 

c:a rry on with Mr. Mitche 11 oth~r th•\Hl a p oJ.. :l..te "Hello. 11 

I would like co know» ~bougb, if it is the 

intention of Mr. Mitchell at this ~oiut to filter through 

the documentation of theae difi~~~nt stor~w ~nd pick out 

juat what he wants the Committe~ to ae~ ~nd olaim his 

privilege on the remsind~r? 

If that is the situation, I would like the 

Coamlttee to issue a subpoena so that the Committee can 

bave aecess to the entirety of the records and not just 

that portion that might be taken out of context. 

MR. MITCHELL: By the saae token, I could 

duplicate hia talk about my end of it, Mr. Chairman. I 

would like the Committee to know that I made the offer 

to bring them all over here. If I could have gotten a 

DPS Guard to atand over them, in fact, whole boxes of 

tJaea. 

MR. LANEY: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to 

zatae a point of order. We are debating something that'• 

irralevent at thil point in ti.Jile. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Laney • it 18 the Chair' • 
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own motion that this matter waa brought upD because we 

aeed to determine whether or not to isaua a ~ubpoena to 

3 the bank. I we• trying to avoid the attendant difficulty 

4 and expense and trouble it is going to cauea the bank 

to so through hundreds of reels of microfilm and isolate 

6 the1e tndlvidua 1 transactions on thliiUl two storas. 

7 MR. HENDRICKS: I have a co~nt, Mr. 

9 CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks? 

IO MR. HENDRICKS: lam incltn•d to agree 

II with Mr. caoales. I think it would save the tiu of 

12 th1a COIIUilittee, 1f we go ahead end aubpoeM what records 

13 we wat, what recorda the bank has, so we c.an set at 

14 our leisure and ezemtne without the necessity of having 

15 thea introduced and explained into evidanca. For that 

I6 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

.ay. when he doe• iDtroduce theM into evtdenaQ. we will 

hive thea and follow along with them. 

CBAIRHAB KALEs Do you wish to make a 

110t1loa? 

K'R. IIENDI.ICKS: 1 wish to make a motion 

that thie aut.poena lte uaued. 

CIIAlBHAif BALl~ Mr • Rendr ieka aove1 that 

the CIMtr be autho#bed and directed to issue • tubpoeu 

to rlrat State Baak of saa Diego, Mr. Clrl Wt1U.eaaa, 

Vlce PreaUent a ad ca•hlel', for aU recorda taald by the 
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bank pertaining to Farm and Ranch Store and Zertuche 

2 General Store. Is tba t correct? 

3 MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I don't know 

4 what the authority of tbia particular cashier ia. 1 woul ~ 

auggeat to the Committee to avoid any complications on 

6 

7 

8 

9 

IO 

II 

I2 

I3 

I4 

I5 

I6 

17 

I8 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

authority of the individual to produce the records, that 

the president, wbo generally has plenary &utbo~ity in the 

baak. be ordered and subpo~ed to produce these records. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: The S~eriff talked with 

Mr• Goldthorn on the telephone. Ha waa most cooperative 

oa all aspects of this. Mr. ~nsles. H~ advised me 

that ~. carl Williams$ if we were going to subpoena any 

of tbeea records, Mr. carl Williams was the vice preaiden 

aad eaahier and •• in charge of au theae recorda and 

kaew the moat about it and that the subpoena should be 

directed to htm. 

HI. CANALES: Thank you, Mr. Cb.&U: man. 

CBAIIHAH HALE: Mr. Kaster? 

MR. KASTER: What timeframe a~e we talking 

about far the beak to produoe these recorda? 

CBAIIHAR HALE: I don't know. I aaked 

that queatioa of Mr. Ooldthora. Be isldicated it was 

a•taa to take a little time. It ••n,.t ·aoaethins you 

could do juat iaatantaneoualy. 

n. USTU. t Rtm.dreda of t"eel8 of m1crofl11 • 
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I was just wondering how long it's going to t~ke. 

CBA IRMAN HALE: I have no idaa. It 

3 depaad1 on the number of transactions the bank baa in a 

4 day. I dou•t know how many transactions they have, but 

those microfilm recorda, if they photocopy every check~ 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

microfilm every check and every deposit slip and you have 

to go through those tbinglii and isola~ th<aiiH! individual 

checks. it's going to take some tim<a. 

MR. KASTER: A~~ wa talking ~bout a week, 

or a month, or what? 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I nave no ide~. I 

12 jutt don't ba ve any idea. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. CHAVEZ: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN HALE : Mr • Chavez 'l 

MR. CHAVEZ: Didn•t Mr. Mitchell indicate 

tbat he lli&ht allow some Re"Presenta tlve of the Committee 

to look at thoae recorda an.d perhaps we might be able 

to xerox some of those? 

CHAIRMAN KALE: Would you care to direct 

Jour quett1on. to Mr. Mitchell? 

MR. MtTCKBLL: Mr. Chav•z, I bad orlginallr 

seated earlier, called to bring the recorda over. 1 had 

to,-hk¥8 security for them, because 1 wanted them here 1.D 

the ·Ccmaittee aooa. I intended, as part of my case, to 

pz-e .. nt tbe tax retUftll and the input data lato those tax 
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I 

1 1l returns, and that is still my intent, but I don',>-- I 
I 

would like to reserve the right to change my mind. I donie 

went, however, out of step of the flow of the case from 

my point of view, to have counsel for anyone on the 

other side or any place to just come pick and ch0ose. I 

t> think that I should have the right to present it in the 

7 fashion that it is orderly and I hope best flows to the 

s understanding of this Committee. 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

15 

MR. CHAVEZ: In other words, if the 

Committee asked you, 1£ we could send a subcommittf!e 

over there to look at those records and perhaps xerox 

some of the~, your answer is that you will not allow us 

to do that. 

MR. MITCHELL: That's right, in that 

fa ahion. 

CRAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Weddington? 

MS. WEDDINGTON: Mr. Chairman, is that 

true, even though you would then be allowed and there 

would be an agreement at the same time, that you would 

be allowed the opportunity to come and present the same 

presentation you are already planning? 

MR. MITCHELL: Ms. Weddington, I simply 

dan't want- You're an attorney and you understand, I 

don't want you to pick and choose and beat me to death 

with it and leave it in that context and then interrupt 
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my free flow of the case. I intended to take all of that ' 

data, in fact, to chart it out. I have the charts of 

all of the returns and all the input. I wanted to do 

4 t~t and had so expressed my intentions to this Committee 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

because of the questions raised. 

MS. WEDDINGTON: If, at an early oppor-

tunity next week you made a presentation to the Committee~ 

as you had in mind, would you then have objection to 

someone, either a counsel hired by the Committee or a 

Committee Member to come and look through--

MR. rt!TCHELL: No. 

No, I would not. As a matter of fact, I had 

anticipated having an accountant here tomorrow night, 

hoping the case would be put in my control by the Com­

mittee and I had intended to put the accountant on 

tomorrow and commence it, but it doesn't look like I am 

going to be able to. so I had really projected to do 

it •• recently as tomorrow. 

MS. WEDDINGTON: But once you make your 

presentation in the order you would like to, then you 

would heve no objection to us coming and making xeroxes 

or-

MR. MITCHELL: Not at all. 

MS. WEDDINGTON: --looking--

MR. MITCHELL: In fact, I h•d made 
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arrangements through courtesy ~f the ~h~~r to_ ~rox and 

I called today and I have tons of xeroxi.a;: Lo do and .;_ 

want to make it available to the Cot:lrniltee, but I Houl,i 

like to be able to do it with an accountant and in an 

intelligent fashion and an orderly fashion: and not. havf: 

(• someone say, "t.Jell, I want from January lst, 1972 to 

3:00 o'clock or. the third." If it's going to come in, 

B it's got to come in, in free flow. For example, an 

9 indication has been made that the store never existed. 

IO Well, the store did exist. It existed in '64 and '65 and 

II 
166. I am called on to bring them in on '70. Well, if 

I Z you all get that in '70, the free flow and the facts, I 

I3 think are going to be distorted. 

14 MR. CHAVEZ: But you are going to bring 

15 them? 

I6 

I7 

18 

I9 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, I am, Mr. Chavez. 

I have them. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Mitchell, let me say 

that in response to our conversation on the telephone and 

in person about this, 1 believe we had two conversations 

about it. It was my understanding you were going to 

bring all of those records in a number of big boxes up 

here last night and leave them here. And then pursuant t 

that conversation, I had even talked to the Sergeant at 

Arms, Mr. Kelly, about security arrangements on those 
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records, under the impression that you were going to 

turn the custody of them temporarily over to this 

Committee. I certainly didn't understand that they t-Jere 

4 going to be sealed in boxes that we were not permitted 

to go into and examine. 

6 MR. MITCHELL: Mr. Chairman, that is true.! 

7 And the Sergeant-at-Arms made that fact known to me. 

8 However, 1 did not feel that I wanted to leave my clients 

9 recorda here. I would, as I told the Chair, if the 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Department of Public Safety man, which this Committee 

certainly bas all of the power in the world to call in ant 

say. "Now, you are in charge of them and you set on them,' 

then I wea going to bring them and have them loaded up. 

I didn't know how I was going to get them here; needed 

a piekup. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: That was my understanding. 

MR. MITCHELL: I had told you that. Ae my 

18 client said, "Now. that's my life and my freedom you are 

19 carrying around." I said, "Yes, Judge, you're right." 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Not reflecting on anybody, but I am charged with a tre­

mendous responsibility, both in that case down there 

and this one, and would certainly be remiss in my duty, 

if I didn't say, "I'll say to the Chair and the Committlio!e 

today, if 1 can have that type of security over it, I 

will bring them over." 
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CHAIRHAN HAL£: I'm not so concerned about 

you physically bringing them to us. We don't particularly 

want the custody of them. We simply want the privilege to 

examine them and see what's in those records. Again, we 

don't have any predisposition in advance of what those 

records are going to reveal. 

MR. MITCHELL: I understand. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: There has been testimony 

concerning checks written between those two accounts. 

Either that testimony is true or it's not true, and we 

would like to check those records. Those records will re-

fleet whether that testimony is true or not, if your 

recorda are complete. 

It seems to me that this Committee, as Mr. 

Hendricks points out. if we are going to have access to 

those recorda. we should have access to a 11 of them, and 

not to just what parts of them you want us to see. 

MR. MITCHELL: Mr. Chairman I don't have 

any objection to telling this Committee that I intend to 

put on my accountant and all of the records. I intend 

to subpoena Mr. P&rr, the Attorney General, Mr. Reynaldo 

Guerrera, Mr. Dolio Briones, Mr. canales and a bout fifty 

more witnesses. I intend to present a full case. I will 

represent to this Committee that I will present that 

accountant, aa I told the Chair I would. I'll present 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 





6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

3-24 

cement did not belong to my client, though, Mr. Cnairluan,' 

and I am going to bring a man up here to prove it. 

CHAIRMAN HAL~: Do you thL1k it will take 

SO witnesses to prove itl 

MR. MITCHELL: That's one. That's one 
! 

pointf 

I have been put, not because I select to do so, but 
I 

I am 1 

I 

sitting here listening to this testimony and I am looking! 
I 

at the record and I've got to go down that record, and I 

am going to bring a man that sold him that cement. That, 

I've got to do. 

Mr. Nabers questioned the man about him, and 

I think he's entitled to say, "Well, now, who owned it1 11 

The County didn't own it. My client owned it. So, I am 

going to bring a witness up here to that effe~t. 

Then. I want to know why all those employees 

left one government entity, moved to another and got thei 

pay ra ieed and then suddenly a 11 appear up here to be 

witnesses. I think this Committee ought to know 

whether it's being used in that political fight. I 

think that'a relevant. 

MS. THO~lPSON: Mr. Chairman, parliamentary 

lilquiry. 

Cl{AIRMAN HALE: Yes, ma'am? 

MS. THOMPSON: Are we allowing Mr. Mitchell 

to .aka hie caee at thia time? 
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CHAIRMAN HALE: No. The Chair was trying to~ 

I determine whether or not we would be justified in trying tf 

subpoena all these records from the bank. That's what I 

started this inquiry. I had hoped that we could avoid I 

the necessity of having to put the bank to that trouble. 

MR. HENDRICKS: Mr. Cba irma n? 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks? 

MR. HENDRICKS: We've got a little over a 

9 week left in this Session. We hope to be able to wind 

1o this up, if at all possible, I still insist upon my 

II moe ion. 

12 CHAIRMAN HALE: Is there any further 

13 cttacuasion on the motion? 

14 MRS • WEDDINGTON: Do we have any indication 

15 froa the bank at all they could furnish that within a 

16 week? It ie simply my thouaht that if 1t 1 s going to take 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

lonser to get the recorda from the bank than to give Mr. 

M:l.tcrhell an opportunity to make a presentation and there­

after htm ake au thoee records available to us, that 

the more expedient th:l.ng to do might be the latter, rather 

then tlae foraer • 

MR. HENDRICKS: If he's got 50 witnesses, 

23 ,.. will be here three weeks from now. 

24 

25 

MS. WEDDINGTON: I bad at least understood 

from lata orl&i•l statement that he desired to make an 
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original presentation of some of those records snd books, 

but we might ask Mr. Mitchell how long he would think 

that particular presentation would take, if that could be 

4 made the first order of business and thereafter we could 

examine those records? 

6 I would like to do whatever we can do to save 

7 the aost time. 

8 CHAIRMAN HALE: The Chair would like to 

9 avoid having to put the bank to the trouble. They are an 

10 innocent bystander in this entire proceedings, I assume. 

11 I would hate to put them to a 11 this expense and trouble, 

12 if we could avoid it, and that was the rea son for my 

13 dialog with Mr. Mitchell, 

14 MR. MALONEY: Mr. Chairman? 

15 CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney? 

16 MR. MALONEY: \-11th due respect to Mr. 

17 Mitchell, he is representing his client. The things that 

18 he will do in this case will be, I am quite sure, to the 

19 benefit of his client. But without us having known that 

2o we have .ill the records that are available in our hands, 

21 or at leaat are on the way, I don't think that this 

22 Colllllllttee would be in a position to really evaluate 

23 

24 

25 

the testimony that Mr. Mitchell may present to us. I 

do think that we have to satisfy ourselves that we have 

the co-,lete record. 
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It may save time in the long run, because if 

we are able to get those, we will be able to go through 

these things ourselves and Mr. Mitchell's testimony or 

4 presentation may make more sense to us at that time. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman--

6 CHAIRMAN HALE: Well, that was my thought 

7 of us aeeing the records in advance, was that we would be 

8 ab:a. to make a more intelligent appra isa 1 of his presen-

9 tatf.oa, if we bad a chance to have seen the records. 

10 MR. CANALES: If I may change the subject 

11 mOtBentarily• I would like to make an inquiry of the Chair 

12 and of the Coaatcttee. Under the case of Ferguson versus 

13 M.a ttoa, which the eta :lr quoted at the onset of this 

14 panlculaa- inquiry, 263 Southwestern, pag• 890, the Suprem 

15 Court eaya that ia the 118tter of impeachldnt, the Bouse 

16 acta ao ... t. 1a the .,acity of a Grand Jury. 

11 M~: .. ca.h••• in -.y practice of law, it bas been 

18 ay uaderatancU,q tbat the Grand Jury is not a forum for 

19 the preaaata-tift of defeuaea. I am. not object :l.ng to Mr. 

20 1Utclle11 putttla& oa teattaony • but to try the case before 

21 the Coaalt'CM would ••• to me to assume the posture or 

22 the ..-.s.~c.oa cbat tbe Senate would have, should the House 

23 vote GOt .AI'ttlcrles of tapeachaea.t, and we would 1 in effect, 

24 blft at lea at two .tt:tale 1 U not three. 

25 CBAlQAI BUB: I dare MY We will have to 
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two or three before we are through with this thing, the 

way it 'a going. 

3 MR. HENDRICKS: I have a statement 1 would 

4 like to make. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks'? 

MR. HENDRICKS: My problem on insisting on 

this aotion is that Mr. Mitchell is a very fine attorney. 

Be ta going to represent his client, with which we are 

all tn agreement. He should and will do it to the best 

of his ability. But 1f we reach the point in time that 

he feels it is to the benefit of his client to withhold 

record• from this Committee, then he is going to with­

hold the recorda• aad we caa.not l:llame him for it. That i 

wb7 l lnaiet upon my motion. 

I 

CHAIRMAN HALEz That's true, but, of 

course. our job, also, Mr. Bendrtcka, is not to determine 

t:lae sutlt or l.aaoaenae of anyone in this hearing, but 

whether or not we think there ia sufficient evidence 

to juatlfy makia& • ••commendauton to the House. It's 

the da&ir'a tbinkill& 1:hat w could reach that conclusion, 

I tblDk, on the bl818 of hie refusal to produce recorda, if 

we woted to. 

MR, HENDRICKS: Yea, but by tblt time, it 

would take maybe eyen th~•• w .. kl more to get the records. 

Tbat's why I would like to get it started now. 
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CHAIRMAN HALE: Any further discussion 

on the motion? 

(No response.) 

Mr. Hendricks baa moved that the Chair be 

authorized to issue a subpoena to the First State Bank of 

san Diego for all of the records which they have pertain­

ing to Farm and bnch Store and Zertuche Genera 1 Store 

froa 1970 to Che present time. 

Is that the substance of your motion. Mr. 

Bendricke? 

MI. HEBDiiCKS~ Yes. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Is there any further 

dlecuaalon on the aotion? 

(The ~tlon, being put to a roll call vote, 

we oard.ecl.) 

CH.Ali.MAN HALE: Being seven "Ayes," and 

•• .._, ... t:he aotlou is adopted. (Qa'9el.) 

la tbe~e any further preliminary business to 

c~ ~•to•• k .. eo..ittee before we start hearing 

•• CAIIALBS 1 I would like to request that 

• _,-of .._ auta,ona when it 11 ileued be eubmitted 

.,.. ., es.s.. 
CIU~ BALl: All right. The Chair will 

.... ,, te P'" '" tbat. 
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MR. CANALES: I would like to ask one 

other question of the Chair. The Court Reporter here is 
' 

3 making a reco~d and transcribing it on to paper, I would 

6 

imagine. I would like to request that I be supplied 

with a copy of it as it is being produced, if possible, 

CHAIRMAN HALE: The House Rules govern 

7 that, Mr. Canales. You will be provided with whatever 

s is proper under the House Rules. 

9 MR. CANALES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

IO CHA lRMAN HALE: Are you ready to ca 11 your 

11 next witness? 

12 MR. CANALES: Yes, Mr. Chairman, but before 

13 I proceed, I would like to introduce or present for the 

14 Comm!ttee•s review certified copies of payment records 

15 kept in the usual course of business in the Office of 

16 the County Auditor in Duval, Texas, and certified copies 

17 of canceled checks kept in the usual course of business 

IS in the office of the County Treasurer in the County of 

19 Duval. These recorda reflect some of the transactions 

zo which we have discussed previoualy. I have not gotten 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

separate copies for all of the Committee members, but if 

you find them to be of interest, I am sure they are not 

that extensive; they can be copied very easily. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: We can make photocopies. 

Will there be testimony tonight pertaining to 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



3-31 

these? 

MR. CANALES: This one has already been 
I 

distributed to the Committee, if I am not mistaken, except 

for the fact that it was cut up in pieces to give it some 

semblance of order, It is a certified copy of the 

6 oriatnal documents that were presented to the Committee. 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

This, the Committee does not bave. I believe that it 

reflects, the certified copies of checks to the people 

who have testified heJ:e to the effect that they were 

employed by the County. 

At this time, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to call 

Mr. Octavio Hinojosa, Jr. 

CHAIIMAN HALE: Does this witness speak 

EnaU.ah? 

MR. CANALES: I believe so. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Will he need an in-

11 terpreter? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. CANALES: I don't believe so, Mr. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Hinojosa, it's my duty 

ae cbalr..an to advise you of your rights with reference 

to your testimony. You will be sworn to tell the truth 

and your failure to do so will subject you to a prose­

cution for perjury. 

After you have completed your statement, Member 
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of the Committee may ask questions conce-rning your 

testimony. You must answer these questions truthful i.y, 

and your refusal to do so could subject you to punish-

ment for contempt, You can refuse to answer questions 

only on the ground that such answers might incrimlna te 

6 you, or tend to incriminate you in some way. 

7 You are privileged to have an attorney of 

8 your selection to sit with and advise you as to your 

9 answers, if you desire. 

10 The Chair will attempt to protect your rights 

11 at aU times. Do you understand the advice I have given 

12 you? 

13 MR,.HINOJOSA: Yes, sir. I do. 

14 CHAIRMAN HALE: Are you now ready to 

15 teatify? 

16 MR, HINOJOSA : Yes, sir. 

17 CHAIRMAN HALE: Would you please stand 

18 and raise your right hand and take the oath, 

19 (The witness was sworn by the Chairman.) 

20 

21 MR. OCTAVIO HINOJOSA, JR, 

22 •• called as a witneu by the Plaintiff and, having been 

23 duly sworn, testified as follows: 

24 

25 

CHAIRMAN HALE: For the record, would you 

pleaae state:;your name and address? 
·I 
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A My name is Octavio Hinojosa, Box 392, San Diegof 

Texas. 

3 CHA IRKAN HALE: You may proceed. 

4 Ma. CANALES: With the Committee's per-

mtaaion, I have laid out on each one of your desks a 

6 file or a bunch of copies of the Duval County payroll 

7 aumaary, which are official records and of which Mr. 

s Biaojoaa bel in hie possession right now on the desk. 

9 Tlaeae copies are, exce~pts from this particular book. I 

10 haft showed the book to severa 1 of the Members of the 

u Coaaictee for authentication purposes. These have been 

12 tak·en out of there and if the Committee will permit, I 

n will allow Mr. Hinojoea to have my copy ao he can go 

14 aloq with any questions that you might have with a littl 

15 bit aor-e eatl than going through that entire book, if it • 

16 all rlpt w1th the COIIUII.ittee. 

17 CHAIRMAN H.ALE: That will be fine. 

18 MR. MITCHELL: I wonder if there is an 

19 ewttra copy, Mr. Cbab•man, for_ my client, of this 

20 doo.-ntY 

21 CHA I.BMAN HALE: Do you have a copy tba t 

22 you could provide Mr. Mitchell? 

23 MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, those are a 

24 matter of public record. If he wants to go get a copy 

25 of them, 1 am sure be can, or if the Committee wants to 
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provide him with a copy'? It l·lould co!:le out oE tc~.y con-

tingent fund, and I would hate to be spend:!.ng it on 

Mr. Mitchell. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Hitchell, the Chair 

will make you a copy available, 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank. you, Mr. Chairman. 

We will have to do it after the meeting. It's a rather 

voluminous thing. 

MR. CHAVEZ: ~'e can trade. When he gives 

us his, ve can give him ours. (Laughter.) 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CANALES 

Q Mr. Hinojosa, would you explain to the 

Committee what type of records that you have in your 

presence there in that particular book that you have 

brought ~r the subpoena duces tecum for this Committee? 

A Yes, sir. This is a payroll summary of the 

last five years of payroll summary of Duval County, of 

eaployeee paid monthly for the past five years, or five 

and a balf years. 

Q HZ. Hinojosa, these are the regular County 

employees and .tbete recorda would not be included 1 the 

people who have received checks on claims--

A Tba t 1 
• right • 
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Q -claims of payment? 

A That's right. 

Q That is a different record, or how does it work 

4 A These only reflect the people that have been 

hired monthly--by the month. 

6 MR. CANALES: Again, I will submit these 

7 for the Committee's review. I p~daed them out the 

s othe~ day. These are not included in these particular 

9 pay recorda. There a1:e other individuals who are being 

10 paid from the County payroll, which are not included 

11 in these recorda here, but they are not considered steady 

12 COUD.ty employeae. 

13 Q 

14 A 

15 Q 

16 A 

11 that my understanding? 

That 1 1 rf.sht. 

Thoae that are paid by the-

They are employed by the week, or seasonal, 

11 certain days of the m.cmth, but are not in the sUJIIID8ry. 

18 Q Theae are than prepared from the checks tba t 

19 are issued at tbe end of the month to pay the county 

20 payroll? 

21 Yea. We have made the checks out of these 

22 here. 

23 Q Mr. Hinojosa, would you go from, in that 

24 perticulal' first page that you have there, 1 believe 

25 reflects a payment to a Mr. Tomas Elizondo. Would you 
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tell the Commission how much he was paid c0r the ;JJonth 

of April'? 

CHAIRMAN HALE: 1-iha t year' 

MR. CANALES: 1975. It is the first: page 

also. I will try to follow in sequence, as they ure 

6 presented to the Committee. 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

A These are--the month of April, he was paid 

$750, but these checks are not good any more. They 

haven't cashed these checks. They are pending, you know, 

becauae there is litigation at the depository bank at 

the preaent time. 

Q Not because the County has not hired the man at I 
that price 1 

A No. 

Q It is just that there is a problem as to who 

16 1s the Couudsaionera Court? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

And who has the authority to hire and fire? 

That's right. The bank would not honor these. 

The warrant wes, 1n fact 1 issued to pay $750 

to M%. Tomas Elizondo? 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. It was taaued on February the 29th. 

Mr. Hinojosa, would you go from left to right 

on tbat particular sheet in front of you and explain the 

different entries that are on the sheet there in relation 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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the payment of his monthly salary to Mr. Tomas Elizondo? 

A The first column is the regular salary. The 

second column ie the deduction for hospitalization 

insurance. And the third column is, I guess is the 

FICA, Soctal Security. And the fourth column is the with­

holding tax. The sixth column, that is the code system we 

use to classify where we pay a certain office. 

Q Would you explain to the Committee who, and in 

whose employ this particular individual is by that code 

you have there in front of you? 

And 1 Mr. Hinojosa, if I can interrupt, would 

you pleaee speak into the microphone so that the audience 

here can bear you? 

Yea. 

In thia particular payroll, he was paid as a 

bailiff for the District Judge. 

Q As a bailiff? 

A Bailiff. Yes, sir. 

Q For the District Judge? 

Yes, etr. 

Q Would you please turn to the next page and see 

if there are any check marks on it? 

MR. CANALES: The check marks indicate the 

salary or the pay of the individuals who have testified 

that they are, in fact, that have been testifying here a 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Hino osa 3-38 

to their employment and other individuals who are employe4 

by the County. 

Q Is there any check mark on the next page? 

A I have Mr. Cleofas Gonzalez. 

Q Would you please read the amount that he is 

paid for the month of April there, even though the 

money might not have been disbursed? 

A Yes. The regular pay is $500; hospitalization, 

$14.23; social security $29.25; withholding tax, $31.80; 

and the other two columns are two other--

Q In whose employ was Mr. Cleofas Gonzalez? 

According to that quote there, he is employed 

by the Gounty Shop. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

precincts? 

A 

Q 

that page? 

Q 

A 

By the County Shop? 

County Shop. Yes, sir. 

Not one 'Of the Precincts? 

Not a precinct. No. 

There is a different code for the individual 

Yas, sir. 

There it no other individual check mark on 

No, sir. 

Would you please turn to the next page? 

Mr. Thomas Elizondo. 
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Q Would that be the same Mr. Tomas Elizondo 

who was being paid $750 by warrant on the first page? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Would you please tell the Committee how much 

he was paid for the month of March? 

A In the month of March he was paid $375. Do 

you want the deductions? The same deductions. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

He was paid $375? 

3 75. 

And in April he was paid $750? 

Yes, sir. 

In Ma reb he is working for who, according to--

Precinct No. 3. 

Who is the Commissioner of Precinct No. 3? 

Mr. Ramiro carrUlo. 

You say that at the $750 figure he is now 

11 working for Judge o. P. carrillo, personally, as a bailif ? 

18 A According to the--

19 Q --the records that you have in front of you 

20 there? 

21 A -informa t.ion. 

22 Q Now, Mr. Hinojosa, would you please go to the 

23 very last page of the papers that you have, the last 

24 

25 

page. Let's start from the back toward the front. 

Going back to the year of 1971, I believe. Are there any 
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check marks on the very last page'? 

A I have Oscar :Janchez. 

Q Is that the same Oscar ~anchez that testified 

here last night? 

A Yes, sir. 

6 Q liere you here present last night when he 

7 testified? 

8 A I was here. Yes. 

Q What is the salary of Mr. Oscar Sanchez and 

1o who did he work for in that month of 1971? 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A In January of 1971, his salary was 275 and 

he worked for the County Shop. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

Q 

In which precinct, Mr. Hinojosa? 

No. He was paid out of the County Shop. 

The County Shop? 

Yea. 

He was working for the County? 

Yea, sir. 

According to that? 

According to the summary. 

can we turn to the next page, going forward. 

Cleofae Gonzalez. 

Wbo •• he working for in January of 1971? 

For the County Shop. 

The County Shop in January of 1971? 

A Yea. 
HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Q Is there anybody else listed on that page'i 

A Francisco Ruiz, $325. 

Q Who was he working for? 

A He l~S working for the County Shop. 

Q Also the County Shop? 

A 

Q 

The County Shop. 

The next page? 

3-41 

A Tomas Elizondo. This is for January 1971, $300. 

9 He was paid out of Precinct No. 3. 

10 Q Ramiro Carrillo's Precinct? 

II A Yes, sir. 

12 Q W&s Ram1ro Carrillo County Commissioner at 

13 that tiae? 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, air. 1971. Yea 1 sir. He was. 

Proceed to the next page. 

oscar Sanches. 

MR. CANALES: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman, I am 

trying to go through these as briefly as possible. If 

the Committee has any questions they want to put to him, 

U:...a*t'bother me at all, if they would put the 

question to Mr. Hinojosa. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Let me ask him a question 

right now. 

This third column from the right is labeled 

"Code." Does that code tell you where they were working7 
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A It is the second column, fro~:1 the rii).1c. 

Net pay, that's a code. Yet~, sir. I cHn tell he worked 

1 • in the Shop for a certain office, or whatever it is. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: 310; would every No. 310 

indicate they are working for Precinct 3? 

6 Yes, sir. 

7 CHAIRMAN HALE: Everything coded 310. 

8 Everything coded with a plain "10," would indicate they 

9 were working for the County Shop? 

10 Correct. Yea, sir. 

II CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you. 

12 Q Would you continue with the next entry? 

13 CHAIRMAN HALE: Let me ask one other. By 

14 the saa token, if it were 410, that would indicate 

15 Pncbct 4? 

16 Precinct 4. Yes, sir. 

17 CRAiiMAN HALE: And 210 would indicate 

18 Precinct 2? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 ehop. 

A 

Q 

Q 

P~ecinct 2. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you. 

Would you continue with the next entry? 

Febru1U:'y 1 1971. Cleofaa Gonzalez, $300. 

Who waa be working for? 

County Sllop. He ws working for the County 
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Francisco Huiz. 3:25, out of the County :,hop. 

Q Let me ask you, Mr. Hinojosa, is this the 

same Mr. Francisco Ruiz that testified here last night? 

A Yes, sir. He have another Francisco Ruiz from 

Precinct 4. 

6 Q Francisco Ruiz, Sr? 

7 A Senior. Yes, sir. 

8 Q But that is not the same one that testified 

9 here last night? 

10 A No, sir. 

II MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I have no 

12 further questions of this witness. I believe t~ t any 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

other testimony he would give would be repetitious. 

AI we go through there, you will find from the back 

toward the front that back in 1971 we bad Mr. Oscar 

sanchez workingt Mr. Francisco Ruiz working as per their 

testimony; Mr. Cleofas Gonzalez and Mr. Tomas !Uizondo, 

people who have been referred to in prior testimony here. 

I can't remember the exact dates. I believe 

some time possibly in 1972 or '73, Mr. oscar sanchez 

is left off the County payroll. Whatever other position 

he assumed, I can't remember from his testimony. 

There will remain on there payments to Francisc 

Ru!z, Cleo~as Gonzalez and Tomas Elizondo. Later on, 

towa~d the front, Francisco Ruiz dropped out and I believ 
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he weat to work for the wa tar Dlatr iat • if I •• not 

abtakea. or both of thea lll ter went oa to work fC>r the 

water Dlatriet. Then, •• far •• all of tho.te recot.·da 

are coaee¥aed, fro• 1971 to the present, Mr. Cleofaa 

Goa•l•• •• in the employ of the County, •• •• M:r. 

~· illaoado. Thoaa recorda ere preeeat rtaht thare 

oa t'- vitae••'• deak and they are tbe offte-.1 recordl 

of 0\nel County. 

I bllve no further quea t iooe, Mr. Cba1rll8n 

QUESTIONS BY DE COMMITTEE 

IY CUIIIIAB BALE 

Q Mr. Hil'lojoaa • haft you checked tlu~ouah theae 

pboCooopS.ea llefore toatsbt? Bad you aeen theae photo­

eo-plea before toaS.ght'l 

A 

Q BI'H you bad an opportunity to ... wlaether thea_. 

tb .. e an true copf.ea of wbat you bl•e there u your 

poaaeaaloa? 

We11 1 I-

CHAlllliAllt BALE: Mr. C.Ulea. let the CUlr 

eek ,au the queatS.oa. You .... theee pbotoaoptea, dtda•t 

you'l 

HI.. CARALES: I •de the plaotH.,t.ea • 

C:BAIIlMAI BALEs Awe they cop I. .. of tt. 

_................ .... ...... . .. ·- .. . ..... _., 
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MR. CANALES: Let me do this. 1-1y 

secretary had the photocopies made. They lllere made from 

this book, from a 11 the entries of which I put a check 

mark beside, 

CHAIRMAN HALL: 1 see. 0!-:ay. 

MR. CANALE~: Any record that ~s in that 

page there can easily be referred to in this book, if 

anybody bas a question as to just any entry. We can go 

to any particular month and find that entry. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney/ 

MR. MALONEY: Mr. Canales, as I under­

stand it, these are selected pages where you just found 

~he Qtmee that you checked and only photocopied the 

paaea that had a check mark on them'/ 

MR. CANALES: No, sir. I only photo-

I6 copied pages in the County records that reflected the 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

15 

employment of the people involved. In other words, I 

could have copied the whole book, but there were entries 

in there which had nothing to do with the employment 

of the•e individuals. 

MR. MALONEY: It doean't purport to be the 

entire payroll? 

MR. CANALES: No, no. Not at all. There 

la nothing sinister about that. The book is there 

avaU.able, and I am sure that Mr. Hinojosa would be more 
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than happy to go over it. We could pass it u~ here 

and you could check any entry that you want. It is 

continuous employment, as far as this particular book is 

concerned, ·J4nuary of '31 to the present date of '75. 

The recorda were xerox copied from there. The copies 

were made at the request of one of the Committee ~mbers 

so that they could bave copies of the individual entries, 

inatead of having to carry around a book, which had a 

lot of materiAl in it which they would not otherwise have 

bad any purpose to use. 

If tbe Committee would prefer we can xerox 

the whole book. 

CRAIRXAN HALE: That would apparently be 

unneceaaary, Mr. Claales. I think you have done a good 

job in provldina thia material. 

Q Mr. Hinojosa, you are the Assistant County 

Audltot of DlrM 1 County? 

A Yea, fU. I am. 

Q Do you atlll hold that poaition? 

A Yea, alt. 

Q How lona have you been Aeaietant County 

AwU.tor? 

A TWenty yeara, in Kay. 

Q And ere the maintenance of tbeae payroll 

reoo~da a pa1:t of your dutlu? 
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I' 
6 • I I. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

ll 

l3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 I, 
20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Are the records which you have there in the 

bound book typed the same way these sheets are tvpe:; ., 

A Yes, sir. 

Q The information is typed on it! 

A Yes, sir. 

Q These records are made monthly? 

A Yes. sir. Every month. Yes, sir. 

Q Are checks issued from these records, or are 

these records made from the checks? 

A No. We type the checks out of this payroll 

s WIIIIR r y • 

Q Who makes up this payroll summary here? 

A Myself and Mr. Ramon Olivera. 

Q You have some documentation which enables you 

' to deteraine whose name to put on here and how much to pay I 

them each month? 

A Well, unless they change in the Commissioners 

' I 
I 

CourtMtnutea. you know, we assume it's the same as the 

previous aonth. Because there is no change in the payroll~ 

in 30 days. unless they ~,ire new personnel or fire some-

body. we have to make changes. 

Q How do you know that they have employed someone? i 

A Uau81ly they have to write in the Minutes, in 

the Coamiaaionere Court Minutes. 

Q Do you receive some type of an official 
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II doc,:,.'.,, from oomeonc1 

2 i I 
I 

3 i 

I 
I 

6 

7 

8 

9 

I 

u 

d. 

14 

15 

17 

A I don't understand. 

Q For instance, supposing the County hires Mr. 

Jones to go to work, how do you know to put him on the 

payroll? 

A Usually they have to write in the Minutes, 

you know, when they meet every month, and hire them in 

the Minutes. Or, sometimes, I guess they just give us 

a notice or a piece of paper, you know, authorizing the-

Q That was my question. Do you receive anything 

in writing from anybody telling you to put somebody on 

the pa yro 11? 

Yes, air. 

Q Who is authorized to put people on the payroll? 

Well, especially the Commissioners, the County 

Q Do you gee a letter of an order of some kind 

18 evel:'y time they put someone on the payroll? 

19 A Not usually; sometimes verbally, or just by 

20 telephone, or in the Minutes, the Commissioners Court 

21 Minutes• 

22 Q The Commissioner would just pick up the phone 

23 and call you and tell you to put somebody on the payroll 

24 at a certain salary, and you would do it? 

25 A Well, actually, the Treasurer is the one that 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



li 
l! 

Hinojosa 3-49 ··-·----

should prepare the summary and they d-:J it that \vay. Yes, 

sir. 

Q How do you determine what the withholding tax 

• , is 1 

~ i A We have schedules there to compute the with-

6 \ holding tax, according to the number of dependents. 

i Q Somebody then must get a form W-4 signed by 

s the employee? 

9 A Yea, sir. That's correct. 

10 Q ta that your responsibility? 
' 

II It'a the Trea1urer'a responsibility, Mr. MAnuel'C. 

ll SolU. 

13 Q Are tboae recorda maintained in your office 

14 or in the Treasurer's Office? 

15 A The County Treasurer. 
' I 

16 

17 

Q The County Treasurer? 
I 

A Yea. sir. I 
I 

18 

19 

20 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I have no further questtonl 
Mr. Maloney? 

BY MR. MALO BEY 

21 Q Mr. Hinojosa, could you give me what some of 

22 these codea mean? I understand that it is prefaced by 

23 two. three. four and it's going to be a precinct, an 

24 a.ployee of a precinct. Is that correct? 

25 In this particular caae, this is the payroll 
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sUIDID8ry, the road and bridge. 10 is the Cotmty :ihop. 

110 is Precinct No, 1 and so forth. 

Q Okay. For ins ta nee, you said that TomS s 

• Elizondo was on the payroll on the first page as a 

s i; court bailiff? 

Q 

A 

Q 

10 

II Q 

Yes, air. 

la that what 600 is? 

Yes, air. 

That is charged to the court? 

In the general fund. Yea. sir. 

Ware there five court bailiffs then? On that 

12 firat paae. right under Mr. Elizondo, I see four others 

n that hlk•• the aaae-

14 No. air. We bave Mr. Arnulfo Guerra who is the 

15 Diatrict Attorney and then we bllve Mr. Lull Dram we s his 

16 Ale:Latant DA and Mr. Guerra'e aacretary.......- 600 means 

17 Che axpanaee for the District Attorney's Office. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

What h 602? 

602, that ia Aaalttant County Auditor. 

Aaat•tant County Auditor? 

Yea, sir. 

1 take it on line 13 on the first page, 

Octa•io Blnojoaa at $750 is you. Is that correct? 

A Tbat•• correct. Yea, atr. 
I 

I 
25 Q 1 notice back at one page I picked at random in [ 

I 
~------------------------------------J 
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April of '13, Octavio Hinojosa r..ade $301) a month a !:I 

Assistant County Auditor? 

A Yes, sir. That's correct. Yes, sir. 

'' Q When did you get your raise? 

A Well, I believe it was somt:!t:l.me in i\ugust, 1973, 

I• i! I waa raised to 500 and sometime about August of 1914, I t;Ot 

l
i a raiQae to 750. 

1 

s Do you handle the payment of accounts'! In otheri 
I . . 

9 1
1 
10rds 1 if someone submits a bill to the County, do you handle 

10 that also? 

II A Yes, sir. Yes, sir. 

12 Q If someone bas ordered some material for the 
I 

t' county-has ordered some materia 1 from someone, the County 1
, 

I 

t4 :I.& billed. How is that transaction covered by you? 

t5 A Well, we get the invoices or statements and 

16 

17 

process them and put them in plain jackets and 

them ~o Commissioners Court every 30 days. 

then present 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

They e:l.tb! r approve it or disapprove it? 

Yee ~ sir. 

Is that correct? 

Yes. 

Q What happens to their cla 1m jacket after it is 

tpproved or d:l.sapproved? 

A We give them a claim number and we write a 

l 5 check out of that claim, that jacket. 

Q What happens physically to that jacket that 
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has the invoices? 

2 j A I have them on file. 

3 I 
' 

Q You keep all of these as a matter of record? 
I 

-! \ f A Well, except some records that have been 
'i 

s j 1 1ubpoenaed by the Internal Revenue service in the lest 

6 two or three years. 

i 

8 

9 

Q 

Q 

How far back do these records go? 

Well, it depends on what records, you know. 

Let's just say that the County bought some 

1o ce .. nt end some posts and some wire in 1971, do you feel 

11 that you would have these recorda? 

12 A Yea, sir. 

13 Q The invoices? 

14 A Yes, sir. 

15 Q And you would have all of what has been sub-

16 poeued by ao .. ot:beJ:" authoX"lty? 

17 Correct. Yeat sir. 

18 Q After you respond to the subpoena, do you copy 

19 fo# :row recorda what bl s been given to the other 

20 au~¥ltJ1 or do you just phyelcally give thee everything 

21 you blye? 

22 :We don't give them anything. They just go 

23 tlafte aad pull out the claim• aad just tell the Cot•.nty 

24 Auclltot tbllt they will need tba t materia 1. I guess the 

25 fll!at tlae t.laey brought a aubpoena, a subpoena for certain 
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records, you know, but we don't keep--we don't ~now what 

claims are missing, you know. 

Q I'm sorry. I didn't understand that last. 

A If they took some claims out of the file, you 

know-- I know if they are miaaing, because 1 have a 

5 x 8 card where I've posted everything. But you go there 
I 

to the office and ask for a certain claim, you know, I 

can find it right away, if it's in the file. 

Q But if it didn't happen to be where it was 

supposed to be, do you have any record of where it is, 

1f it's gone? 

A No, 1 don 1 t. No, sir. 

Q The things that were subpoenaed from you, do 

you at 111 have a copy of the subpoena? 

A Well• that was back in 1972. I believe we have 

a copy 1D the office. Yes. 

Q Were you given any receipt for the things--

A No, sir. 

Q --that were subpoenaed? 

.A lfo, air. 

Q Thea it would be your teatillony thll t you have 

eveqthlaa lll your cuatody ae e record that bas not been 

,..,._.d '' aome lawful authority? 

A Y••• air. 

Q Did the subpoenas that you received direct you 
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to a,.cUf.c lteaa, or do they ask for •oa111thing in a 
I 

2 1! 1u.p aua'l fOI" lutaue, tbe year of 19711 

3 
lj A Well, co tell you the nutb, aoMU.aes we doa•t 

4 

6 

7 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

luaott •llat they •~• looklll& for. 'l'bey jU8t elk penataelon 

fte.J J•t a• c&l"outb tbe recorda end pull. out tht\ cla iu ... , ..... 

' q 

... au. ao. 

.. t .. •*• up for Jiy teat queatlon: Did they 

...., ... ia au juat take tbe l•p of a ,... .. or 8f.x ...... , 
q 

' 

, ••• au. The , ... 1972, they have eveJ:yt.btag. 

"-1 took tbe ,..# of 19721 

tea • IU. 'ltte o_,lete work1 1 All cla tau. 

-.a you MJ "r.u •llflece worka,•• wbat do you 

18 ... , hei'JCfaiD& at fat: a1 Wl"ftDU &Dd 'VOUOHl'l ere 

19 ......... , 

20 

21 • ._ • ..._.,clalaa. uo.,t MJM like tlal.a parl'oll a1.118118ry. 

22 we ac.f.ll 111ft f.t. 

H D. KALOBYc 'fllllak JOUt Ill'. Biaojosa • 

24 C&At:IIIAa 11ALS t K1r. S lr.ctk 1 

25 
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BY MR. SLACK 

Q Mr. Hinojosa. I notice in the back of this 

handout that we have. it says, Hfour of five pages,'' 

and each page bae places for 20 names, which would in­

dicate that there are approximately 100 employees of the 

6 County for road purposes. Is that about correct? Is 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

tbat how many employees Duval County has, approximately? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

lbe11eve it is more than that, sir. 

How 1'118ny would you have now? 

I would say around 234. 

2341 

Yea. 

Alao I see down here on January 31st. 1971 

entry, the last one in the handout. "Farmers NW Life 

Insurance Company," and then FNW Insurance" in the 

16 second colwan from the left. Ia till t insurance that •a 

17 peid on county employees? That must be what that 

18 entrJ ta. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

A Yea, sir. At the end of the payroll, we add the 

deductlODI and write a check on the insurance company. 

Then the county participatea with another percentage. 

Q 1 aee. The employee contributes and the county 

23 coatribueea to this insurance? 

24 

25 Q 

Yea, sir. 

Aad thia is a life insurance policy. Is that 

HICKMAN HEPORTING SERVICE 
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I I! whet it ia? 
I, 
I I , I 
! 

A This Farmers is for hospitalization. 

3 I 

4 I 
I 

Q For hospitalization? 

A Yea, sir. 

Q I see some members participate and some do not. 

6 Who d•termlnea whether they participate or not? 

i A Well, thil ie commerciAl insurance and the 

8 peopl• o.er 65 are excluded from the insurance. 

9 I tee. And they also had an opportunity, I 

10 euppose, to ¥olunteer whether they want to go on with it? 

II 

12 or aot. 

13 Q 

14 

I~ 

Yet, sir. They have a privilege of taking it 

They bad en option then? 

They blve en option. Yes. 

MR. SLACK: Tbenk you, air. I have no 

16 fur tbe r que at toaa, Kr. Cba :lriDII n • 

17 CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks? 

18 BT Mll. HEUDlliCI.S 

19 

20 

21 

22 

25 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

4 

Q 

Mr. Hinojosa. who ia George Zertuche? 

Georae Zertuche? 

., ... 
Be 11 ao a.,loY•• from Benavidea. 

Bow lcnaa 'baa he worked for Duval County? 

I don't .... an 14 ... air. 

la he any relation to these Zertuches that run 
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AUSTIN, TEXAS 



II 
I 

3 I 
I 

I 
~ !, 

5 i I 

7 

Hinojosa 3-57 

this store? 

A I don't know. No, sir. I couldn't tell you. 

I don't know. 

Q E-u-s-e-b-1-o Carrillo, Jr. Who is that? 

A 

Q 

He is from Benavides. 

What relation is he to Judge Carrillo? 

Well, I aa not too well acquainted with the 

8 Olrr111o family. I know Judge Carrillo, his brother, 

9 but I don't know if they are related with Mr. Octavio. 

10 Q He is an employee with ''3", is that correct? 

II A Eusebio Carrillo? 

12 Q This Carrillo I mentioned is an employee accord4 

13 in& to tbe1e records of Precinct 3. E-u-s-e-b-i-o, 

14 carrUlo B.? 

15 A Yea, 1ir. 

16 MR. CANALES: Eusebio. 

17 Q Euaebio? 

18 A Yea, sir. Precinct 3. 

19 Q Raul .P. Carrillo. What relation is he to 

zo Judge Carrillo? 

21 1 don't have an idea. t don't know the man. 

22 Q ls be aa employee of Precinct 3? 

23 A Yea, air. 

24 Q Andrea Carrillo? Wbat relation is he to Judge 

2~ Cel"l!lllo? 

• Bone. l don't know. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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i. 
Q Is be an e~ployee ~f Precinct 3? 

A Yes, sir. 

~ I i 
I. Q Notice on the very first page here, a payment 

J' to 0. P. Carrillo, of $100. It is marked "600-A." \vhat 

s I i ia tba t1 

6 I i I believe this is a fee they get for juvenile 

7 aervlcea for the county. 

8 Q Juvenile services? 

9 Yea 1 air. 

10 Q I couldn't find it in the rest of the book. 

II 'llaeae an exaerptl, I believe from the book. 

12 MR. CAKALES t Yea, they are. 

13 

14 Q Are you !lalliar with bow they handle their 

15 foo4 pa,aeata dOWD there where the county more or leas 

16 aNata tlae io4laent to buy their food? 

17 D. CAULKS: May I give him these? 

1s Are JOU fald.Uar with these ty-pe of aU.pa? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

' • 
q 

A 

23 ....... 

24 

W.•J.d 1011 ._alne thoae items, please. slr? 

We ctoa• t uve th•. 

kl :rou faaf.U.a r with thoae? 

••• elr. 1 have never seen theae ordera 

lte11; 4o you kaov what they are? 

Well, 1 '-laS.. they ate for the grocery store 
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jl 
/ : where they buy the-

il Q Do you recognize the initials or t:he signature 
3 ! on them? 

A No, sir. 

Q What is the custom the county uses in making 

their food donations or payments for food for the 

indigent? 

A Well they have, Mrs. Elvira de Leon, she is the 

Director of the Welfare Department--

Q What is her name? 

A Elvira de Leon. I guess whoever needs not only 

grocer lea, but doctor or medica 1 care, or medicine--

~ All right. Is she the one that issues these 

alipl end they take it to the different merchants? 

A Mo. Mrs. de Leon uses another type of 

e ut bor bat ion. 

Q Wbo laaues this type of slip? 

A I bave never seen those slips of paper before. 

I doll' t 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

tmow what they are. 

Bow long have you been employed there, 

Twenty years. 

.Twenty year a? 

Yea, sir. 

You heYe never aeen that used before? 

No, sir. No, air. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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- · Store? 

A Well-

MR. CANALES: I think I can refresh his 

memory. I have passed to the Committee certified copies 
l: 

6 i 1 of what payment record cards duly kept in the usual 

i course which he, himself, baa certified and brought up. 

s It ian 1 t in one of those folders. If you would 1 ike to 

9 ask him any questions on them, and these are the ones 

10 tbat I first handed out to the Committee. 

II Q Have you ever received any 1nvo1cea from the 

12 Zertuche'• General Store, or vbatever the name is? 

13 A Well, I imagine so :l.n the prior years. If I 

14 have a record, it b that we actually received payments 

15 or :l.a.o:l.cee an4 made out checks. Yea, air. 

16 Q 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 A 

Q 

21 

22 Q 

How long have you Uved in Duval County? 

All my U.fe. 

W.ere 11 the Zertuche General Store? 

1 don•t know. s1r. 

lave you ever sean 1t7 

llo, au. 
Dida't you think :l.t unuaual to receive invoices 

23 ~~· a a tore t'ha t you bed never ·seen? 

24 ·~· I don't thiak ao, dr, beca.uee this place 

25 u la leMYl4ea and I eeldora ao to Beaavf.dee. 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q So, would that indicate that these other 

Comaiaeioaera from these other precincts knew that 

4 Zertuche General Store existed? 

A Well, it looks like it, because they approved 

6 those ela ilas in open court. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

Q 

Q 

How far is san Diego from Benavides? 

Sixteen milea. 

Sixteen llliles? 

Sixteen. Yea 1 air. 

Do you have any relatives over there? 

&elAtivea in Benavides? 

Yea, au. 
I aipt have a coua1n or two there. 

Do 1 un4e~atand you correctly that you hardly 

eYer so the~• to aeaav1dea7 

Q 

COUatJ'l 

A 

~t1 a co~rect. Yea. 

Sixteen .tlea. Bow long have you lived in the 

Oh 1 alitout, fo~ ••oept eight yeara. I have 

So you have lived there juat about all of 

JOUI" llfe? 

Q 

,. ... 
AM yev. aever so over to Beaavidea at all? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A Well, usually I go-- I don't even live in 

san Dieso. I 11•• out of San Diego six miles. I work 

3 in san Dieao. 

4 Q You live wbere1 I didn't understand you. I'm 

sorry. 

6 A I live in San Diego and I seldom go to 

7 Benavides. I don't see why I should go to Benavides. 

8 I bave no buelneu over there. 

9 Q 

10 you know--

Jl 

12 Q 

A little town sixteen miles away, it seems 

W.ll, I misht pass throush there once in while. 

Then after this Zertuche then. there is 

B BeMviAtea Cedar Poet. Do you kraow wb:o tMt balonss to? 

14 No, I doD't know. I've sot some claiu for 

15 it, t!Ht Beaavldaa Cedar Poet, but 1 don 1 t kDOW who owu.s 

16 ~-

17 Q Well, you've paid aevenl thouaand dollars, 

18 alaout $17,000 or $18,000 in 1 747 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• 
Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Yel, air. We peld a lot of clatu. Yes, au. 

You doa't kaow whl.t that wa for? 

Bo, atr. I don't. 

Well, can you look at thole code raumbers? 

Ob, 1 kDow What they .. re for. Yal, 1ir. 

Wlllt were they fft'7 

Be•vldea cedar Poet. I have ou here for 
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Precinct 1, for fencing material, posts. 

Q If you look at those for Benavides Cedar Post, 

3 they all atart with different numbera. 100. 200, 300, of 

4 couree thoaa are all precincts 1 but the la at d i&its ere 

all 23. 

6 A Yef, 23. That's the County Shop. 

7 Q 4.23 and 323? 

8 A For the precincts. 

9 Q 23 is for wb.a t? 

10 A That 'a juet plain County Shop. That is charged 

11 to the County Shop; not to the-- They have appropriations 

12 to t'e CoURty Shop. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

1 aaa not lllll kina lllylal f clear • I 'a a orr y • 

223, vblt is that to? 

That :La Hr. lUl• J~n Rell1 1 Prec:l.llct Ho. 2. 

Wbat :La tbat fort 

ror fenctna. poata, 

Would it be fair to aey that in 19~ then, the 

County w.Qt :Lato an extensive feactas operatioa? 

Q 

It look• that way. 

Who OWDed that place? Do you know? 

Jlo, 1 don't. 

Q than Be'DIIvides Iapl.,..at COIIp&ny. aaain all 

theae dl£fereRt prectncta cblrae to that company? And 

you •oa't kaGW who owaed tbltf 
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A Bo, I don't. No, 11r. 

Q Do you know where tbe Duval County Water Diltric:t 

111 The Office? 

A The Duwl County CotUervation and Reclaution'l 

Q Yea, a b. 

6 A It'a in San Diego. 

7 Q Juat the Duval County Water Diatrict? 

8 A Tbat'• the aaae office. Thla •in office 11 

9 ill san Diaao. 

10 Q Do they have aa office over there ill Benavidea? 

II A The1 a1&bt bave, but the main offioa, it'a ia 

12 sa a Dleao. 

Q 

14 Coullq, do 1011 know hia'l 

15 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

" 

Rodolfo Coullna'l 

Yel. 

1 1111n tala for two or three 1ear1 • I gueu. No 

II fe~ e ftrJ loq tiMo 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q You cloo • t kaaw that he cnmed the BeMvldea 

I 1ure don't. Bo, 1ir. 

K&. CHAVEZ: Tba t 1 1 all I baw. 

CUDIIAW BALl: 'lbaak JOU1 Kr. Cllllw•. 

Hr. B.laoJo•, let the Chair Ilk JCN ODe 01' two 

ota.• •••tloea, •• a ra1ult of ••e of the ••••r• JOU 
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a-ve a lllOJHDt a go. 

BY CIL\IRM.AH HALE 

Q In answer to one queation, you made a statement 

4 tbat no claima bad been paid since April. Why have no 

clalae been paid since April? 

6 Well. one of the reasons is that the depository 

1 bank ln san Diego canceled au of our sccounts in the 

s bank end vrot' a ceahier 1 a check and took it upata ire 

9 to dae Dlltrict Clerk. That vas 101ae time on the 29th of 

10 April, juat about the time we wue ready to pay the 

u people. !bat' a one of the ruaona, because they claim 

12 they doa•t kaow Who the leaally constituted Commieaionere 

13 eocc u rf.aht now. 
14 Q Vby do they not know vho the leaally conatl-

15 tuted Coaudtelonert CoUl't ta? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Well, Hr. Archer Parr wee ousted fraa office 

Sa ICIII'oh. eo• tt.e ill March, and Mr. Daatel 'tobin vae 

a,.t.ated CoUDty Jud&e eo• tilla about the uae data, I 

·-·· Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Who ouated Archer Parr as County Judae? 

D1etrf.ct Judge o. P. carrUlo. 

Who appointed the new county Jud&e? 

J\ljfaa carrillo. 

Wal'e aay of tbe coaattetooera ousted? 

Well. J.et 1 a •••- I •• ooafueri an. Dllltiel 
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Tobin •• the Commies ioner in Precinct i. He is now the i 

County Judaa. Manuel .Alliio:fil was appoin~ad to reJ.olace 

Daniel Tobtn. 
' 

Then the other court met with Archer and--well~ 

It 'a a coapliceted matter- (Laughter.) Th~y appointed \ 

6 Antonio Garcia to be Commiweionar of PrGcinct 1. I can't 

7 even recall who the othliir guy waw. 

8 HR. CAUALES: ill.lr. Chairm&n? 

9 CHAlRHAW HALE: well, tbat'a all right. 

10 Q There vera, 1n other worda, Judge Carrillo 

II oWlted l.,.ral of the offteials :Ln March or April? 

ll Actually. he ousteu the County Judg~ and appoin eo 
13 Daalel Tobia Coaaty Judae. 

14 Q Df.c1 he oat officials :l.a any other sovemmental 

~~ aa••f• otlaer tbiUl tbe coUilty aovei'Diallllt'l 

16 1 uaderataad aoaa •IIbera of the acbool board 

18 Q loW IMUt the Wlltll' Dlltrlot'l 

19 Jot tlw Water Distl'lat, tbat I know. 

20 Q So that in Aps-ll thea. the baak took 411 the 

21 aoaey out of you aoeOUAtl aDd put iC tu a atUhier 1 
• 

22 check aad delivered it to tiM Dlatri.ct Cle&-k? 

24 

25 

Q 

.. 

Yel 1 d.r. 

11 tbat correct? 

TMt'a ooneat • 
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Q Do you know what tha District Cl~rk did with 

the check? 

3 j A Well, I am not sure, but I understand they took 
I 

it back for safekeeping at the same depoaito~y bank, in a 

tru•t fund, I guess. 

6 Q And no checks on the county funds bQve been 

111ued a:S.noe tbat tiile? 

8 Ho, &S.r. 

9 Q Tile employees Mlve not been paid sinct:~ that 

10 t:tae? 

II 

12 accully. 

Q l believe Ms. Weddington asked the question to 

14 you attout the coaty vah1clea. Do you have a list of all 

u of the eoUDtJ vehiclae. all vahiolea that the coWlty owns 

16 :I.D yow office? 

17 We doa• t hive a coaplete 11.'1\ftntory, but we have 

1a ~~e~ec--...ept for M)'he old equipment tba t ia jUAked-but 

19 M ._.. • llatl of laftatory • aot a c01aplet-ct imrentory. 

20 q Cou14 you provide tbla Coaaittee with a certlfie 

21 c.,, of tlae ....,.tory of_ coUDty vehicles aocoa:4iaa to the 

22 r•oon• ot youz o!fi.D t 

23 

25 l •uW like to bave aa 1Dve•tory oi all county 
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i owned equipment~ mobile equipment. 
I 

A ... _WII can tura:i.Jil~ ~be. Committee a copy. Yes • s :lr. 
1 

7 

Q We would appreciate it. 

How, do you a leo ba ve an inventory of a 11 

vebiclea which the county is renting? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q 

8 those every aonth, do you nat? 

9 A Yee, sir. 

10 Q On tnoae. Could you ~lao provide us with an 

11 ia'Matory of thoae, of all vehicles which the c~nty ia 

12 nn recatt.aa? 

13 

14 

·~ 
16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Or bae rented in the peat two or thl'ee years? 

We could do cbat. Yes, au. 

lf you would provide ue wt.th tboee tnventort.ea, 

it would be ao•t helpful, 

CIIAlllii.AN BALE: Are there other quae etona 

of thl1 wttaeaa? 

MS. WEDD:tRTOIU 

BY MS • WEDDllfftOII 

Q You ta1d that those people paid by clailla; tbat 

23 for thole peeple who a 1:'8 potld by o 1a lJu, yo\1 do aot deduct 

24 aaytht.as froa thei~ c~ckl? 

25 lo, •'••· 
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[I Q Do you ever get them to sign a W-2 or W-4 form 

11 of any kind? 
I: 

I i I 
II 

A Not these people; just people hired in the 

11 regular summary • 
. I 

s I i Q Do you have any records of any kind that 1:ould 

6 verify a signature on a check issued to someone on tl 

claim, rather than regular employment? 

8 A Well, I guess when they write a cLaim for 

9 payment, you mean? 

10 Q Yes. When you have a claim for payment, does 

11 the employee sign that claim? 

J 2 A Sometimes they bring the claim already written, 

13 but the claimee should sign it. 

14 Q Do the Commiesioners sometimes just submit 
I 

15 11ke they do on regular employees information ebout paying! 

16 

17 

18 

19 

!0 

21 

24 

I 
' such and such a name, so much this month, and no written 

elaia 11 ever made, or is there always a written claim? 

A There b always a written claim on those 1:la tms. 

They have to sign it. 

Q When you pay bills from businesses, do you mail 

thoae to the businesses, or are those also given to the 

COIUiliaaioner? 

A 

go out of 

Q 

1 mail all bills like utilities and supplies tbar 

town 1 to Alice, Corpus, or san Antonio. 

To the Zertuche Geaeral Store, would you mail 

HICKMAN f-IEPORTING SERVICE 
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those, or would you have given that to someone? i 
A Usually, the County Commission~rs take those I 

cllecks to local busineeaea and personnel that they I 
I 

I 
I 

e•ployed. 

Q So for bua:l.nessee located in one of the prec1nctJ, 
I 

you would probably give the ch~ck for tbat business to th~ : 6 

Collllllislioa.er? 

8 Yea, air. 

9 MS. WE~DtNGTON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

10 CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there any further 

11 quaatioaa? 

12 Mr. Hendrtcka? 

13 BY MR. IERDlliCKS 

14 Q Under Code 10, which you say the t :1G "Shop." Ia 

15 that correct? 

16 A 'fee. eir. 

17 Q Does each Precinct hive a ahop? 

18 A Ill theb' respective precincts? 

19 Q , ... 
20 A I believe they have not a very big place. I 

21 gueaa, becauae they have the maLa shop in san Diego. 

22 Q What I as apeakina of Mr. Hinojosa 1 if Cleofas 

23 aoa.zales eaya he worked at th:la l'al'll end Bllloh Store which 

24 was alto,.. .. Preclact 3 kept their equ:lpMnt 1 would he be 

25 c1aad:fied •• ••Shop" ..,loyee? 

A I t.aglna be could be. Yea, alr. 
HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Q Have you ever been on Judge o. P. carrillo's 

ranch or ••1 of hia ranches? 

A Ro, air. 

Q Juat one or two questions about tbe payment 

record cards. Thla pertAins to Benavides Implement and 

6 Hardware Company. Notice here on 7/17/73, warrant No. 

c-1439 1 tbere were $2,132.67 paid to th1s ~~vides 

8 

9 

Iaple8eat aad Blr~re Company under Code 311. What does 

chat _..n? 

10 Let's see. 1 1m loat. Pardon me. 1 came to 

II 

12 Q All •iaht. card B-2 and start with 6/12/73. 

u D. CANALES~ What claim nuaber ia it, Mr. 

14 &.eG4b 1c1u 1 

15 

16 

17 

18 Q 

19 af 1-.z-. 

20 

21 

25 Q 

K&. BENDRICKS: D-1361. No. #1439. 

311. 

311 ia lU!Uer alld harch.are for Precillct No. 3. 

OD 7/17/731 Precinct 3 bought $2 11S2.67 worth 

lt looks tbat way. Yea. sir. 

GolD& rlaht don the U.ae there on Claim Ro. 

That'• 4111 Ttaac'e rreciaot 4, ltaber and bard 

ao. Rlaht above tblt. tbat $2,:uo.ts. It .. ,, 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN. TEXAS 



Hinojosa 3-109 

! I 
-· -------, 

329 on it. Wha t ia that 1 
I I 

! t 

A That is equipment renta 1 like tra etor or a 

3 1 I truck hire, or renta 1. ; ; 
; 

; I Q Is tht t Precinct 3 a lao? 

A Precinct 3. Yes, sir. 
I I 

(, 1 I Q August the 29th of '73 he rented $2,350.95 

' worth of tractors? 

8 A Yea, sir. 

9 Q I believe you said 311 was lumber? 

10 A Lwaber and hardware. Yes, eir. 

II Q Then again on October the 4th, Precinct 3 

12 bouaht $2,S23.64 worth of lumb4r, didn't it? 

13 Yea, sir. 

14 Q And then they rented equipment again on 

1s Hoveaber the 2nd and paid $1,956.29 for it, didn't 

16 they, Pree:l.nct 3? 

17 Yea, air. 

18 Q Then on November the 19th, in an amount of 

19 $2,824.24, there 1a a 314. What 18 that? 

20 

21 Q Boards? 

22 Parta and 1:epatre. 

23 Q 'lha t' a Precinct 3 also? 

Yea, air. 

25 Q Thea on 12/18 there's $2,522.77. That 18 marked 
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fl 323. What did you say that was? 

A Fencing material like barbed wire and maybe 

1 : 1 posts. 

Q Just glancing over that, why does it look 

like Precinct 3 is buying about two or three times as 

I> ! : much equipment and lumber and fencing as all thiiOl rest 

of the precincts? 

8 

I
I I 

9 I 

I 
10 

II 

12 

13 

14 I 
I~ 

16 I 
17 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

A 

I don't know. 

Does it appear that way to you, sir? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. HENDRICKS: I believe that's all I 

bllva, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Donaldson? 

BY MR. DONALDSON 

Q A couple of quick questions. I hope nobody 

baa already aaked th:l.a. If it's repetitious, just let 

me know: What is Code CO? 

A Where is that 1 

Q I am looking at two warrants to Farm and Ranch 

~o Supply. They are on the same page e s the claims paid to 

21 Roberto Elizondo in your book there. 

22 CHAIRMAN H.ALE: 1 believe the page nWilbers 

23 ere different on the copies he has. 

Q That' a a $3,500 warrant paid to Farm and Ranch 

1~ Supply and it 1 s marked ~tode CO." 
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A Kenneth Odam from Alice. 

Q Thank you. Have you ev~r consulted Judge 

o. P. carrillo for legal advice? 

A Ro, air. 

MR. DONALDSON: Okay. Thank you.. 

CHAIRliAN RALE: Are the:ce furtrw~ 

questions? 

Fine. rnank you very much. 

MR. CANALES: I have some. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Okay. You hiiive some more? 

Mr. canales. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CANALES 

Q Mr. Hinojosa, who do you work for? 

A Mr. Walter Meek. 

Q What 11 hie position, Mr. Hinojosa? 

A County Auditor. 

Q 11 he an elected officiAl? 

A Mr. Meek is appointed by the District Judge. 

Q Then you indirectly are working for the Judge 

as you work for somebody who is directly appointed by 

blm? 

A I guess you can ca 11 it that • Indirectly I 

work for hill. 
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the Judge? 

A 

Q 

Hinojosa. 

this time. 

Hinojosa - redirect 3-113 

Do you have any personal animosity against 

No. I don 1 t have any against Judge Carrillo. 

I would like to ask you one more qu~stion, Mr. 

I would remind you t~"\Q t you are under oath at 

I would direct your attention to ~he time when 

you left the County Courthouse with the records that 

10 are presently on the desk there in front of you. Did 

II you have occasion to encounter Kr. RQmiro CQrrillo, the 

I2 brother of Judge 0. P. carrillo? 

., 

1.1 A Mr. Ramiro carriUo was in the County Auditor's 

I4 Office. Yes, air. 

I~ Q Is that the office where you work? 

I6 A Yea, air. It is. 

I7 Q Did you have any conversation• with him? 

I8 A Well, he just told me that I could not bring an 

I9 recorda to this Committee, becauae I had no subpoena. 

!0 Q He told you not to bring these records as you 

21 were not subpoenaed 'l 

22 

23 Q Did Mr. 14miro carrillo use any ttu:eaten :lng or 

21 vulgar lanauage in direct1n& you not to brina these 

!~ recordl7 And I would remind you that you an under oath? 
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Hinojosa - redirect 3-114 

A Not to my knowledge. He didn't use any 

abuaive language or anything, 

Q An4 he did not threaten you? 

A No
1
t sir. 

Q J5ut he told you that you should not bring these: 

records up here? 

A Be told me that I could not take any records 

out of the courthouse without & subpoena, public records, 

MR. CANALES: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there further questions 

of tbis w1tneea? 

Mr. Maloney? 

BY Mil. MALONEY 

Q Mr. Hiuojosa, what was the bank that was your 

15 depoeitory? 

16 The Firat State Bank of san Diego. 

17 Q How lons has that been your depository? All 

1s durlna your terra? 

19 A 

20 in the 

21 Q 

2l A 

23 Q 

A 

Q 

Well, eince it was organized, I guess, back 

so•a, the 1950's. 

How many banks ere in san Diego? 

That'• the only bank. 

Do you know how many 'are. in Duval 

There ia another bank in Freer. 

In where'/ 
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I 'I A Freer, Texas. 

I' Q Freer. 

, I 
, I A Tbat 1 s in Duval County. 
'I 

'I 
I I 1 

i Did you ever use the Firat State Bank and Q 

Trust Company in Rio Grande City? 
i i 

6 ' I 

I 
A No. air. Not the County; not Duv•l County. 

Q Do you know who the princi?il atockholdera are 

s of the bank in san Diego? 

9 A Nell• I understand t~t Mr. Harris Pender from 

10 Tyler, Texas ia the main stockholder, and- I can 1 t 

11 race 11 the name of the reat of the atockhol<i~rs or 

12 directors. 

B MR. MALONEY: Tbank you. 

14 j CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there any further 

15 queatlona 'l 

16 (No naponee.) 

~~ CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you very such, Mr. 

18 BlDOjiaU • 

19 HR. DOMALDSOJI: Could I ask one more quest1 n. 

!0 CHAIRMAN BALE: Mr. Donaldson bas a queatl n. 

21 Bt MR. DOIIALDSOlf 

22 Q I no~ice through here there are several 

23 •rreata tllat ware payaen~• to inaurance coapaniel. 

!4 Do you ha.a aoae kind of inauranca on employees 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q Do you know whether or not any of thoue tnsuranc4 
I 

payments have been paid to Richmond Credit Life Insurance 1 ! 

A Wbl t company is the t, air 1 

Q Richmond Credit Life Insurance Company? 

A No. 

MR. DONALDSON: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Is that all, Mr. 

Dooaldson? 

MR. DONALDSON: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you, Mr. Hinojosa, 

for your attendance here this evening. 

(The witness, Mr. Octevio Hinojosa, was excused. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Chair is going to 

reed into the record at this point--and I poaaibly should 

blva done it NrU.er: We have certificates here from the 

Secretary of State of the State of Texas concerning o. P. 

cerrillo, which shows that he was elected to the office of 

Couaty Attorney of Duval County in November 1960; qualifie 

for office on .January 1, 1961 and served in that capacity 

UDtf.l be reaigaed on January 30, 1970. 

The recorda of the secretary of State also show 

that o. P. Clrrillo took the Olth of Office as District 

Judae of the 229th Judicial District on Jlnuaty 2. 1971, 

ancl aervad a four-year term and took a second oath of 
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Office as Judge of the 229th Diotrict Court on January 1,: 

1975. 

l a~ going to ask the Clerk tonight to get 

the photocopies of these instruments so that we can 

put them in the record as exhibits. We will do that 

at our next meeting. 

Mr. Canales, do you ~nt to call your next 
I 
' 

Chiid . .:ma<l, I would like t~[ 
inquire of the Committee if they would like to have 

witness? 

MR. CANALES : l"Ir. 

tbeae certified copies entered into evidence or the 

teati.Jaony here? 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I would like to get photo-

eopiea of those, e set of photocopies for every member 

of tbe Committee, if we might. 

Are those the two pamphlets that you laid out? 

MR. CANALES: These two particular document 

the C~ttee bas. Those certified copies, the Committee 

baa aot received. 

I 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I would like to have the 

Clerk take th:l.a, if we may ba'U'e it • and 'ben-een aow and 

the A .. t aeetiaa, let's get a set of these, certified 

coptea for every IUIIlbar of the CoJUiittee-aot "certified.' 

but photocopies of all the records here. 
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HR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, members of the ! 

Committee, at this time I am going to call Mr. M. K. Berea~ 

vho is an attorney from Freer. Texas, and return at a ! 

later date to the point that we are discussing right 

now relating to county employments and misappropriations 

6 of funds. 

At this time I will in~roduce M~. B~xcaw who 

8 will testify before this Com~it~ee to o££icidl uiaconduct 

9 and to political oppression which has occurred since 

10 March 19th, I believe, of 1975, at which time Judge o. P. 

11 Carrillo made a statement to the "Corpus Christi Caller" 

12 newspaper. We have the copies of the newspaper here fo-

13 the Collllllittee's scrutiny. 

14 He made a statement in there in which he 

15 stated publicly that he was making a split with the 

l6 political party of the late George B. Parr. On that 

17 date, or two or three days subsequent to that date, the 

18 turmoil which has presently been in the newspapers 

19 regarding removals, appointments, re-removals and 

m re-appointments, resulting in two different school 

21 boards in Benavides, Texas, one appointed by the District 

22 Judge, one elected, and the occasion in Duval County 

23 where they had two Commissioners Courts, one appointed 

~4 by the Judge and the other one the elected one. Mr. 

15 Bercaw will begin with a history to tie this in, to try 
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to present to the Committee the point at which the 

relationship began between a Mr. Clinton Manges of 

Freer, Texas, and Judge 0. P. Carrillo. He will present 

evidence and have certified copies of a transcript of a 

trial in which Judge 0. P. Carrillo was removed from 

the case because of his personal inter~st in th~ case. 

Mr. Bercaw will indicate after his 

introductry remarks, historical remarks in thi~ 

particular case, the tie-ins of these politic~l ~eplace-

menta, removals and re-replacements and re-removals to 

that history and to the relationship which presently 

exists between Mr. Clinton Manges and Judge 0. P. 

Carrillo. 

At thie time, Mr. Chairman, I would like to 

call Mr. M. X. Bercaw, 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Bercaw is an attorney 

at Frear, Texas. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you. 

Mr. Bercaw, we're delighted to have you here 

and appreciate your attendance. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Bercaw, have you got 

that newspaper clipping in which Judge Carrillo made the 

statement that be was splitting? 

MR. BERCAW: I think I have documentary 
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evi~ence for this Committee that I will present that 

will be of interest to this Commit~ee in regards to 

things that you may be interested in, some historic--

CHAIRMAN HALE: If you will wait iust a 

minute, Mr. Bercaw, we'll get to it. We can't get 

ahead of the Court Reporter here. 

Mr. Bercaw, since you're an attorney, this is 

s probably unnecessary, but out of a super-abundance of 

9 precaution let me say to you it's my duty to you as 

10 Chairman to advise you of your rights with reference to 

11 your testimony. You will be sworn to tell the truth and 

12 your failure to do so could subject you to a prosecution 

13 for perjury. 

14 After you have completed your statement members 

IS of the Committee may ask questions concerning your 

16 testimony. You must answer these questions truthfully 

1~ and your refusal to do so could subject you to punish-

18 ment for contempt. 

19 You can refuse to answer questions only on 

20 the ground that such answers might incriminate you or 

21 tend to incriminate you in some way. You are privileged 

22 to have an attorney of your selection sit with and 

23 advise you as to your answers if you desire. The Chair 

~4 will attempt to protect your rights at all times. 

2~ Do you understand the advice I have given you? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



6 

I 

I 
II 

I! 
'' I 

sworn. 

MR. BERCAW: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are you ready to testify? 

MR. BERCAW: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Would you stand and be 

(The witness was sworn at this time by 

the Chairman.) 

8 

9 MR. M. K. BERCAW, JR. 

1o was called as a witness by the Author and, having been 

11 duly sworn, testified as follows: 

12 CHAIRMAN HALE: For the record, would you I 
13 please state your name and your mailing address. 

14 A My name is M. K. Bercaw, Jr. I'm an attorney 

15 in Freer, P. 0. Box 179. 

16 CHAIRMAN HALE: All right. You may pro-

17 ceed with whatever statement you care to make, Mr. 

18 Bercaw, either on your own or on questions from Mr. 

19 Canales. 

20 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

21 BY MR. CANALES 

22 Q Mr. Bercaw, I would like to call your attention 

23 to events which occurred-- I'm not completely cognizant 

24 of the year, but I'm sure you are; you have documentary 

25 proof in your possession, certified copies of transcripts 
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et cetera. I would like you to relate to this Committee 

2 1 the events of a trial in which Judge o. P. Carrillo 

3 1· was sitting as judge. Mr. Jim Bates • James S. Bates, I 

believe, from Edinburg, Texas, former Senator of the 

State of Texas, the State House, was in that proceeding, 

I believe, a receiver appointed by District Judge 0. P. 6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Carrillo in which Mr. Clinton Manges was the plaintiff. 

Would you please relate the testimony or the pertinent 

facts which you think this Committee should hear in 

that particular regard. 

A Mr. Chairman, Committee members, I have, and 

have bad for a very short period of time, in my 

poaaeeaion a motion in Cause Number 3953, Clinton Manges 

va. M. A. Guerra, et al, in the District Court of the 

229tb Judicial District, Starr County, Texas, motion 

for disqualificatio~ or accuaen, of Judge Carrillo, 

addressed to the Judge. It is lengthy. I have it here 

for the Coaaittee, and would like to submit this to the 

Committee for whatever purpose they would like to have 

in regard to the motion. I have a second supplemental 

motion for dilqualification. 

May it please the Committee, I would like to, 

from a Statement of Pacta--and this is a xerox copy of 

the Statement of Facta in this ca•e--explain who was 

invol•ed as attorney•. accordtna to the Statement of 
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Facts, which I just read Sunday. 

For appearances for the attorneys for the 

plaintiff were the firm of Kampmann, Church, Burns and 

Brenan of San Antonio, Mr. William c. Church. 

For the defendants, the firm of Smith, 

Mcilheran, McKinney and Y~rbrough of Weslaco by Mr. 

Garland F. Smith, and Nr. :tviicha..al McKinney. And they 

were the ones who prepared thes~. 

Q Mr. Bercaw, may I interrupt you. If you 

thiak that it would be too lengthy to read these, would 

you please summarize the contents of these motions for 

the Committee? 

A I thought I would do that after I explained 

what I bad here in my possession for you and for your 

consideration and examination. 

Then I have a brief filed on behalf of the 

defendaatl by Mr. Garland Smith, and I have an order 

on motion for disqualification of judge which is signed 

by Judae Ha~ .. s Smith, who was the presiding judge in 

the Jud1o1al Di1trlct in which the 229th was there, and 

Judse Saltb was the judge who heard this disqualification 

from which tbl1 Statement of Facts was made. 

This Statement of Pacts is lengthy. I'm not 

24 faalllar with the details of the case other than what I 

25 
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it baa a relative bearing on things that are yet to 

come here, and they had meetings, according to the 

Statement of Fact, and according to Judge Smith's Order 

and I think this might be in order to bring you up to 

date in how this came about. This motion was filed and 

Judge Almi~who was the presiaing judge of that Judicial 

District, appointed Judge Smith on Febru~ry 5~ 1973, 

to bear this Motion for Disqualification. 

The first hearing was held on February 20, 

10 1973, the next one on March 30, 1973. On April 23, 

II 

12 

ll 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

1973, and at the conclusion there were some more 

movements and motions and so forth and the Judge entered 

hit order on the 21st day of May, 1973. 

Now, this Statement of Facta, as I state, is a 

photocopy, but it does bear the--on the last page--the 

signature of the Clerk--excuse me--the reporter, who 

took thia, M:a:. D. A. Dresar• I guess it is. It's 

D-a-E-S-A-R. Official Reporter, 93rd Judicial District, 

Hidalgo County. 

To summarize this thing rapidly for the 

essence of time, and again historic only, I would read 

from the record at page 338 of the Statement of Facts, 

and I quote: 

"THE COURT: Well, gelltlemen, it is kind of 

hard for a Judge to make thl1 decision regardins 
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a fellow judge, but H: ill the opinion of the 

Court that Sucige C~rrillo is cii~qualifled 

as of--well, say the lst oi February, 1971. 

I don't want my ruling in any wise to prejudice 

the rights of any of the parties or reflect on 

anyone, but I f~el that the prowl~cuoua---Judge 

Carrillo, I think. h"s oe~n ho~est. I cion't 

think be feela he is disqualified or has done 

anything wrong. But the f~ct remains that the 

key, unquestionably, the negoti•tions with 

124 

reference to the sale of tbe--o~ t~anQier of the 

house and lot in Benavides took pl~ew Qfter, 

that is, it originally took pl~ce before he 

want into office, and was finally consummated 

after he was in office. 

Also, there was a lease on a number of 

acre• of laQd-- I don't know how many acres--you 

might aay a free lease for a short period of 

time-- I don't remember how long--which would 

have amounted to a gift. Then the lease on 

aoae five or a:Lx thousand acres of land at a 

price of $5,000 per year, for three years, 

payable at the end of the term, and alao for the 

right of Mr. Manges to terminate at any time he 

wished • would be a,· f:l.aana ial · intere at that would 
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go with this case. It would be expensive for 

him to move his cattle and he would h£ve to pay 

up what he was owing on the lease at that time. 

Alao, Mr. Manges is by far the greatest 

controlling atockh~lder of the bank. And the 

appointment as a director would have oeen a 

financial interest co him, evaa tnou6h bmall 

in comparison with the amounts involved i~ this 

lawsuit.. And the fact that he, Mr.--that the 

bank, in which the litigant, Mr. Manges, owned 

possibly three-qua~ters interest in it, by far 

the controlling interest, was making loans to 

him up to two or three hundred thousand dollars. 

Aa I recall, one of the notes for two or 

three hundred thousand dollars was payable in 

one year, and the fact that the note could 

easily be demanded to be paid at maturity or 

extended at the will of Mr. Manges. 

All of these things and other matters 

are,like the sword of Damocles, hanging over the 

head of the Judge by a thin hair. I don't 

see how a person in that perdicament could 

possibly render an impartial judsment. I 

couldn't. It'• bad. But this is a matter 

that can be raised at any time. It could be 
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raised after judgment. and it would have to be 
I' 

11 :::~ all over agalo. I< would be Ju•t wlped 

4 If you have another judge hear it, he 
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could go over this matter and vendicate the 

decisions of Judg~ C&r~ilio» ~i thst is 

correct, or ra~der wh~~ever jud6ment is correct. 

to make any rulings that ~ould in any wise he 

construed as either ratifying and confirming 

or the opposite, holding that there was anything 

unjust. 

In my opinion, in other words, what I'm 

laying is I am not accusiQ3, no; that's not 

exactly the word. I don't mean to hold any of 

hil decl•iona ~re not correct. I have no ~ay 

of knowina that. The fact that they were correct 

or not correct, in my opinion, does not touch 

the queation of disqualification. It goes to 

the root of our system itself. 

Our courts are under pressure and subject to 

cr1t1c1am on many thtnas that are unjust. Our 

courts are the very foundation of our system of 

society. Aad if our court• become corrupt then 

tbere 11 no ju•tlce in the land. And where there 
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is no justice in the land, ~he only recourse is 

revolution and bloodshedi ~nd th~n all people 

suffer. 

We, as judges, must, like Caesar's wife, be 

above and beyond reproach. It is hard enough to 

render justice and m~et th~ criticism of p~ople 

on decisions we're c~ilad on to make th~t ~re 

controversial without th~ burden oi anything else 

that can at all be questionable. 

I like Judge Carrillo. I have alw~ys 

thought a lot of him. He is young and he is 

inexperienced on the Bench. But he w3s kind 

of caught up in a web of circumstances that has 

bound him in this particular case. So it would 

be the judgment of this Court that he is 

disqualified." 

There ia more, gentlemen. I leave this for you. 

rs It is quite voluminous. It only seta a pattern histori-

19 cally. 

20 Q Mr. Bercaw, would you explain to the Committee 

21 the capacity in which Judge Carrillo presently serves 

22 with the tirst State Bank or the Bank and Trust of Rio 

23 Grande City, or at the time of this particular trial? 

24 A At the time of this trial, aecordina to thia 

15 Stateaeat of Facta, Judge Carrillo wae on the Board of 
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Directors of the bank in the Rio Grande City. I do not 

know whether he ia on that bo~rd now. 

Q Was there any comment made in this particular 

transcript in reference to a car, a Cadillac automobile. 

w~ieb Judge Carrillo had in fact contracted to purchase 

and which Hr. Clinton Mang~s paid for by ch~ck? 

A Yes. Mr. Canales, there is some ld~gtby 

diacuaeioa in regard to tr~n~action6. ~~d. as I said, I 

9 read this thing Sunaay, and it is in~~rasti~g and--

10 

II 

12 
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Q Mr. Bercaw, do you have in your possession a 

xerox copy although it may not be certified, do you have 

a xerox copy of a check made to some Cadill~c agency, 

signed by Mr. Clinton Manges and at the bottom where the 

indication ia what the purchase was designed for it says
1 

"0. P. 1 a Cad 1114c • " on 1 t? 

Ro, air, I don't have that in my possession. 

MR. CANALES: Then I must have it some 

place. 

Q I would like you to explain some of the other 

polata vhieh were mentioned briefly in this particular 

tranecrlpt you were reading from, Mr. Bercaw, which I'm 

eure the Committee does not realize because you read an 

excerpt and it ls impossible for them to underetaad the 

facta without reading the entire transcript. 

Well, this case originated in 1968, according 
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to this Statement of Facts, while Judge Woodrow Laughlin ' 

was sitting on the Bench in che 79th Judiciat District, 

at which tiae Starr County was in the 79th Judicial 

District before the 229th was created. 

Then when the 229th was created, of course, 

6 automatically it went into it. And Judge Laughlin was 

not. In the meantime, there w~s a rece~vership in 

8 Federal Court. It dealt with the Guerra family and 

9 a partnership that had been created some years before 

1o by the father of all of these Guerra young people. As 

II I recall, I think there are five or six brothers and a 

12 sister. They in turn had created ''M. Guerra and Son," a 

13 partnership. And Mr. Manges--again, I don't recall. As 

14 I said, I hurriedly Sunday remembered, but Mr. Manges 

15 bouaht some interest from some of these partners and 

l6 then himself became a partner of M. Guerra and Son. And 

I~ I aaaume this to be--again, I was not involved in the 

18 laws•tc, so the basic lawsuit, I don't know obout. I'm 

19 just talking about this disqualification historically 

20 for what is yet to come, with Mr. Mangea and Mr. Carrillo 

21 in this Cadillac transaction that Mr. Canales mentioned, 

22 and the lease transaction and cattle lease and the land 

21 swapped out on a bouse in Benavides, I leave it for you. 

24 I juet don't reaember all the details; I'm eorry. But 

1' thia ts basically what it all involved. 
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The stock was i~volved wi~h the house and the I 
I 

I 
car and the stock in the bank. i".ir. Ramiro Carrillo was 

on the Board at the time. 

Q Mr. Ramiro Carrillo was also on the same Board 

plit 

of Directors-- \ 

photostat somewbere~ I beli~ve~ ~f ~he oir~ctorate of the 

bank as of Jailuary, close of b\:l.iiibi.<illil:.::, u'-ilclit.iib"'zo 31-

Anderson. 0. P. Carrilloj ~iro c~r~illo, P~dro Dias, 

Jr., M. F. Garcia, Francigco Ga~cia, H. P. Gu~rra. III, 

Dennie E. Hendricks, Max L. Jo~~s, Do~ A. H~~ges, Frank 

R. Bye. Jr., Rebert G. Richmond. 

Now, just a second. Ycu asked~ a question 

about that. I don't recall ever seeing a check like 

that. 

These are the records, gentlemen~ that I 

brlna to you for your 1oapectioa. 

Q Mr. Bel'caw-

Excuae ae, ladiea. I didn't mean to leave you 

all out. 

Q --it waa obviously the opinion of Judae Manses 

Saitb in this particular caaa that Judse Carrillo had 

too many personal financial and monetary ties with 

Clinton Mana•• to serve in an tmpartlal capacity in aay 
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trial witb bia. Is thut your ~der~taGdin~? 

A l would aot p~ea~~Q ~~ a~~uwe what ~di~ 

HaAs•• Saltb tbouaht. I read wbat be aatd. 

Q •ow, Hr. Bercaw. witb that hiatory, I would 

like you aow te ao into the re&ovala--wcll, let •• ask 

you flrat, I aaka~ you e&rli~r v~etho~ you bad a news­

papal' c11pp1aa with ycru o;: iC~o yliOiuo: /?Oiii~Je..Jt.~>~.:;..:.~ 

Q 

Juda• Carrillo .ado a stQc~eat ia wbicb be publicly 

eplit w1tb tk•--«ad I quotG--"Old Party" which purport~dl 

.. , oraaalaed or beaded by tho lot~ GQo~go s. P~rr. I 
tea, elr. I have here a clippi~a f:ou tbe 

14 "Corpua Cut.at1 Caller" dated Mar.ch 19 • 1975. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Ka. CAIALBS 1 If the COIII\lttee wuld 

,.nit ••• tbia 11 aa uerpt froa tu "eo:,u Cbrbtl 

Callel' 11 aewtpapey, aad the headiq oa lt 1a "i?arl'a va. 

C.l'l'tlloa-- Sablol race oauaee DuVal Spltt." It 1a 

19 utttaa 1»1 Joe Coudel't 1 Staff WrUett. It u.ysa 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Mrbe Aprll S acbool board eleotloa hea 

appa..atlJ p~eelpttated a ooaplete eplit 

beawe .. Dnal Coaty polttS.eal le&cltl' GeHa• 

B. tUI' Ud tile CAI'I'lllo featly. 

ro ... ~ ttate leatalator Oaeal' C.rwtllo 

epllt villa ran laat yeal' owr Parr • a aapport 
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of State Senator John traege~. 

Tuaaday. Di&t~ic~ Judge o. ~. Car~~11o 

told a Caller reporter be is 'ali th~OUih 

v:l.tb rawr. • 

•t•ve apant thia past year trying to 

patch up the aiffe~et.~ce& in tl.\tt Oicl ri:i..:v:.y but 

aow I '• tl::u:oqb.. loi~iii-• 

s aad it r•fo~s to ~a~~--

10 Hilda Parr would withoraw iroru tb~ 8cno~l board 

11 rue lt ay father, D. c. Cbai)~, ent~Wra.d ttlie 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

15 

race. Be tbea waited utlt.U tL\e la·u liliW!Ite so 

aobody alae could file, tben told me he was not 

aoiaa to aak Rilda to vi~draw. RG b~oke hla 

word,' Carrillo said. 

ladiaatloaa of the poad1QG split ~~· beea 

appa~eat fow oevera1 dayo but the judeo•a aaQouace­

Mat ••• the f1rat offict.al coufinsattoa. 

coatacted b7 telepboae Tuesday oveQta;, 

CouatJ C...taaioaer laairo Car~lllo aaid he hae 

jolaed bta two brotbel'l 1a the a pUt. •t•• 
aotaa wltb., daddJ, D. c. Chapa,• he aalct. 

Cbapa 1t a eaadldate 1ft the -.aavtdet aobool 

board ..... who ta oppoalld b:r cvo kaon l?a&-1' 

oaactldaa••• 'Thla .akea it tbe whole ta.11J 
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now,' the commissioner announced. referring 

to the split with the Parr factions of the 

Old Party. 

Last year both Ramiro Carrillo and o. P. 

Carrillo at least visibly, supported Parr and 

his candidates in the Benavides schooi board 

elections and city elections. 

No reason has been prasen~ed for Parr's 

actions which some say are unlike him. One 

Carrillo brother said Parr was 'personally very 

hu~t,' when one of his candidates in the school 

board aad city elections was defeated. 

Candidates for the two seats available on 

the board this year are incumbent Rogelio 

Guajardo, nephew to Oscar, 0. P., and Ramiro 

Cerrillo; D. c. Chapa, father of the three 

brothers and Guajardo's grandfather; Mrs. Hilda 

Par~, widow of the late AtlGe Parr, brother to 

George ParrJ Ruben Chcpa, owner of a service 

station and Mrs. Parr's running mate; o. G. 

Barton; and c. R. Cuellar. 

Iacuabent David Carrillo withdrew from 

the l'&ce last week." 

Mr. lercaw; ln connection with this race which took 

1s place in the month of April, would you please inform this 
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Committee who were the winn~rs of th&t political race? 

A Yea, sir. Mrs. Hilda Parr and Mr. Ruben 

Chapa were the winners of that race. 

Q Mr. Bercaw, from the date of March l9th, 1975, 

what baa tranapired with relation to the Benavides 

Independent School District which brings it to its 

present position where we--or tho present point in 

history--where we now have two, one school district 

appointed by the Judge--not school district; one school 

board appointed by the Judge--and the other one constitut d 

of elected members. Could you give us some history to 

the c.-lttee? 

A May it please the Court, I'm going to introduce 

some stuff that will have a xerox copy of that in it, in 

a few minutes, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN KALE: That will be fine. 

Let the record reflect that the "Corpus 

Cbrllti Caller" is one of the outstanding daily 

newspapers ia Teza1. 

Mil. I'm sure, Mr. Chairman, as 

21 lt 1 a la your home district. 

n (Brief recess.) 

23 CHAIRMAN HALE: The Committee will come 

24 back to order. 

n Mr. Canales, you may proceed. 
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3 
MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman. I would 

offer for the Committee or introduce into evidQnce this 

Motion for Disqualification, the second supplemental 

4 Motion for Dlaqualifieation, the Order on Motion for 

Disqualification, and the accompanying Brief of the 

defendants in this particu1ar m~tter. I believ~ these 

are all certified copi~s. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. Hand them to the 

9 Court Reporter and let him ma~k them as exhibits. 

10 (The documents referred eo were 
Wlrkad "l," ~brough "4," for 

11 identlficatioll.) 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

MR. CANALES: I would alao aubm:it·the 

Supra .. Court of Texas Code of Judicial conduct, 

effeetlve Septeaber let, 1974, amended to September 24th, 

1974. 

Q 

(The code referred to was marked 
"ExhibitS," for 
identification.) 

Mr. Bercaw, after havina read this newspaper 

19 ertiele of the "Corpus Christi Caller," I would aak you 

20 to relate the incidents that occurred subaequent to 

21 thla preaa aaaounc .. ent by Judse Carrillo in relatloa to 

22 tbe BenaYidel School Board wherein this election had 

23 jut tranapired. 

24 Well, th1a has just transpired. Tbe school 

2s electloa. I believe. vaa April the 6th, 197.5, or tbe Stb, 
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I don't remember. It was che first Saturday in April. 

On March 19, 1975, I was on the Board. Mr. 

Al Schuenemann, Mr. Joe--you have in your folders, 

aentleaan, if you can find tbem, a slip that we prepared 

and put with this, if you find it in your folder. Mr. 

canales gave me a copy of it and r have it here before 

me. I don't see any sense ia W4dtin~ the Co~ictee's 

a time readin& who was on the AOkrd. But it is kind of 

9 aixed up. 

10 Aa you can see, on the 19th who was on the 

11 Board the day the article was written in the "Caller," 

12 and on the 20th four cases were filed, one against me, 

n oae aaainlt Joe Garcia, one against Luis El1aondo, one 

14 aaainat Enrique Garcia. And I have here certified 

15 copt.ea of all four of the cases and all mattara relating 

16 to ae to date • 

17 MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I would aubait 

11 tbeae in evidence for the Coacaittee. 

19 CBAillMAN HALE: Let the Court Reporter 

~ ~k Cbea aa eabibita. 

21 (The docwunta referred to were marked 
"Exhibits 6," tbrouah 9," for 

22 1dentifica tioa.) 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I would like 

!4 to read the style of the caee. It ie the State of Teaaa 

!I oa the aelat1oa of Joae a. R1chole, tbta particuLar 
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cause number, 8884, vs. M. K. Bercaw. 

I 
3 I 

Q Mr. Bercaw, before you proceed would you 

please tell rae if you know Jose R, Nichols? 

A Yea. atr, I do. 

Q With who •a Mr. Jose R. Nichols employed? 

6 A He is employed by the ~val County Ranch 

Corapaoy. 

8 Q Who owns the Duval County Ranch Company, 

9 Jfr. Bercaw? 

10 A Clinton Manges owns the stock of the Duval 

11 COUnty Raoch Company. 

12 Q Were all of theae c&uaes filed by Mr. Jose R. 

13 Ricbolaf 

14 A Yea. air. 

·~ 
Q Thank you. Would you please continue then 

16 with your etateaent to the co~ittee. 

17 On March 21st, the State of Texas, on relation 

18 of Ricardo H. Garcia, County Attorney, removed the 

19 reaatatas 1chool board members. On March 24th-- I have 

a certified copy which I'll give to you in a moment--20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Judae Carrillo on the locket sheet diaqualifted himself 

ae to David H. Carrillo and Rosello Carrillo. 

Q Ie that Rogelio Carrillo or Rogelio Guajardo? 

Excuse ... I'm eorry. Rogelio Guajardo, aod 

2s r-.oved Alfred Sehuen.-ann. This ta all in one case, tht 
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case. He severed these two out--they are his nephews-­

and under a temporary order of removal for Mr. 

Schuenemann he appointed a trustee, Mr. Cosas. 

Q Mr. Bercaw. may I interrupt you briefly on 

thia particular question. You say that four or five 

were initially removed from the school board. 

A Four were remov~d on the 20th by the relation 

of Mr. Jose R. Nichols and Mr. Arnulio Guerra who is 

the District Attorney. 

Q That WQS one day after Judge Carrillo said he 

was splitt1ns with the Old Party? 

A tea, air. 

Q Bow let me ask you, the other two--the other 

three individuals that were left? There were seven on 

the Board at tbat time? 

A Yea, air. The School Board at that time was 

composed Qf seven member•. 

Q Would you please tell this Committee what 

their names were again, please? 

Alfred Schuenemann-- Al Schuenemann, aa they 

have it here-- David H. Carrillo. 

Q 

Q 

A 

Is he any relation to Judge o. P. Carrillo? 

He's his nephew. And Rosello Guajardo. 

Is he any relation to Judse o. P. Carrillo? 

Be is hb .aephn. 
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Q What happened when the County Attorney, Mr. 

Ricardo Garcia--

A As I stated,under the docket notation, he 

disqualified himself as to David R. Carrillo dftd \ 

Rogelio Guajardo, severed Mr. Schuenemann and disqualifie4 
I him. I 

Q And left only his two nephews on the School 

Board? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q I would like to ask you, Mr. Bercaw, are you 

familiar with the Cannon of Ethics for Judges somewhat? 

.A Somewhat. Yea, sir • 

Q Are you familiar with the fact that when a 

caaa ia filed aad the judge has any interest in the 

case at all he ta supposed to take no other action other 

than to spread the cause on the minutes? 

.A Row you've got me ia something that I am not 

that familiar with, Mr. Canales. 

q 

and tried 

•• to his 

A 

q 

A 

q 

However, .Judge Carrillo did sever the case 

only Mr. Schuenemann and didn't try the caaa 

two nephews? 

This was not a trial. 

Well, 

Yes. 

Would 

in the relation. 

you please continue with your statement. 
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A Then you can follow the appointments to a 

point by this sheet. 1 
However, if you will notice by the sheet 

tbat on March 31, Judge Carrillo appointed J. R. cosas 

to take Mr. Schuenemann's place temporarily, and Mr. 

6 Coaaa reatgned. And o~ April the 8th, Mr. Garcia filed 

a nonsuit in that casa. I believe it is ali here in the i 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

record, and this is ~ eextiiied record of the--

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Now, Mr. Garcia. is the County Attorney? 

He is the County Attorney. 

He took nonsuit against whom? 

Against the whole case. 

Which was against the two Carrillo nephews and 

14 Mr.-

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

A 

Q 

aonauitf 

A 

Q 

The two nephews and Mr. Schuenemann. 

--Schuenemann. The County Attorney took a 

Be filed a nonsuit on April the 8th. 

When did the Judge remove him? Subsequent to 

the aonauit or prior to the nonsuit? 

A Be appointed Mr. Ceaaa on March the 31st and 

22 Kr. Cosaa subsequently resigned and then Mr. Garcia 

23 filed a noaauit on the 8th. 

24 

!S 

Q 

A 

Mr. Bercaw, at bast, I'm confused. 
' 

Yea, I'm aura. 
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Q It is s vary confusing matter when you end up 

I with two aebool boards. 

Who are the membe~s that were appointed, Mr. 

aero .. , in the orlgiaal removal of four membe~a? 

A Mr. Morris Ashby was appointed to replace me. 

Q Would you t~ll me who or what is the 

occupation of Mr. Mo~ris A~hby? 

A Mr. Morrb Ashby ia ti\111 Executive Vice 

Prealdeat of th~ Duval County Ranch Company. 

ln 

Q 

A 

Q 

tbll 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Who owns the Duval County Ranch Company? 

Mr. Clinton Manges. 

Who else was replaced and who replaced them 

particular proceedins? 

M%. Leonel Garza replaced Joe Garcia. 

Is he any relation to Mzo. Manges? 

Ro, sir. 

Ro buaineu contacts? 

Ro, air. 

Who else was replaced? 

Kr. Bill Bam was appointed to replace Mr. 

21 Lute lliaeado. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

What happened to Mr. Baa when he was appointed? 

Mr. Ham qualified and was aubaequently by order 

aa a howe in the IU.zondo caae--M'r. Mdtcdu1fi wae: '~ 

appotatad to replace hla. 
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Q Now, wait a minute. Mr. Ham was appointed 
' 

I and then removed? 

, II 
A Well-

Q Resigned, or whet did he do? 

A As far as I know he qualified by making bond. 

6 It will reflect in the recg~d. And in the m•antime--and 

; I think this was all on ch~ 25th. aa the r~cord will 

8 reflect--Hr. Ham qualifiQd~ Judge Carrillo appointed 

9 E. V. McMichael co take his pl~ce, and E. v. McMichael 

10 re•taned, and Judge Carrillo on the 31st of March 

" appointed Saat:lago Garcia to talte his place. 

12 Q Why were all of these people reclining as soon 

B ae they were appointed, Mr. Bercaw? 

14 walla I have another newspaper cllpp:lng, Mr. 

15 Canales, that aay be of some--

16 

17 

Q would you please give 1t to the Coamittee. 

This 11 the "Corpus Christi Caller," Tuesday, 

18 March 25th, 1975. There is an article by Mr. Spencer 

19 Pe,...rson, a Staff Writer for the "Caller," and the 

20 article here quotea-:firatly the headline saye. ''llewly 

21 appointed truatees deny that they're Card.llo becken," 

22 and I quote from the paper: 

23 '1Altbough Ham said he h 'a George Parr 

24 un. 1 ha added • 'If 1 ao oa the board it will 

2s be atralsht down the line for the kids and for 
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the school district. That's who I 1m fighting 
for. When it comes to the kids, I'm for them 
aDd Dobody else. I 

Q What happened to Mr. Ham after he ti~ated that 

he was a George Parr man? 

A I 'll le~ the record k ~ spea for its~lf, Mr. 

Canales. It's in the case, 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Was he removed? 

The record apeaks for ita~li. 

Mr. Bercaw, who replaced the fourth member? 

Mr. P~te Hunter replaced Enrique Garcia. 

Who replaced Mr. Schuenemann? 

This waa this J. R. casas, and then on April 

14 tba 18th, Martin Alaniz. The record again will apeak 

15 for itaelf. And OD the 22nd, Mrs. Wilma Viegas was 

16 appoiDted, of April. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q Mr. Bercaw, I would now like to call your 

att.ea.tlon to' some other documentation which you have in 

your poseesslon in regard to the Grand Jury CommissioDers 

that ware appointed by Judge o. P. Carrillo. Rave you 

aot ._, doau .. ntatlon in your possession dealing with 

that paztloular topic? 

lG. CAHALES: Mr. CA.airman, I would like 

24 to aet this a.ewapaper for the Collllllittee, if the Chair 

25 would agree. and have copies made. 
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CHAIRMAN HALE: That will be fine, if 

you will have copies made. 

MR. CANALES: I would like to have it 

entered into the evidence, Mr. Chairman. 

(The newspaper clipping referred 
to was marked "Exhibit 10," 
for identification.) 

CHAIRMJ.N HALE: Lei: the Chair suggest 

you might want to ~nter chi~ first newsp~per clipping 

in evidence. for whatever v~lue it might h~ve. 

Q 

(The newapa~r clippiag referred 
to w.as marked "E...:hibit ll," 
for identification.) 

Mr. Bercaw, would you now please relate to 

13 the Co.alttee the appointaenta to the poaition of Grand 

14 Jury Commissioners. I believe that's the title that 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

the people bear that select the grand jurors. 

A Mr. Canales, I have ~ere for the Jury 

Co .. taaloner•a Appolnt~nt On January 24, 1975 1 

appoiotiq five people as C011111iuionera. 

Q Would you please read the name of the first 

20 Orand Jury C011mlaaioner? 

21 A Manuel Amaya, Jr., San Dlego, Texas. 

22 Q Would you tell me what is the occupation of 

23 Mr. Maauel Aaaya, Jr.? 

24 A 

25 

Well-

CHAllMAB BALE: How do you spell Amaya? 
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3 

Ma. CANALES: a-M-A-Y-A. 

A I think you he&rd a moment ago some dis-

cuaaion aDd in previous testimony that Mr. Manuel Amaya, 

Jr. right now is on one of the two boards of the Com-

mlaaioDera. 

Q He is one of the County Commission~rs? 

A lli&ht. 

Q 

A 

Waa he appointed? 

At this time, or this partacular date, or cl~e 

to thia date, I saw a letter in Mr. Manuel Amaya, Jr.'s 

handwriting where he addreased himself to the Duval 

County Water Reclamation and Conservation District 

stating that be represented the Duval County Ranch 

Coapaay in some dealings that they were having with the 

Water District. 

Q Mr. Amaya at that time represented the Duval 

County aanch Compa~y1 

According to his letter. Yes, air. 

Q OWaed aad operated by Mr. Clinton Manges? 

tea, air. 

Q Aad Mr. Manuel Amaya ia presently a County 

Co..taaioaer appointed by County Judge, or purportedly 

Couaty Judge .. Dan Tob.ta, · Jin. t. 

Q 

Yea, air. 

Who appointed DaD Tobia, Jr.? 
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A I think Dan Tobin, Jr.--you mean in the 

present poe1t1on that be is holding? 

Q R• is holding the present position of County 

Judse? 

A Yea, sir. 

Q Who appointed--

A Judge o. P. Carrillo. 

Q Judge o. P. C&~riil~ appoincea County Judge 

Dan Tobia, Jr., after having remov~a Arche~ Parr whom 

he had-

That's my understanding. Yes, sir. 

Q Then County Judge Dan Tobin appointed Manuel 

Aaaya, an employee of the Duval County Ranch to the 

County Commissioner's position, which he vacated? 

A Hr. Caaalea, let me say this: I think Mr. 

A .. ya had other employment other than work1a& for the 

Duval County Ranch Company at this ttme. 

Q 

A 

What other employment did Mr. Amaya have? 

Soae soveramental asency, I believe. I have 

known Hr. Manuel Amaya, Jr. for many years, but I do 

not kDow bow he waa actually employed. But in this 

particular letter be said he was repreaentias the Duval 

Couaty aaach Company in the dealings with the Duval 

County Water aad Reclamation District. 

Q the next naae on the list, Mr. Bercaw, is 
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Nicolas Garcia. 

A Yea, air, from Concepcion. 

Q Is there any relation between Mr. Nicolas 

Garcia and Mr. Clinton Manges? 

A Not that I know of. 

6 Q The next name on th~ List is Ernesto Benavides. 

Is there any relation between E~ne~to Benavides and Mr. 

8 CU.ntoa Manses? 

9 Hot that I know of. 

JO Q The next name on the list is Mr. Roberto 

n Elizondo of Benavides, Texas. Is there any relation 

12 between Mr. Roberto Elizondo and Mr. Clinton Manges? 
" 

13 Mr. Roberto Elizondo is Judge o. P. Carrillo's 

14 Court Reporter. 

I 5 Q The next name on the list is our familiar 

16 friend, Mr. Morris Ashby; Would you tell me what 

17 relationship he bat and if he is the same one that was 

,8 appointed to the 1chool board and presently holds the 

19 poeitlon of President of the School Board that has been 

20 appointed by Judge o. P. Carrillo? 

21 Yea. elr. That's the same Morris Aehby. He is 

22 Executive Vlce Preaident of the Duval County Ranch 

23 Compally. 

24 Q Then_you would say that assuming there are 

25 five members on this particular Grand Jury Commissioner--
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hrcaw - direct 
I~;-------~~----~--~ 

~1• array of Graad Jury Coaaiaatoaera. three ol the• 

I I 
! ! 

I 

j 

i 

I 

~ dlraat t1ea, aeauaLQa that th~ coaaeat• aade by 

~ .......... Saith la the caae of CllDtoa Ka!je• ••· 

•••w~•L wo.ld you be of the oplatoa that tbe~e •i&bt be 

a •tr•et t1a ~etweeD three .. abera that are preeeat 

~•w• oa tb1e llat! 

~ Tee, •1~. You could aw•uw. thia. 

Q ~. lares., thiM aay be aa •••uap~1oa, ~ut oa 

Jftr ,.a-t do )'OU believe it to be true T 

Q a... yog aot oert1fied cop1ee of tRi• Order 

Appo1atlaa ~ur,. C..altaloaeraf 

~ I '-•• oal)' a xerox cop)' wbloh I ... ld like to 

alfaw to ella Coa¥t. 'fbe Co..teli.oa caa, of eeuree ll&ke 

ltaall ... ,~la • ca~tifled oop)' of lt. 

••PJ of tbl•f 

Mil. CAJII.LIII WnU tbe c-ittee Uke a 

CIA"*- BAU 1 ht lt ill the reoerd. 

(~ ~··~ rQferred to 
-· Mrked "&.blb1t 12," 
fo~ 1deat1flcat1oa.) 

Q Ill'. lal"oa, would '" •••- tbat allnld 

&Ilea• •~• a ... • ~•I"J C...lael ... l"t have .. , relatl .. 

ow .._tae.a clea ow polltlaal t1•• ~t the)' a1Jbt 

&all ..... ••I'J' eJ.pltto .. tl)' the ~ra wbo "" 

..,.l.ated la fut e. Clae Ol"a.l .J•I")'f 
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Bercaw - direct 

A Well, I would assume they would appoint some-

' - ' one, yes, sir, along those linss. That would be the 

! noraal reaction. 

. I 
6 ~ 1 

Q Is it the function of the Grand Jury to 

investigate and to indict people on criminal offenses? 

A Yes~ sir. 

Q Mr. Bercaw, have you any other comments that 

s you would like to ~ke to the Committee at this time? 

I just have another xerox copy of the Grand 

10 Jury that was chosen, and the only observations I 

11 would make, that the number one man on this list and 

I! the number eleven .an on this list both work for the 

13 Duval County llanch C011pany • one of them beiD.g Mr. Jack 

14 Daaron and oaa of them Mr. Jose R. Nichols who was 

15 appointed Fouaaa of the Grand Jury. 

16 Q Tbeae are the people that are actually on the 

17 Graad .Jury today? 

IR A Yea, sir. This ia for the February term 

19 beainning February for six months. 

!0 Q Is there aay way to determine who was the one 

21 that selected these names to be--

22 

23 

A 

Q 

A 

I do not know. 

Have you any further comments? 

That's all I have there. 

Ml. CANALES: I will turn over Mr. Bercaw 
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Bercaw - direct 

for questioning by the Committee, Mr. Chairman. 

') 
tJ 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. Thank you very 
much. 

QUESTIONS BY THE COMMITTEE 

BY CHAIRMAN 'BALE 

L5JJ_ 

Q Mr. Bercaw, for the record, if it got into the 

record, I missed it, what school district were you a 

member of the Board of Trustees of? 

A Benavides Independent School District. 

Q And all of the references in here to the 

school district in your testimony are to the Benavides 

Iadepeadent School District? 

A Are with reference to the Benavides Independent, 

1<1 Scbool Dla trf.c t. Yea, air. 

15 Q Row long bad you been a member of the Board 

16 of Trustees of the Beaavidea Independent School District? 

17 A Rlaeteen years. 

18 Q Is that an elective position? 

19 A Yea, sir. 

20 Q A six-year term? 

21 A Three-year term. 

22 Q Three-year term? 

23 A Yea, sir. 

24 Q You were elected every three yeara over a 

25 period of nf.aeteeD years? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Bercaw - direct 151 .., 
A Yea, sir. I was just elected in '74 for a 

new three-year term. To clarify for the Committee. 

three from Freer run on a three-year term, then two from 

Benavides and two from Benavides. And that's how 

your seven members are elected for the three-year terms. 

Q Is there an election every year then? 

A Every year in April there is--the first 

Saturday in April--there is a school election. Yes, sir. 

Q So that at the time of your removal you had 

about two years left of a three-year term, approximately? 

A That's correct, air. 

Q That removal was by an order signed in the 

law ault that you stated was filed, State ex rel. 

Rloboll va. Bercaw? 

Yea, sir. 

Q was an order entered by the court in that 

removtna you as school trustee? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yea, sir. 

Who signed that order? 

o. P. CarrUlo. 

What was the basie for the removal according 

to t.be lawsuit? 

Misconduct of the board members, naming the 

four of us in individual auita, for misconduct. 

Q waa there any specification as to tbe nature of 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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16 

17 
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24 

Bercaw - direct 

the misconduct? 

A Yes, sir. I think there were three, 

Q 

A 

Could you give us those, if you recall? 

Yes, sir. Destroying records---

Q Did you destroy any records? 

A No, sir. ----attorney's f~es for----you heard 

testimony with regard to the IRS, and the Board was 

subpoenaed for various things, and the Board hired 

attorneys and the thing was that, I assume we weren't 

supposed to hire attorneys for the Board. Then 

aomethin& about the amounta of the attorney's fees. 

Q Did the Board itself hire an attorney to 

repreeent the Board? 

A Yea, sir. 

15?. 

Q You did not have an attorney representing the 

Board prior to that time? 

Well, we have had--Mr. Frank Lloyd through 

the years haa represented ua on a minimal basis of 

ca111na up and needin& a letter or some advice. I do 

not practice law on the school board, Mr. Hale. I aake 

it a very clear and concise effort not to do that. 

Q That thought hadn't cros1ed my mind. I was 

wondering lf the school board did not have an attorney 

of 10me type on a retainer or--

A I had dieeuased this subpoena with Mr. Frank 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 

I 



Bercaw - direct 9 1 ~~ 

1
r nj ___ L_l_o_y_d __ a __ n_d __ h_e __ r_e_c_o_mm __ e_n_d_e_d~t~h~a~t=-t-b_e __ s_c_h_o __ o_l __ b_o_a_r_d __ ~~--~l 

I 

I 
_l I 

I 

I 

6 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

I 5 

16 

17 

18 

attorneys to represent them. 

Q Who did you employ? 

A We hired Mr. Charles Orr of Houston and Mr. 

Marvin Foster of San Diego. 

Q And one of the complaints against you in the 

lawsuit was your action in employing these atto~neys to 

represent the sehoul board? 

A Yea, sir. 

Q And in your opinion was there any merit in 

the allegation contained in the petition with respect to 

the employment of attorneys? 

No, sir. 

Q Wal it your opinion that it was within the 

legal province of the achool board to employ these 

attorneys? 

A Yea. air. 

Q Were they paid an exceasive fee, in your 

19 judpent? 

20 A Well, Mr. Hale, I can only answer in this way: 

21 " •o," because • you know, wba t 's an excessive fee when 

22 you don ' t know where you ' re go f.na? 

23 Q I aee. What was the third--

24 You being an attorney and me being an attorney, 

1~ you know, I don 1 t aet your feea when we deal toaether 

and you don't eet mine. You know what I mean. 

HICKMAN f-<EPORTING SERVICE 
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Q What was the third grounds of disqualification? : 

A That we had hired--the first superintendent 

had been indicted for income tax evaaion. He had been 

i j our superintendant for a number of years and built a 
I 
I 

I. beautiful school system with teachers and facilities and ~ I 

6, 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

lS 

i i everything, was well respected in the community. We had 

given him a contract as consultant, of course, based 

upon bia return because he was given a one-year term for 

incoae taa evaaion. He had tremendous abilities, tre­

aendoua knowledges and this sort of thing, and this was 

the third item. that we were supposed to be paying hia 

while he was gone. 

Q Did you pay him while be was gone? 

A No, sir. 

Q Was he imprisoned for one year? You said he 

was gone for one year. 

I Just sot a letter. He'll be out August the 

6th. 

Q But durina the time he was 1ncaresrated, did 

you pay him any salary or any emoluments of any kind 

durtaa that ttae? 

A our checks are iaaued on a--Mr. Powell realaned 

as superintendent and our checks are based in the 

computer, and two checka came out but were never 

dellvered •• out of that computer, and then it waa cut off. 
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Q You mentioned the Freer schoOl Is the school 

at freer c part of the Benavides Independent School 

Dhtrict-

A Yea, sir. 

Q --or is it an independent school district of 

6 its own? 

7 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, sir. 

''Yes, sir" to what? 

Yes, sir, it is a part of the Benavides 

to Independent School District. 

II Q Were the other three trustees that were 

12 removed at the time you were removed, removed for the 

13 &&ale three causes? 

14 A Yes, sir. 

15 Q Was there a hearing on that removal? 

16 No, air. 

17 Q Did you request a hearing? 

18 A I think the record will apeak, Mr. Chairman, 

19 of all of the things that we tried to do to set to court. 

20 I'm not goiaa to presume to tell this Committee how to 

21 read the Vernon's Annotated Statutes of the State of 

22 Tazaa. But there are articles of removals and manners 

23 ln wblch they are to be done, and I never considered 

24 myself off the board because the articles were not 

15 

u__c_o_._'_l_1_•_d __ w_1_tb __ ·----------------~~~------------____j 
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1
~--------~~~~~----------~-~-

1 ! Q I see. With respect to any of the four? 

1! A Tbat 1s right. 
I II 
I! 

5 II 
6 1

1 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

Q Do you atill consider yourself a member of 

the Board of Trustees of the Benavides Indep•ndent 

School District from a legal standpoint? 

A No, sir. No, sir. We pursued to get an 

immediate trial, requested it, requested a disinterested 

judge, pursued as much as we could, and on May the 9th 

Judge Carrillo just prior to this had set our four 

casas, based on the same allegations after refusing a 

Motion to Consolidate, from June tbe 9th through 

12 Septeaber the 29th. And on May the 9th, after consulta-

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

tion with attorneys and the five of us, this other, 

Mr. Schuenemann, discussed this matter at great length 

the day before end for the benefit of the school system, 

the children, the administration, the teachers, the 

contlnut:y. we felt the best thing for us to do was 

resign. 

Q 

.. 
So the five of you tendered resignations? 

Only four have because Mr. Enrique Garcia 

21 was out of the county on buslne•• at the time. 

22 Q And replacements were named to each of those 

23 positions by Judge Carrillo? 

24 A Ko. air. We resigned under the statutes of 

25 the Vernon'• Annotated Civil Statutes to the duly elected 
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Bercaw - direct _______ ;I - -_1_5_1. 
board members. and they in turn, under that statute, 

replaced ua for the rema1Qing term--not term, but for 

the next election of that statute. 

Q Did four of you resign at the same time? 

A Yea, air. 

Q That meant that the three remaining trestees 

named four to f1ll vacancies then? 

That's right~ sir. 

Q Those three being David H. Carrillo, Rogelio 

Guajardo and who was the third one? 

Ro, sir. The only people who were on the 

Board at the time of our resignation, if you can follow 

it back oa the chart aow, we're going to go to May 9, 

on the date of our resignation. 

Q My chart doesn't go that far. 

A All riaht. I know it doesn't, that's what I'm 

sayiaa. I'm carryiaa you past your chart but if you'll 

ao back to April S you'll see Hilda Parr and Ruben Chapa 

were elected, which removed any queation about David H. 

20 Carrillo aad Roaelio Guajardo. And since Enrique Garcia 

21 was still uader the temporary suspension of Judge 

22 Carrillo, even tboush, as I eay, we felt we were still 

board members. Hr. Hunter, if you take Judge Carrillo's 23 

24 order • was on the board. And theae • e·lac ted 

2s offlclale aade the appointments of the new board members. 
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Q Are the members of the Board of T~stees of the 

Benavides Independent School District paid any compen­

sation for their services on tnat board? 

A Ro, air. 

Q Are there any emoluments accruing to member• 

of that board by virtu~ of ~hei~ surv~ce? 

A No• air. 

Q During the t~e that you w•re on the Board of 

Trutteaa ot the Benavides Inde·f,lel.lcit~nt School District 

did you tranaact any business with a business entity 

known aa Farm and Ranch Store? 

If the bills were presented by the people 

who were autboriBed to purchase for the schoo~ through 

the adainistrattve process and the auperintendenta each 

board meeting would present ua billa which we would 

approve. 

Now, as far aa the Benavides end of the school 

ayatem it concerned, rarm and Ranch I'm sure is there. 

19 I ju.t don't recall.whether it ia or not. To my real 

kaowledae, I'm 24 alles away, and extremely busy, and 

21 

22 

23 

!4 

tryiag to perform all our services, we let the adminla­

tratora, the principals and the auperlntendenta operate 

the school •yateaa in the 1en1e that they were the 

purcba•lna aaent• for the 1chool tyatem. They would 

!S preaent the billa, we would approve them and pay thea in 
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1 the ordinary course of business. 

'I 

i! 
I I 
j) Q Were there any bills paid to the Zertuche 

General Store? 

A I'm sure there were. 

Q Do you know where the Zertuche General Store 

I is located? 
(> i 

A No, slr. 

Q Do you know where the Farm and Ranch Store 

9 I 1a located? 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

I~ 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

A No, sir. Well, like you have, I nave heard 

in the last ,two night sessions where these stores are 

located. 

Q Did you know anything about either of these 

two entities prior to testimony before this committee? 

A Yea, air. I think you will find that on 

April the 7th I got a letter from the Comptroller of 

Public Accounts wherein I inquired as to who owned 

these entities. 

Q In connection with the ouster suits on the 

members of the school board, what court were those law-

auits filed in? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Judge Carrillo's court. 

The 229th District Court? 

Yea, sir. 

Waa any effort made by any of the defendant• in 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Bercaw - direct 3 lbU ------, 
those cases to disqualify Judge Carrillo? 

A There was a motion filed by our attorneys--

again, the recorda are there--to disqualify him. We 

4 came to the Court of Civil Appeals of the Supreme 

Court for a speedy trial. We just wanted to be heard. 

6 

8 

9 

10 

·II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

As I say, then when it was ultimately done from June 

9th to September the 29th in order for the continuity of 

the school boaJ;d we bad no altern&tive but to get out of 

there. 

Q What happened ,to the Motion to DisqualifJ Judge 

Carrillo? Was it ever acted upon? 

A I don't know. We were represented by counsel. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I believe that'a all I 

have. 

Mr. Maloney? 

11' Mil. MALOJIEY 

Q 

Q 

A 

Mr. leECaw, you're an attorney? 

Ye~&, air. 

You practice in Freer? 

Yea, air. I have practiced in Freer a little 

21 over twenty years. 

22 Q Do you have any other business interests at 

23 all? 

24 A Oh, yea. You know how lawyers are• they 

dabble here and dabble there when they can. But I don't 
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Bercaw - direct ____ _3__ 
have--right now I am on a board of directors of a 

company of which I have an option to purchase some 

stock, and that's the extant of my outside business 

activitiee tight now. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Is that company in Freer? 

Yes, air. 

What is the nature of that business? 

161 

A It's a petrochemical electrical contracting 

company, with most of our business in Freeport, Texas, 

with Dow Chemical. 

1970? 

Q 

A 

Q 

W~t is the name of this company? 

Industrial Electric Corporation. 

Rave you been in any other bu1ineaaes since 

A Rot aince 1970, I don't believe, Mr. Maloney. 

Bo, air. l was in the house building business a number 

of years aao with a builder, and my only dealings were 

to handle the financial, interim finance and paper 

cloaina• and that 1ort of thlaa. 

Q Well, I was noticing from the minutes of the 

School Board meettna• that before the Judge was elected 

a Judaa he wa1 on the 1chool board with you. 

A Ye1, air. I went on the Board in 156, Mr. 

Maloney, and I believe Judge Carrillo came on the Board 

1n '65 1 then resigned in '70. And to anewer your 
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24 

25 

questions of the other night of the two resignations. 

I don't have the answer to that either. 

Q I take it then that at no time while you were 

aervias on the Board did o. P. Carrillo indicate to 

you that be bad an interest in the Farm and Ranch Store 

in Benavides or in Zertuche's? 

Q And yet it looks like about weekly here you 

all were paying good sums of money to both. 

A I don't know the businesses in Benavides. 

Of course, in aoae places all schools buy from the same 

spot because it's the only place you can get it. In 

other cases, all of us try to do business at home as 

beet we can. These are little towns and they are small 

c~itiea and you try to do your business at home. 

tou aak me about Freer and I can tell you everybody 

and who owns aad everythin& else. But when you go into 

Benavides there are many people that I don't know and 

doa't know who owns these things. 

Q Let •• aak you this question: Had you known 

that Judse Carrillo bad an interest in either one of 

these buaiaeaaes 1 or both, would you have queationed 

these bills? 

A You betcha. Let's put it this way. The minute 

I aot kaowledae of aaythlna like that 1 tb1nk you can •••J 
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the certifications that I went after. 

MR. MALONEY: Mr. Chairman, I'm wondering, 1 

since Mr. Bercaw vas a member of the board at this 

t~e whether he could authenticate these records for 

us? 

CHAIRVUl.N HALE: He might. 

BY CHAIRMAN HALE 

Q Mr. Berea~. this book has been given to us for 

9 our examination and purportedly it represents photo-

IO copies of possibly not all of the minutes, but at least 

11 some of the minutes of the Board of Trustees of the 

12 Benavides Independent School District beginning in 1970 

13 and going through 1973. I would ask if you could look 

14 at that and examine it and see if it purports to be 

~~ actual photocopiee of the original minutesT 

16 

17 

18 

Row, I'm not going to be able to authenticate 

the dates because I don't remember, or what's in them. 

But now as to whether these look like they're our 

19 minute• 1 they look like it. There is no question about 

20 that very rapidly. This is the format we've used since 

21 I've been on the Board • 

22 Q I :r:ealt&e you would probably have to have the 

u origi1aal minutes and compare them side by side. 

24 Well, the original minutes would all be signed 

25 and 1 see so .. of these are not sianed. 
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Q I noticed that myself. 

A But all the original minutes would be signed, 

I'm s"re. 

Q Who signs the minutes of the school? 

A Th~ President signs the minutes after they 

are approved· At the next board meeting, they are approved. 

from the previous meeting, ana then signed by the 

s President and the Secretary. 

9 Q I see. Who would have been the President and 

10 who would have been t~ Secretary during the period of 

11 ~70 to 1 73 that these minutes purportedly cover? 

12 Well, of courae, as I'm looking here, Mr. D. 

13 c. Chapa was President, and Alfred Schuenemann was 

14 Secretary. 

15 

16 

q 

A 

Ia D. c. Chapa related to Judge Carrillo? 

HA 1 s his lather. 

17 BY MR. CANALES 

18 Q Mr. Bercaw, do you recognize Mr. D. c. Chapa's 

19 sianatul'e on any of those minutes? 

20 I have no reaaon to doubt that they are not. 

21 I just can't say that I recognize his sianature that 

22 well, but I would have no reason to believe that they 

23 are not. This looks like the format of the type of 

24 tbtna that we do in the ordinary course of the echool 

2~ buatae11. Y••. 
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CHAIRMAN HALE: Could I see the book back? I 
A Yes, Judge Carrillo was President of the 

Board for a period of time, and then Mr. o. c. Chapa 

was President of the Board for a period of time. 

I was President of the Board for a period of time many 

6 yea~a ago. I went back on as President, let's see now, 

10 

II 

12 

last year. 

MR. MALONEY: I believe you served without 

compensation on t~e school board? 

A It's cost me a ton of money, Mr. Maloney. 

MR. MALONEY: I know • 

A Somebody has got to do it. 

13 I want to tell you something, if it was a 

14 payiftl job, it would have to be an awfully doggone good 

15 one. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, if I can 

interrupt the Committee and if Mr. Mitchell is in 

agreeaent, I realize that the Committee would like to 

have the additional recorda which the auditor could 

20 supply us with. I would like to ask that he be 

21 permitted to go home to bring hia recorda to us. Ri&ht 

22 now he is under subpoena and cannot leave the Committee 

23 unleaa he has permission. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Let's hold that in 

25 abeyaQce just a minute here. 
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II Mi __ B_Y __ C_HA __ I_RMA ___ N_HA __ L_E ______ ~~~~----------------~-~~l 

Q Mr. Bercaw, let me ask you a question here. I: 
i i 

l ·I 
. i [ 

I' 
-1 I; 
) I 

6 

9 

10 

II 

I! 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

On October 19, 1970, there are minutes here bearing 

that date, showing a meeting of the Board of Trustees 

convened with the following members present: D. c. 

Chapa, President; M. K. Bercaw, Jr., Vice President; 

Al Schuenemann, Secretary; Enrique Garcia; G. P. 

Carrillo; •n~ Luis Elizondo, Trustees; the following 

members absent: Jose R. Garcia. 

One of the entries in that set of minutes 

reada like thia: 

"At thf.a time M. K. Bercaw, Jr. read letter 

of reeignatton P~om 0, P. Carrillo to the Board. 

Luis Elizondo made a motion to accept the 

resignation from o. P. Carrillo. The motion 

was seconded by Al Schuenemann. Vote carried 

unaalmoualy." 

Do you remember that? 

I remember the incident, yes, sir. This is 

what I wa1 referring to a while aao. 

Then the uext entry reads: 

·~. K. Bercaw, Jr. read letter of 

re1ignatlon to the Board from D. c. Chapa. 

Luis Elizondo made a motion to accept D. C. 

Chapa's resignation from the Board, seconded 
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Bercaw - direct 

by Enrique Garcia. ·rhe motion carried unanimously." 

Do you recall that incident? 

A I just reaember the overall wnole thing, 

Mr. Chairman. 

Q Then it aaya: 

"Luis Elizondo macie a motion to appoint 

&ogelio Guajardot Jr. in place of o. ?. 

Carrillo as a board m~mber for the B~navidea 

Independent School Di~trict. It was seconded 

by Al Schuenemann. Mr. Luis Elizondo also 

made a motion to appoint D. c. Chapa as a 

board member of the Benavides Independent 

School Di,~rlct. It was aeconded by Enrique 

Ca¥cla. M. K. Bercaw, Jr., preaidins, called 

for a vote oa the motion." 

It doeaa't aay what dispos1t1on was made. 

Thenz ·~r. Luis Elizondo made a motion 

to reoraanize the board by appointing D. c. 

Cbapa as President, M. X. Bercaw, Jr. aa 

Vice Preaident, Al Schueaemann as Secretary. 

It was secoaded by Enrique Garcia. The 

zz vote carried uualmoualy." 

23 Do you reM1Uer all of those transact1o~as? 

I don't re .. aber the apeciflcs. AI I 1ay, I 

25 re....,.¥ the tl'auact1o~as. Ye1, air. 
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Q Could you explain to the Committee, please, 

vby Mr. Chapa would resign and then a~ the same aeetina 

be reappointed? 

A The only explanation that I could poasibly 

••• from when you vera aaktng thta the other nisht, and 

I reaeaberad the question tn my mind at the time, ia 

that Rosello Guajardo, Jr. is D. c. Chapa's grandaon 

aad a aepbew of O. P. Carrillo. Now, why tbt. was 

aeoaaaary, I do not know. But it waa done. I don't 

~ of aay alaalftcance, Mr. Hale. 

Q The date of the minutes reflect it was done 

oa Oetobe~ 19, 1970, ia the dat• on the miaut~a. 

thl' ta when Judge Carrillo reata .. d to rua 

14 fo~ ella Df.atd.et Judaallllp of tlla 229tb. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q low loaa had Mr. Carrillo bean oa the Board 

of !Yuateea of the leaavidaa Indepeadaat Sobool Diatrtct 

at chat u .. r 

ob. I*va aot ia my mind 1965, but it could 

laave Mea before that. 

q 

• 
It wa1 aevaral yeara, tbouah, prior to 1970? 

Ob, yea. Be wa• oa there ••varal years •• 

•raaidaat &ad thea Hr. Chapa ea .. on. I doa't raa .. bar 

23 w11o pt off ad wllo aot oa thr:ouah the year•, HI'. Bale, 

24 kt tlMa llr. C:bapa became Pre1ldeat. 

2S Q The record• of the Seeratary of State reflect 

~t ~. o. P. Ca~rlllo •••· County Attoraey of Duval 
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Bercaw - direct 

County from January l, 1961 until January 30, 1970. 

2 ' A I~m certain that's correct. 

3 I Q Than he served on the Board of Truateea of 

the Benavides Independent School District simultaneously 

~ j with his service as County Attorney of Duval County? 

A 

7 

you. 

10 

II 

12 

Yea, sir. I assume that to be correct. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney? 

MR. MALONEY: That's all I have. Thank 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. Mr. Slack? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: He 1 s gone. 

u Mr. Hendricks? 

14 BY MI.. HENDRICKS 

15 Q Ken, let me say it's awfully good to see you , 

16 after ao many years. 

17 A It's good to see you. 

18 Q Do you have any knowledge of this Cadillac 

19 traneactf.onf 

2o A I have no knowledge of it other than what you 

21 beard. It's in that--the way tbia transcript reads, 

22 Judae Carrillo--now this 1a recallina from memory, having 

23 read Sunday tn a hurried manner, trying to wade through 

24 aad try to pick out this thing to see whether it was 

25 probative or not, because it had juat been given to me. 
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Bercaw - direct 3 11'J 0 
~----------~~~~---------~~~~', 

Judge Carrillo was trading cars in, I believe, 

December of 1970, and I don't remember the date, but in 

3 1 doing so be--well, it's a confusing thing there too, and 

4 I don't question what waa said, but it was a confusing 

thing. He was swapping a house and lot in Benavides for 

for the ten shares of stock and the Cadillac. I believe 6 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

that's what it boiled down to in tbQ testimony of the 

Statement of Facts. 

CHAIRMAN RALE: Fine. 

Mr. Nabers? 

BY MR. N.ABEllS 

Q Mr. Bercaw, do you know whether or not it 

violates the conetltutional laws of the State of Texas 

to serve as County Attorney and on the school board 

simultaneouelyt 

A I think it does. 

Q What about-

A I aay this to you, I think that when you run fo 

one you automatically resign from the other. 

Q Yes, sir. That's my impression, too. Of 

courae, I could be wrong. we'll find out. 

Aa a licensed attorney to practice law before 

the Supreme Court I assume you al1o practice law in 

Judae Carrillo's court? 

A Yes. air, I do. 
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Bercaw - direct 3 17 
Q In your opinion as an attorney practicing and 

licensed to practice before the Suprem~ Court, what kind 
of judae is heY 

A I have no complaints the way Judge ~arrillo 
I 

5 i baa treated me since he has been on the Bench. 
I 

6 Q Aa a judge? 

A Yea, sir. 

8 Q Except for this ona iQstance wh~•eby he removed 

9 you from the school board without a he~ring? 

10 A Well, of course, 1 a~aume if you're an 

11 attorney you juat got your new bar card and we had a 

12 little Dote with our bar cards 1 fOu'll r0memb&r, and 

13 you've sot to have continuity of judicial conduct.that's 

14 aood. I don't U.ke to be here. 

15 Q Does Judge Carrillo office in the courthouse 

16 ln San Dteaot 

17 Hie a&ln office is there. 1 think he baa--you 

18 see, I don't practice in Starr County. I think I've 

19 beell ill the courthouse in Starr CoulltJ oae time, and 

20 that was Oil aa UllCOiltested matter &ad just weat 1ato the 

court room. Aad 1 don't believe I've been in Jim Hos 21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

County aiace Judae Cazan--that waa taken out of his 

diatr1ct 1 aad I don't believe I've been--but I'm eure he 

haa some type of office. But hla mala office ta ia the J 
courthouae lu San Dleso. yea 1 alr1 to anawer your queatto • 
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Bercaw - direct 3 
Q To your knowledge, do you know whether or not 

he has practiced lew in the years oi 1971
1 

'72 or '73? 

A Judae Carrillo? 

Q Yea, air. 

A No, air. I don't think he has practiced any 

law--are you talking about since he's been oR the Bench? 

No, sir. I don't think he's practiced any 

law since he's been on the B~nch. 

Q Then would you quarrel with the sworn &tate-

aent •~&Aed by the Judge that he received income from 

the oractice of law? 

A Would I quarrel with it? 

Q Yet, air. 

A •o,.air. If be signed it I wouldn't quarrel 

w:U:b it. 

q Jut to your personal knowledge? 

A 1 don't kaow of any practice he has done. 

Ro, air. 

Q Do you koow whether or not that violates 

the Caaaon of Ethics? 

You betcha. 

Kl. OABALES: Mr. Nabers, may I interrupt 

you .o .. atarily? 

MR. NABIRS: Yes, sir. 
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Bercav - direct 3 173 
MR. CANALES: I believe in that question 

that you were putting to Mr. Burcaw with relation to 

the legality of holding two public offices at tbe same 

time. I believe that that practice is in violation of 

Article 16. Section 40, and Section 65 as was set out 

in the ease of Ramires vs. Flor~a, 505 Southwest 2nd, 406; 

Writ refused MRE. 

MR.. NABERS: 'l'haklk you. 

Do you know of any i~cld~~~$ wher• county 

property baa been used on Judge Carrillo's ranch? 

Of ay own knowledge~ no» etr. 

q Do ,.u kaow of any county funds being expended 

tbrouah the Parm and Ranch Store or the Zertuche Store? 

I have repreaeated the county and have been 

rlaht•of-way aaeat for many year• and thing• of this 

type. I kaov nothing about the actions or the workings 

of the Comaiaetoaera Court, you know, if that is the 

question you asked me. 

BY MJl. KAS'l'ER 

MR. BABERSr Thank you. 

CIIAIRMAB BALE: Hr. ltaater? 

Q Mr. Jercav. it is ay understandins that you 

and the other• vera removed fro. office with an order .J 
24 alleaed-

zs Hiacoaduct. Yea, air. 
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I! n !r-----Q----d--e-8-=t:.::r:.::o:.::y:.::i~D.'-g-r~e.~c~o~r!!..!CI"-. 8~_-D._G_Il_i S_C:_O_Q_Q_U_C_t_, - ~:~~~~-

: were specifications for th~ midconduct. Th•n you all 
! ' 

1 i! asked for a hearing on this matterY 
'I 
! I 

-1 j 1 A We pursued it pretty heavily. 
,I 

5 J ·: Q At the tiae the order was made to remove you • 

6 ! i waa there another o~der api)oiating your replacements at ! 
i 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

the saae timra? 

The first tim'"'~ I•ir. ~<alilter, that I SQW any 

kind of order that I got iG my lily white ha~ds, so to 

apeak, was in the Court of Civil Appeals when we went 

there. 

Q So you were seeking--

The day I waa served, I was served by Ranger 

14 

15 

Powell, I bad already had advance warning several days i 

before this was going to happen, and I quizzed him becaua~ 
16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

tbere waa no order. And I'm not aitting here trying to 

tell this Committee what the statute provides in regard 

to the reaoval of an elected official, but all I had 

was a noraal civil service citation on or before the 

flrat Monday after tb,_expiration of twenty daya. 

Q Which is in effect sort of an indictment. 

Well, that is exactly wh8t it was. It just 

aaya, ·~ou're bad, aad we're not going to set the time 

like it's auppoaad to be and we'll have a haa~iaa on th11 

tblna." 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 



I 
I 

3 I 
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Bereaw - direct 

Q Until you have a hearing, though, it's just 

an indictment until it's finally disposed of. Is that 

correct? 

A Right. 

s i i Q So that you were removed based on this indict-
!' 

6 I meat. I would assume that you and the others were 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

elected to fill your te~s. ineludiQg Cu~rillo and 

Guajardo? 

Yea, sir. 

Q Were those two terms up when Parr and Chapa 

were-

Their terms were up then. 

Q Your others were still running? 

Yea, sir. We were still on the Board. 

Q Those two were the only two that were up that 

year' 

Yes, sir. 

Q Bow, currently on the Board, as I read this 

chart, ts Mr. Ashby, Viegas, Oliveria, Gareie, Pete 

Buater, Parr aad Chapa. Is that correct? 

Q 

A 

q 

10, slr. We've got two boards. 

Okay. A11 right. 

We resiaaed--and I have here--wall--

Okay. That's aot the Board and that•• not what 

2s I '• tr,.tna to aet at. 
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Bercaw - direct 3 176 
A All right. 

Q Those who were on the~e ~n March the 19th 

were removed by indictment. Now, I notice that there 

ia an indictment and I see the date of March l8th 

aaalaat Judge Carrillo, which is a Federal indictment, 

which took place aouw~here during all this on the school 

board. Did you all become aw~re of that indictment of 

Judge Carrillo o~ wss that earlier or later, or do you 

know? The Federal indictment. 

March tho 28th? Is it dated? 

Q Filed March 28th. 

Let'• put it this W&Yw this indictment, I 

don't--Dow I'm recallin& from memory and I don't recall, 

but that 1adictment was--oh, yes 1 I remember now. It 

••• a aealed iadictment. 

eleat1oa. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

CIIAIIMAN HALE: It was a sealed indictment. 

And held over until after the school board 

After Ap~ril the Sth? 

After April the Sth. That's r:lsht. 

Then whea. waa it made public? 

I don't have any idea. 

Was it •oon after April the 5th? 

I •ould aeaume so. Yea 1 s1r. 

Well, f.t-
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Bercaw - direct 
nr--------------~~~~--~~~------------------~--~~·l 

A You kaow, I'm kiad of like Will Rogers, all 

I really know aomettmes is what I re&d in the paper. 

Q Yea. It disturbas me that somebody is removed 

on the baals of an indictment without a hearins, because 

if you follow that logic to conclusion we should do 

the same thing because this msn 1s indicted. 

A I'm not going to comm~nt. 

Q Well, I mean I'll have to resolve of that 

ia my own mind. 

1 1 11 take that, Mr. Kaster, if you ask me a 

d:l.:reet queattoD.. 

Q Ro. Just thlak1ng out loud. 

Th&llk you • 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Kaster, you kept 

mak1aa reference to an indictment. WG%e you o:r the other 

... be:ra of the achool board iadicted? 

ao, a1:r. We were auapeaded. 

Q I'• :referring to this--

CHAIRMAN BALE: Do you mean this civil 

IS:I.t that ~. filed, the removal suit? 

t••· tt•a a civil ou:l.t ia the form of a--it's 

22 a reaova1. 

23 

24 wa:rl'aato. 

25 

CllAIIMAW HALE: A removal ac t1oa. QUo 

Rlaht. It'• a quo warranto action, Mr. Hale. 
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Q I'm not an attorney and, to me, when I get a 

piece of paper and somebody is accusing me of something, 

it'•-

A It's a public indictment. It may not be a 

crl•lnal indictment but it's a public indic~ent. 

Q If I get something from a judge I'm going to 

worry about. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I simply interrupted to 

clarify the record that it was not an indictment 

involved in connection with--

. .A It's a civil indictment • 

CHAIRMAN HALE: A civil law suit. 

Q To me they're both allegations and the 

indictment ie an allegation and this quo warranto is an 

alleaatton and until you have a hearing and tt'a finally 

decided they're allegationa. I gueaa tbat 1 a probably the 

•ore better tezw •. _ 

~BAIRMAN KALE~ That'• true. Do you have 

aay further questlona? 

MR. lASTER: Ro. 

CBAI RHAR IL\LE : Hr. Dould son f 

IY Hll. DORALDSON 

Q Hr. ~ercaw. let me aak you fir1t, lenavidea 

Iadependent School Dletrlct is--

I'm sorry. You're a little garbled, Mr. 
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_________ B_e_rc_a_w_-__::d:..::i:.:r:..::e:..::c_:_t ________ _.,3L __ __l1R_, 

Donaldson. 
II 
! ' 

I' 

5 I : 
I 

6 I 

i 

10 

Q I don't doubt that. 

A At this time of the morning and all day and 

last night and before, I know. 

Q How many school buildings are there in the 

Benavides Independent School District? Where do you 

U.ve? 

A I live in Ft"eer. 

Q Is there a school in Freer? 

A There is a complete school system iu both 

11 towns. 

Q And they are both a part of the one school 

13 diatrf.ct? 

14 Yes, atr. 

15 Q Aa I recall, we had some teetimony earlier 

16 that pert of the Board took care of one achool and part 

17 of the Board took care of the other school. 

1s A Mr. Donaldson, you're going to get confused 

19 aaatn. This school board was created by the Legislature 

zo back f.n the early 30's when Freer was a boomtown, and 

21 Benavides was a prosperous rallchf.ng and farmina community 

22 And for a nUIIber of years- now I don't kaow how long; 

23 this is long before I moved there--the two boards never 

24 met. There were three from Freer and four from Benavides 

25 and they traasacted their bus1Daases and that vas it. 
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And then in the 50's they started meeting 
toaether. But in truth anci in fact and in the sense of 
the word Freer runs Freer and Benavides runs Benavides. 

Q But it's all one board of trustees? 

A But it's all in one district. All one board 
of trustees. In other words, when they recommended 

somebody or presented a bill we approved and they did 

the same thing for us. 

Q 

A 

Q 

How did you decide who ran which one? 

I didn't understand your question. 

How did you decide which members would run the 

Freer school and which ones would run the--

A The three from Freer ran the Freer and the 

14 four from Benavides ran Benavides. ! mean, you know, 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

peraonnelwise all of the entire workings of the system. 

If you will notice, a school district technically can 

only have one superintendent. But you'll see where there 

ere two superintendents. 

Q One for the Freer school and--what are the 

a .. e• of the schools? 

A Well, we cell ours Freer Public School and 

Benevldaa calla theirs Benavides Schools. 

Q How does your tax collections work on that? 

A All in one diettict. We have two separate bank 

accounts for maintenance, we have two ledaer1, two 
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Bercaw - direct 

journala. The only thing that'• all together are 

aalariea. I said you're going to get coofuaed. 

-3-. 18 L. 

Q But you've got only one taxing authority, 

don't you? 

A That's right. 

Q How do they decide who gees how much money? 

A Baaed on the ADA of the school systems. Ju6t 

8 like the State does to the district itself. we're a 

budget balanced school. 9 

10 

II 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Q They take the local ad valorem tax raiaed 

and apportion that on the basis of ADA? 

A Right. 

Q We're going to have trouble equalizing that one,! 

aren't we? 

A You betcha. It'• been a workable system for 

forty something yeara, so in a 1ense of the word you 

can't really argue with it. 

Q I suppose not. 

What confuses me a little bit, we have billa 

that were paid to Farm and Ranch Supply and they were all 

21 billed out to Benavidu Independent School Di8trict. I 

z2 auppoae there is no way to know whether tbat went to the 

23 Freer aroup or to the Benavides aroup. 

24 I think you can look through those billa and 

15 you will aee the breakdown just like I'm telling you it 
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Bercaw - direct 3 18 2 
1 

is. Freer bills and Benavides bills, Benavides cafeteria~ 

Freer cafeteria, Benavides transportation, Freer 

transportation, Benavides vocation, Freer vocation. 

Q Let me ask you one other quick question. I 

have never in my part of the country run onto this 

resigoatioa and appointment of succeeding board members. 

Ia there a statutory authority for appointment of 

reaoved school board members by the District Judge? 

The only authority that I know of is Article 

2311 of tbe Education Code• which states that the 

reaa1nin& acbool board members--

Q 

Q 

vacated? 

Sball appoint? 

-ahall appoint. 

The aueeeasors of those removed or otherwise 

It doean't say anything about removal. Who 

bava rea1aned. 

Q 

Q 

Well, if the office is vacated. 

Who have resigned. 

Okay. So that section relates only to 

21 rea1gaat1ons. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Rtaht. 

Q And to your knowledge you don't know of any 

otber atatute which apecif1cally authorizes the District 

Judaef 
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Bercaw - direct 

A Tbat'a a removal statute that we're talking 
about. 

Q Doaa tba reaoval statute provide that the 

Dtetrtot Judae will appoint aoaeone to serve pendiDJ 

tba teratnattoa of the ra~val? 

Q 

Q 

Q 

Peacllq hearb.g. 

PeacUGS he~rbs? 

Peadla& bearing. And be shall s~t a time 

On the citation? What did the citation 

Ara you an attorney, Mr. Donaldaon? 

Uaad to be. 

I bad a tlapla, ctvtl se'I:'Vice, "oa or before 

tba azpiratloa of twenty daya." 

Q 

A 

Q 

beart.aa'l 

Q 

A 

r lle aa ana we r. 

'ftaat'• right. 

Aad it didn't provide a place, date, t~e for 

lo, elr. 

Bat oaa ••• aubaequently set. Riabtt 

Tbe)' were ultiaatel)' aet for, like I aald a 

vl\lle aao, froa Juaa 9th through September tbe 29th, aad 

•• felt llke that you can't-- j 
Q So thea vbat·you're te111na me then ta that •po 
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I 
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7 

8 

9 

filing of the papera for removal, then the judge was 

acting within statutory authority--

A To appoint. 

Q --to appoint someone--

A To appoint. Yea. 

Q --peQding a final determinQtion or a bearing, 

which prior to the time that that heari~g took place 

you reaigAed. Is that correct? 

A That's right. WbQt I 1m sayi~g is that we made 

10 a moot question out of the case, to clear the air. 

11 Tried to clear the air anyhow. We didn't do it but we 

12 trf..ed to. 

13 Q What prompted you to inquire of the Comptroller 

14 aa to the ownership or retail sates permit for Zertuche 

15 aad Farm and.Raneh Supply? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A When this removal suit came up aad I'm 

charaed with destruction of recorda, which I knew 

nothia& about. I inquired, and there was also a hearing 

in the court in the 229th. 

Q !hat's what 1 don't quite understand. From 

you earU.e,r testimony you have indicated you didn 1 t 

know aaythina about Farm and aaach or Zertuche, and 

you caa't even recall specific bills but you knew that 

there were some that were probably paid by the school. j 
A If they were presented they were paid, I'm sure 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Q My question is, why did it occur to you that 

you should inquire as to who owned those businesses? 

A That's what I was trying t o answer your 
question on. 

Q Okay. 

A Then I start getting this feedback and, you 

i know, rumors don't buy a thing. There's only one way to 

8 find out and that's to go to the source. And t went to 

9 the source. 

10 Q All right. 

II MR. DONALDSON: Thank you. 

12 CHAIRMAN HALE : Mr. Laney? 

13 BY Mil. LAHEY 

14 Q What type of record were you supposed to have 

15 deatroyed? Was that named in the-

16 I don't recall any specific recorda. 

17 Technically they were checks and, of course, the bank 

18 baa the checks. 

19 Q You were supposed to have destroyed--the 

20 Board aaembera were supposed to have destroyed the checks? 

21 A Right. Like I say, I didn't know chis until 

22 soaae t1ae ln February that there bad ever been anythins 

23 destroyed. Whenever this Grand Jury started ita 

24 lnveatlaatlon I waa aubpoenaed and, of course, I have 

lS no peraonal recorda of the school; they are kept in 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Benavides. And when we got over there then that's when 

I discovered this, and of course then thare was a 

hearing of-- I believe in the newspaper there vaa 

something about checking the recorda. And I didn't 

know, you know. I just didn't know it. So then, aa I 

say, I started getting all these rumors and feedbacks and: 

etuff and the only way I could--like I told Mr. 

the only way I koow to go about something is to 

atraiaht at 1t. 

i 
Donaldson1 

go right 

Q Have you ever been in contact with anybody from 

the Attorney General's office concerning any matters 

dowa there? 

A Ro, air. I have been subpoenaed to the Grand 

Jury, but that vas before the Attorney General came down 

there. 

Q What about any discussion or any contact from 

the Judicial Qua11f1cationa Co.mleaion? 

A 

Q 

A 

Have I had any? 

Right. 

Yea, sir. 

MR. LANEY: I bava no further questions. 

CHA IIMAR HALE 1 Ma • Thoapaon 'l 

BY MS • THOMPSOlf 

A I want to know bow much were the attorney'• 

feea that you all paid to Attorney Orr? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A I don 1 t knoll. I don't remember the breakdown, 
but the record's there. I thiak the total w.u $60.000. 

Q Where do you buy the supplies in Freer for 
the Freer schools? 

A All over, you know. 

Q 

schools? 

Q 

asking? 

Q 

Where do you buy your food, basically, for the 

For the school system? 

Yes. 

For the cafeteria? Is this what you're 

Yea. 

From various. You know, they'll supply--one 

l 

14 store will supply for a while then another store will 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

supply for a while. We spread it around the town. 

We're a small town. 

Q 

Q 

Are these stores owned by any of your relatives 

Pardon? 

Are these stores owned by any of your relatives 

I don't have a relative except a wife ln Freer 

who does not work. a son who is going to A and M and a 

daughter who is married and lives in Houston. 

Q Bow long did you retain Mr. Orr, the four of 

24 you, as your attorney? 

25 The four of us? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Q Yes. Or the five, whichever number--

A Are you talking about this money on this 

alleaatiora! 

4 Q Yes. For the $60,000. 

A The seven of ua did it. 

6 Q Seven. How long was that period of time? 

A It was just to--for whatever was involved in 

8 the investigation. I and several of the people were 

9 urader aubpoeraa to the IRS. 

10 Q Was it for one month, two months, three 

11 moraths! 

12 A There waa no specific time, Ms. Thompson. I'm 

13 1orry. It was just that we hired them to take and 

14 repre1erat ua at the advice of the attorney that we 

15 rao~ll7 used, and he did not do this type practice. 

16 Q How long did you say you had served on the echo l 

17 board? 

18 A Nineteen yeara. 

19 Q Biraeteen years. And you never, out of the 

20 whole ralraeteen years, were ever concerned or interested 

21 la Ze~tucbe and the Farm and Rancb Store? I mean that 

22 baa never eatered your mind? 

23 Wbeaever their bills were presented to the 

24 board at the regular meetiDS by the auperlratendenta, 

25 wbiob 1a tba aoraal procedure aad bad been when I got on 
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the Board, and still is, we paid th~m. 

MS. THOMPSON: Thank you. 

A Ms. Thompson, may I say we're audited by a 

CPA and file our audits with the TEA like we're supposed 

to do. 

CRAIRMAN HALE: Ms. WQddington? 

BY MS. WEDDIWGTOK 

Q I'm still trying to puzzle through D. c. Chapa 

reaisnlna and thea being reappointed. You were on the 

school board at that time. Can you look at those 

records and tell if D. c. Chapa perhaps resigned from a 

te~ tbat was about to end and was reappointed to one 

tlwt had-

A I could not by just looktna at that date, I'm 

sure, because 1 don't know. Mow let me thin~. I mlsht 

back ~p to it backwards. Okay. Give me just a minute 

and I aay be able to anawer your queetion. But he 

could only be appoi~ted to the next election anyhow, you 

see, under tbe statute. 

Q But the next election for one position miabt 

be two or eore years. 

A Rlabt. Yea, thl1 ia true. Okay, let me see. 

Maybe I can fiaure lt out for you, because vben--do you 

want me to flsure th1a for you, Me. Weddiagtoa? 

Q could you figure that later and maybe give it 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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to the Committee? 

21 A I'll try. Let's see, '74, David Carrillo had 

taken his g~andfather's place on the board. That was 

• 11 1a '74. Be had to rua so that wao oae year left oa hlo 

return in '73. So that would be '73, '72, '71. So he 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

would have had to run the ~ext year. I assume. And I 

don't remember whether he did or he didn't. I don't 

reaeabar. 

Q Okay. 

A But he would not have been able to run for 

any. you know, I mean he could not have been appointed 

for any longer period of time than what he would have 

rua for, if I'm right in my figuring. 

Q You don't have any other explanation to offer 

for that transaction? 

A I have none. 

Q When did you all hire the firm to represent 

the aevaa of the school board members? What month? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

entered 

Q 

In August of last year. 

In August of t 74? 

Yea, ma'a. 

And at that tlllle, what kind of contract waa 

into for attorlley'a feea? 

lo contract. 

t waa there any aareemaat •• to tba attorney • 
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Q That is very unusual to hire an attorney 

without any kind of agreement as to fees. 

A Let's put 1t this way. The Board felt that 

we needed representation. 

Q Yes. 

Because we were being subpoenaed. And I might 

say it waa an illegal subpoena, and Judge Renaldo Garza 

did throw lt out, and then we had to go back. And we, 

at that particular time, didn't know what tbey were 
I 

looklna for or what they were after or anything else, and I 
I didn't--that's juat the best answer I can give you, ia 

we didn't know where we were going. 

Q Who negotiated on behalf of the school board 

with thoae attorneys for representation? 

I think• discussed it at that meeting that 

night who we would hire. 

Q Who contacted the attorneys about it? 

A I '• aure I dld, because I was under subpoena. 

Q But you ware the person that talked to the 

attorneys about representing the Board? 

ataht. 

Q And you dld not in any way dlscuss fees wlth 

25 thea? 
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A No, ma'am. 

Q You didn't diseuse whether you would pay them 

an hourly fee? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Mo, ma'am. 

Or what that rate would be? 

No, ma'am. 

Or what a contingent possible fee might be? 

We didn°t go into--that's not the normal-­

How did they bill you for their services? 

1 didn't even know when they were paid. I 

never saw the bill until much time later. 

Q Were billa regularly presented to the school 

13 board at their monthly meetinas? 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yea, ma'am. 

Q Did you aot look at the bills as they were 

preeeated f 

They ware not presented in that manner. 

How were they presented? Q 

A As, I recall, they were paid in the salary 

fuad, .. I fouad out later. 

Q And the Board never looked at the salaries? 

If you were the person that contacted tbem did you not 

ha•e to tell aomebody what they were to be paid, or 

ao one ever asked you what kind of salary arraaaemeat? 

A Rotblaa waa said. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Q Who would have been the person that would have-t 
A Excuse me just a second. Pardon? 

3 Q 

4 I fund? 

Who would have paid that out of that salary 

A I don't know who signed the check. I didn't 

6 sign it. 

Q Who has authority to sign the checks? 

8 A Well, the tax collector is one. You will find 

9 ia. the miautea the authority. The tax collector has 

1o to be oa. the check and then the superintendent in 

11 Benavides for Benavides aa.d the superintendent in Freer 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

for Freer, aa.d oae of the officers of the board. 

Q How .. a.y of those people have to sign one 

Three. 

Q Three of the four have to sign it? 

A Well, in Freer, as Vice President I was an 

officer aad Al Schuenemann was a secretary. 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

la. Beaavides Luis Elizondo was Vice President 

20 aad larique Garcia was secretary. 

21 Q Do three of the four people have to sign a 

22 cbeokf 

23 A Risbt. There bee to be three signatures on 

24 eaob cbeck. 

25 Q Siace you were the main one who was under 
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subpoena and were being represented, did you never 

inquire as to whether your attorneys were being paid? 

A The only bills I recall paying through the 

4 normal course of bills were the expense bills. These 

were paid and I don't think the minutes reflect how 

6 much were paid. 

7 Q And you never asked any of those people 

8 whether or not they were paying your attorney or whether 

9 they had gotten bills and you never asked the attorneys 

10 whether they had-

II A Let's put it this way. Up until the time I 

12 discovered that they were paid and how much, we were 

13 atlll involved. 

14 Q And when did you learn how much they had been 

15 paid? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

A I don't recall, Ms. Weddington, ea&atly, but it 

waa··aoae time afterwards. And when I aay "some time," 

I'• talklaa about four or five months. Three or four 

months. Soaethlna like that. I just don't recall. 

Fact of the .. tter ia, one of the Board members brought 

it to me, to my attention. 

Q If you hired them in August thea that would 

have been rapreaaatation through--

It waa towards tba latter part of the year 

bacau1e we bad n¢heard any more from--at tbla particular 
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"""TIN. TEXAS 



7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

15 

Bercaw - direct 3 
time. We hadD't heard anything more from the IRS or 

aa7thi.ng. 

Q How did it come to the other board members' 

attention and they raised it with you? 

A I have no idea. 

Q What ~•• the context of the conversation? 

195 

A I asaume, you know. they discussed it because 

it waa siane~ in Deaavides and 1 assume they discussed 

it 1a bow they found it out. I don't know. 

Q Bow much time would you estimate those 

atcorae7s put into that case? 
I 

A Oh, goah, I don't know. We made briefs, they I 
aade briefa. I v1aited with them. If you're trying to I 
put lt to an hourly basis type of thing, Mra. Weddington, 

I oaa•t do it. Of course, I'm not a lawyer who goes 

by the hourly basis. I juat don't. 

Q 

A 

What baaia do you go on? 

What I do for somebody. I've never charged a 

peaay for juat advice. I give more away than t--

Q And you didn't talk to them about some 

arraaa ... at based on what they were doing for you? 

Afterward• I dlscueaed the fact and they 

explained the fact that we didn't know where we were 

aotaa or what we were going to do and what the procedure• 

wera aolaa to be aad everything else. They were just 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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attacking everybody and we were just trying to protect 

what was ours, you know. 

Q Would you say that that transaction is 

characteristic of the business dealings of the Benavides 

Independent School Beard? 

A Well, in the manner in which this was done, 

yes. I'm going to t~ll you when that IRS goea to looking 

8 at you, you want to look back at them pretty hard. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q I would aay I would also want to know bow much 

I'• paying to be looked back, chough. 

Have you ever represented any taking 

authority in Duval County? 

A Yea, .a! ... 

Q Which ones? 

A I have been delinquent tax collector for 

Duval Couaty. 

Q What about the acbool board? 

A lfo. u'am. 

Q The water District? 

A Ro• aa'aa. Well, of course, the Water District 

1e ia with-yea. Tba Tax Collector of Duval County 

collaeta everythin& except the aebool taxes. 

Q So you repreaented DaYal County aa far as 

24 deltaqueat tuea were concerned. 

Yea. u'aa. 
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Q Did you represent them in any other legal 

coateat? 

A Yea, ma'am. I have been right-of-w~y asent 

for thea ever since I've been in Freer. 

Q Aay other context than thoae two? 

Dan Tobin, when he was County Judge
1 

at the 

time hired me and retained me to buy right-of-way and 

deal with the State of Texas, aod I have done it ever 

aiaee I've been in FrQar. 

Q Row lona have you represented the county as 

far aa their delinquent taxes were concerned? 

Off and on for a number of years. I don't 

rea.aber the firat contract aad 1 was out for a while and 

back la. 

Q Bow much would you estimate that your work on 

behalf of the county baa aenerated in legal feee on 

the averaae each year that you have worked for them? 

Well. let'• put it thle way. I could tell you 

if I had .Y booka here, but I don't recall offbaDd. It 

wae aood laat year. We collected quite a bit. 

Q 

Q 

Q 

Row much wae it laat year then? 

Oh, aomewhere near $40,000. 

Ia lepl feeat 

Yea, aa•am. 

Who decide• who doee the legal work for the 
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county? 

A The Commissioners Court. 

Q Have they changed attorneys recently? 

A I discusaed with them in December my contract 

runs from Coaaiesioners Court to ~ommisaioners Court, 

6 which is every two years, you know, to run. In 

December I discussed the contrac~ with the Commissioners ' 

8 Court. In January I presented it and they executed it, 

9 and this month it was brought to my attention that it 

10 waa not on the Comatss1oner's agenda and we're to 

II , di•cusa it on June the 9th. 

12 q So at this time your contract has not been 

13 coatlnued? 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Q 

q 

A 

Well, I just-- I consider it to be in effect. 

Are you continuing to do their leaal work? 

Yea, ma'am. 

And they are continuing to refer it to you? 

Well, let's put it this way. Not in the laet 

19 few daya. I do many things. I'm in Freer. 1 1m the 

20 oaly lawyer. I do many thing• for this work that you're 

21 dbcuasing about me working for Duval County. 

22 

23 

Q 

A 

Yea. 

One of the thin&l that we're working on and 

24 hawe been working on for some time is uader these new 

25 law• of aanitatioa. We have to have sanitary landfills 
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for the three large communities in the county. I have 

nesociated with some engineers and gotten estimates and 

stuff like this for them, and negotiated with land 

owners to~ell, only on two land owners. You see, 

you've sot so much requirement, and one of the problema 

in Preer is that we've got so many of those old oil 

wells and you can't get close to one of those things, 

you bow. 

Q Is your legal work in that connection in 

addition to that that you would earn as the delinquent 

tax attorney? 

A Yea, m.a'am. 

Q So you earned $40,000 last year in connection 

with your delinquent taM attorney work? 

A Yea, aa'am, 

Q How aucb additional fee did you earn from the 

coUDty for other work done? 

A I draw $300 a month retainer hom them for the 

rest of tbla other stuff. 

Q In addition, if you have a particular item of 

buslnesl llke thole negotlatlna those tranaactioas, are 

you paid in addition? 

A I charge phone calla and stuff like that. I 

don't charae any expense for travel to San Dieso and 

tblaaa of tbla type. It la just $300 a month and tbea 
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whatever phone calls I have. 

Q Are there other attorneys in Duval County? 

A Yea, ma'am. 

Q Approximately how many? 

A Almost everybody is an elected official, so 

6 there is juat--- I think three of us that actually 

1 practice law. 

8 Q Have you represented any other public entity 

9 in the county? 

10 I represent the Freer Water Control and 

11 Iaprovement Dlatrict, Ves, ma'am. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

q 

A 

Q 

A 

How much do you earn from them? 

I draw $50 a month retainer. 

Plus other auma for special work? 

The only auma I drew is when I orsaniced the 

16 feea for that type work were 3 per cent, so I aplit it 
I 

11 with them, Mlf clvU and half legal. 

18 MS •. WEDDINGTON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

19 ORA IllMAN HALE : Mr • Chavez ? 

20 BY Mit. CHAVEZ 

21 q Mr. Bercaw. you aave ua a bunch of copies of 

22 thla 11Corpu1 Chriat1 Caller." Do you know this fellow 

23 Speader Pearson peraoDally? 

24 tea, air. He waa here juat a little while aao. 

25 Q I know Mr. Hale placee areat truet in tbia 
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newspaper. Do you also place great trust in it? 

A I don't disagree with the-the "Caller" is a-

3 I take it every day. Of course • I take the "Alice Echo" 

too aad the "Laredo Times." 
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Q Is Mr. SpGacer Pearson a fairly reliable 

reporter? 

A I think he is, Mr. Chavez. Yes. sir. 

Q You would='t question too ~uch what he says? 

Well, you know, newspapers like to sell 

newspapers now. Let's don't kid each other. 

Q Well, but I mean, I'm asking you. I don't 

know this fellow. So I'm asking you, do you think he's 

a pretty good and reliable reporter? 

I think ''loaea" is a pretty good boy. I really 

do. 

Q Who was the tax collector over at the Benavides 

Iadepeadeat School District? 

Mr. Coultas. 

Q Mr. CouU.Da? The fellow that was here 

yeaterday that took the fifth A .. 11dme11t? 

A Yea, air. 

Q In addltioD to being a tax collector. dld he 

perform any other aervlcea for the district? 

Q 

lo. Dot for the district. 

Re didn't act like the business aanaser for the 
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A Oh, well, yes» in this sense of the word. He 

kept the books and thia sort of thing there iQ the tax 

office, and thie is the only central place that we've 

got in thia unique district that we're living in. 

Q You mentioned a while ago that if you had 

of kmown that Judge Currillo might have had an interest 

in a store that might have done buQin~ss with the school 

district that you might have--

A 

Q 

I would have questioned dim about it, certainly 

You might have stopped that type of practice 

becau1e be might have a conflict of interest? 

A I think that is quite true. 

Q Rot neceaaarlly just Judge Carrillo but 

anybody elae? 

Let's put it this way. I don't think Judge 

Carrillo--well, I don't want to sake it--let me anawer it 

this way. I would have talked to Judge Carrillo about 

the altuation bad I have known it. Yea, air. 

Q A~d you would have done that with anybody else 

asaoclatad with the school diatrlct? 

A Yea, air. 

Q Did the school diatrict ever do bueineas 

with the Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

Q 

According to the thinga I've heard, yea, air. 

Okay. 
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one tbat I used to remember wh•t this w~~ prior ls the 

old Olivetti Implement Company. And that was one that I 

did know about. 

Q You didn't know that Mr. Couling owned this 

Benavides Implement? 

A No, air. I sure didn't. 

Q You worked with bim closely there in the 

school district and you didn't know thia? 

A I knew him as tax collector and we discussed--

well, for the years that I was not president of the 

board I didn't have the contact with him I've had in the 

last few--since I've gotten back as President of the 

Board. 

Q Right. You gave us a whole bunch of newspaper 

clippings froa the "Caller." I don't think you mentioned 

this one that came out today. It says, "Sueeess in 

Duval: Use Iaplemea t charge card." It's a 11 t t le 

story by Spenaer Peerson. 

A Yea • air. I read that myself. 

Q It has to do with Rodolfo M. CouUag. 

A I don't have it. I read it. 

Q Okay. Well, I' 11 read portions of it for you 

for your benefit. It: says, 

"B.odolfo M. CouUns vaa not a hiahly paid 
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executive when be was taxleollector for the 

Benavides Independent School District» but 

the fringe benefits were good. The salary 

was $1,0S.5 a month; ;that he got lots of QXtraa 

such as travel allowance, all gasoline he could 

U8e and tires for ~is car. Another fringe 

benefit was profits for his store, Benavides 

Implement end Hardware» which did & pretty 

good volume of business with the school 

district. On top of all of that, the tax 

recorda reflect that he didn't bother to collect 

taxes he owed the school district. Couling 

was a tax collector for several years, was 

fired by the court appointed school board in 

April. No reason was given for his dismissal 

but lt occurred during an inveetigation into the 

1chool district financial records. Although hta 

title was tax collector, he acted as bu81neas 

aaaager. 

Coullng ran into trouble with the school 

trustees wbea they asked to look at aoae 

caaceled cbecka issued by the echool d1a.trict. 

Be said that all cbecka is••ed prior to the 

current school year had beea destroyed. He did 

not say bow the checks were disposed of but they 
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could have been run through a paper shredder 

in the tax office store room. There were bits 

of 

1s 

his 

you 

A 

Q 

checkl in the shredder yesterday." 

dated May 22nd. 

"He also kept a ll.il:lta'tul'e shredder behind 

desk," 

know that? 

No, sir. 

As a school trust~e you didn't go to the-­

I've been in his office many times and I've 

11 never seen a miniature shredder, I wouldn't know what a 

12 miniature shredder looked like though, so 1 could have 

13 aeen it and m1ght not have knowa it. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Q 

bit bare. 

All riaht. Row let me go oa and skip a little 

It aaya: 

"couU.aa'• salary which was $1,035 a 

moatb was really more than that. He did aot 

have to contribute to his own retirement as 

110at ect.tOo~-';•pJol'•e• do. The School District 

1taelf paid 6 per cent for him which amounted 

to $62.10 monthly. The School District also 

paid the retirement ooatributf.oa of Rosa-" 

that'• one of your auperinteadenta. ataht1 

A Yea, slr. 

Q --- . ·~~bo•e · ,alary was $2 • 096 a month. The 
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6 per cent contribution was $125.76 a month. 

Cou11ng'a salary in 1973 was $835 a month. 

Be received a $5,000 check on June 8, 1973, 

which was marked 'Advanced salary.' The gross 

amount was $5,500, and $500 was deducted for 

income taxes." 

Did you know about that? 

A No, sir. I did not know about that until I 

9 read it in the paper. 

10 

II 

l2 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

You were on the school board at that time? 

Yes, sir. 

And you didn't worry about-­

I didn't know this. 

You all don't make a budget? 

Sure we make a budaet. 

You don't make an audit? 

Sure •• make an audit. 

Aad this wasn't brought to your attention? 

1 jaa~ didn't ku~ it. That's rlsht. Agaia, 

Mr. Cha•ez, y~••• got to remember one thins. We're 

21 24 miles apart and 1 1m not there every day. 

22 Q But you go to the school board meetings, don't 

23 youf 

A Yes, air. One 1n Benavides one month and one 

25 in Freer the next month. This never came to the Board's 
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attention. 

Q Let me skip a little bit down further. 

"Couling drove his own car and to use all 

the gas he signed for he must have driven all 

over the co~tryside daily. During 1973 he 

signed for 5 1 491.1 gallons of gas using a 

credit card asaigned to the tax offic~. 

Assuming an average of 12 miles to the gallon 

he could have driven to Freer and back five 

times a day, five days a week, for 50 weeks 

and still had enough left over for a 3,000 

mile vacation trf.p." 

A 1 assume hf.s mathematics are correct. 

Q "His credit card tickets often showed 

amounts of more than thirty gallons. They 

also showed purchases of different types, 

preaf.ua on one ticket and regular on the next." 

Let me ao on down. 

"A..Decellber:1973 ... 1avoiee from Oshman's 

Athletic Goods of Houston showed the purchase 

of two juap suits, two pairs of hunting pants, 

two a..unition belts, two pairs of insulated 

underwear, a radio, a stereo set and a cart 

all shlpped to Benavides Tax Office care of 

Jt. M. Couling." 
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Do you know about that? 

Q "Tlia Benavides Implement and Hardware, 

which Couling owns, did a land office business 

with the District, average better than $2,500 

a month untlll974. 

In 1973 Benavides Implement and Hardware 

received a total of $30,583 for invoices 

listing all kinds of supplies 1 ranging from 

toilet tlasue to lawn mowers. The District 

bouaht lawn mowera as if they were going out of 

style. Invoices for 1973 ahowed 25 lawn mowers 

sold to the District for three schools in 

Benavid,e." 

Do you kbow about that? 

A No, sir. I'm sure I approved the bill if it was 

11 presented, but I didn't see the invoice, if that's your 

18 question. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

Q All riaht. 

"The School District Tax Rolla indicate 

Coulina didn't bother to pay hla taxea, and 

aa tax collector didn't bother to collect them. 

He was on the delinquent tax rolla for tba 

yeara 1966 through 1 73, owing $425.44 for these 

yeara, plua $79.29 for the current year, which 
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was due last September. He also was on the 

delinquent rolls for the years 1953 to '64 

but a notation on the rolls states 'settled 

by Board on 9-15-64. "' 

Do you remember that transaction? 

A No, sir. You're asking me if I remember it. 

7 I'm not saying it's not so; I'm not saying it is. I just 

8 don't remember. 

9 Q You're here obviously a little irritated about 

10 the fact that Judge Carrillo apparently signed an order 

11 removing you from office. 

12 A Well, yes, sir, it's a little irritating, I 

13 have to admit . 

14 Q Right. And you mentioned that some of the 

15 reasons that you all were dismissed was for destroying 

16 the records, paying those exorbita·nt: attorneys fees 

17 and, as you mentioned, the basis for removal was 

18 misconduct. 

19 Taking all these things, if all these things 

w are tru~ and apparently Mr. Pearson I don't think would 

21 lie about these things, don't you think that there was 

22 some misconduct? 

23 A Well, let me ask you this, Mr. Chavez: when 

24 you heard Mr. Couling taking the Fifth last night, I 

25 think that answered your question, didn't it? 



Bercaw - direct 3 210_ 
Q You don't think you're responsible for this 

also? 

A Well, let's put it this way, I didn't know 

4 about it, and if I'm responsible for something I didn't 

5 I know anything about then I stand responsible then. 

6 Q If these have taken place you don't think you 

7 ought to assume some responsibility? 

8 A I'm not denying any responsibility. 

9 Q And if these things ware happening and you 

10 didn't know about it-

II 

l2 

l3 

A 

Q 

A 

That's what I'm sayiag. 

-then you s bou ld-

For whatever responsibility I stand up for I 

14 have to stand. I cannot run from it and I don't intend 

15 to run from tt. 

16 Q And you don't think this is the basis for 

reaovel from office? 

18 A That wasn't what the basis was. 

19 Q You mentioned what--well, something about 

20 destroying checks and stuff. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

May I make this statement to you, Mr. Chavez. 

Make any statement you want to. 

A Since you're quizzing me in this manner, I 

would like to make this statamen t to you. I did not 

know anything was destroyed until, like I say, some t~e 

I 
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in February. 

Q You didn't know anything about all these 

payaenta to Couling or Couling'e place? 

A I'm aura they were put on the bills and were 

approved by the billa. I don't queetion tbie. 

Q All right. 

A Mr. Couling testified, I uader~tand-- I was 

not preaent in c:ourt--that Mr. D. c. Ch•pa waa the one 

that told hia after tne audit was approved by the TEA 

to so ahead and get rid of all this stuff out of the 

office. Now, I don't know that to be true. But that 

was testimony I understand in the court. 

Q I take it that you did have soae type of a 

bearlaa on the reaoval? 

A lo, air. 

Q It was a 8\lllllllary removal? Ex parte? 

A Ex parte. 

Q All rl&ht. The inatruaenu that you received 

that they have a show cause order? 

A Jo, air. They had nothln& but just a petition 

in a nor.al civil--are you an attorney? 

Q Par~ tiae. 

A --c:iv11 aervice citation, "on or before the 

fbat Monday after the exphatlon of twenty day•." 

It 1 1 in the record. 

Period!. 
J 
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All right. 

You did have your case eventually set for 

Eventually after--

So the issues that were raised by this 

6 petition were never litigated? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

A That's right. They were not. 

Q Since they were not litigated either by Judge 

Carrillo or any other court, we don't know whether or 

not tbe allegations set out in that petition are true or 

not. 

That's exactly right. I tried to get it done 

ll throuah my attorneys all the way across the street, to 

14 set an immediate hearing. 

I~ Q Well,' but your case did eventually get a 

16 eettlna, did it not? 

17 A Yea, sir. The four of us from June the 9th 

18 to Septaaber the 29th. 

19 q Well, but you did gat a setting. 

20 A Oh, yes. Yea. 

21 Q And you decided to d iam:l.e s • 

22 A ror those number of months and keep a school in 

23 turaoUf You oaa't do that and keep a good school. 

24 Q Well, I've tried a c•.ee or two in my career a ad 

25 some ti~•• aoa. casea take quite a bit of tlae. 
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A Right. 

Q And I've seen some cases dismissed when you 

3 i don't have either a good defense or you don't have a 

good case to start with. 
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A I wouldn't have tried so hard if I hadn't of 

wanted a bearing. 

Q Why did you decide--

A Because of the length of time involved and the 

disruption of the school time, for the benefit--the TEA 

can write a letter of unaccreditation of the school. 

Riaht ~ere in--dealing with accredited schools. 

Q If you felt really that strong abcut it--

A I want to tell you it wasn't easy to decide 

to resign. I'll tell you that. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Lat's try not to both of 

you all talk at the same time. tt makes an impossible 

situation for the Court Reporter. 

I'm sorry, Mr. Hale. I was just trying to 

19 d.arify. 

20 Q If you felt that strong about it, why didn't 

21 you aotually go ahead and go to trial? You paid these 

22 p.ys $60,000 bucks. 

23 A We're stUl paying them right now. 

24 Q. But you still didn't 11~ gate it? 

25 A Ho. I haven't litigated. 
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Q Now, you had an opportunity to litigate and it 

wasn't litiaated, and now you and these others witnesses 

are coming here and asking us to in effect remove Judge 

Carrillo. 

A I'm just &ivins you what stuff I had to offer 

6 you to abow wbat I had. I'm not asking you to do any-

7 th1ft8. That's your job» M~. Chavez. 

8 Q Do you think be ought to be removed? 

9 A Yea, sir. 

10 Q On what basis? 

11 A Mr. Chavez, I have here in my hands a case 

12 fro• the 229th in which Judge Carrillo sat on the Beach 

13 ln a case where_tba Duval County Ranch Company filed a 

14 la•ault agaiaat a aumber of oil companies, none of whom 

15 I repreaented--noae of whom I represented. 

16 

17 

Q 

A 

When was that ease filed? 

That ease wae filed-- I don't recall the date, 

18 but let me read you something here: This is the Beaumont 

19 Court. and I do not have the citation because I just 

zo sot this in my hands, but it is in the Advance Sheets, 

21 1 1m sure. It was filed January the 23rd. 

22 Q What year? 

23 A 1975. 

24 Q That's the Opinion of the Beaumont Court? 

25 A This is the Opinion of the Beaumont Court. 
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Q AU right. 

A The case was for a temporary restraining 

order against the oil companies "from pumping, flowing 

or producing any petroleum or oil from leases located on 

the following sections of land in Duval County, Texas, 

from which the foresaid defendants have been producing 

petroleum and oi.J. to wit •" .w.nd here follows the name of 

each individual oil companies. And they set it out in 

here, vhicb I'll give it to you in just a minute. 

Q Try to make it short. What is it specifically 

that the Court says that Judge Carrillo did wrong? 

A Here is what I'll quote, on page 5 of this, a 

footnote 3-11ell, 0 fb.e ~&ppeal-" and I'm quoting from 

page 4 at this moment. 

"The appeal from the order granting the 

temporary injunction dated January 18, 1973, 

has been delayed because of the inability of 

the Court Reporter to prepare and file a 

Statement of Facts. It was not until June 14, 

1974 that the record was COilpleted." 

Footnote three. 

"Delay over such a protracted period 

frustrates the administration of justice and must 

be eliminated. This t• particularly true when 

the appeal 1a from an order granting a temporary 
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injunction. A 20-day appeal under the revised 

civil statuees, 4662, 1952-" 

and then it quotes some eases. 

I would like to present that right here. 1 

Q Well, are you saying that the judge speeificaltt 

prevented the Court Reporter from preparing the 

transcript, the Statement of Facts, or whatever was 

needed? 

A Who does the Court Reporter work for? 

Q Be works for the State of Texas, or the 

COUilty. It depends on how-

A Tbat 's risht. And under whom? 

Q Is that what you're saying? Is that your 

14 accusation, that Judge Carrillo prevented this Court 

15 Reporter from preparing the necessary instruments! 

16 I could not say that. JUdge Carrillo prevented 

17 it. Bo, sir, 1 cannot say that. 

18 Q You understand the severity of the proceedings. 

19 You underaland what we're doing and it's pretty important 

20 A You bet. 

21 Q You wouldn't want us to--

22 Make a wrong decision. 

23 Q You wouldn't want us to gueas this un off the 

24 Bench • would you? 

25 A Ho, sir. 
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Q Isn't that in fact what you're asking us--

you've given us--let me finish my question. You're 

giving us this caae showing that one instance in which 

the Court of Civil Appeals apparently got after somebody 

for not doing something expeditioualy, and you're saying 

o . that that reflects b&ck on the Judge himself? Is that 

what you're saying? The Opinion--the footnote, as far 

8 as you read it, didn't say anything about the Judge. 

9 MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman. I think I 

10 have a witness that is coming in who will teati~y. I 

II 

IZ 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

told the Committee that I was going to go from the 

malfe--or the acts which we were discussing earlier into I 
official miaeonduct and political oppression. 

I have a witness who will be comins in and 

w!ll testify, I anticipate, to the effect that the 

present Court Reporter-- I believe his name ia &oberto 

Elizondo--

A Yea, atr. 

MI. CANALES: --was put throush school on 

20 county pay checks similar to those claims that we have 

21 here at the instance of the County Commissioner, and 

22 tbe minute, or aa soon as he finished Court Reporter 

23 School after drawing checks while he was not working 

24 for the county but away at school, the Court Reporter of 

25 that Court was summarily removed and then Mr. Roberto 
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Elizondo replaced him. 

The man who-- I don't know who approved the 

checks for the payment of these particular claims or 

whatever, but it is apparently either the Judge or his 

brother. And this man is the one that is preaently 

serving as the Court Reporter in thia particular 

instance. 

(A document was marked 
"Exhibit 13," 
for identification.) 

Q Mr. Bercaw, have you ever read any other 

court appellate decision by an Appellate Court, Supreme 

Court, Court of Criminal Appeals, Federal Courts, in 

which in some instances they have also made soma comments 

about the way the judges have handled the eases? 

A Oh 1 yea. 

Q Do you think those judges ought to be 

diaqualified, removed from office? 

A On this alone? 

Q Yea, sir. 

A No, sir. 

Q All rtght. 

A One other thing I might add, Mr. Chavez, 

since you have asked me about it, if you will remember 

what I have seid and shown you here, there waa filed 

on October 24, 1974, under the Reciprocal Act for Child 
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Custody, a case numbered 8841 on the docket of the Z29th 

court, where Bernice Margaret Nichols filed for child 

custody against Mr. Joe R. Nichols. 

MR. CANALES: Excuse me, Mr. Bercaw. Is 

that the same man that we were referring to earlier? 

6 A This is the same man we were referring to a 

7 while ago. And you will note what has been placed on 

s that record. 

9 Q What is it that you are saying that the Judge 

10 did wrong there? 

II A Well, I would think child custody to a woman 

12 who had children under age would be an important matter 

13 that ouaht to be brought to the Court's attention and 

14 aoae action takert on it. 

15 Q I haven't read the thing and I don't bave 

16 time to read lt now. That's why I'm asking you, what is 

17 lt that-

IR She 11 seeking child custody, I mean child 

19 support, excuse ae. I don't mean custody; child 

20 support. 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 

What la it that you say the Judge did wrong? 

Well, I think I would have acted on it. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Bercaw, I think he 

24 wants to know bow long this matter has been pending in 

25 court without a-
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A Since October of_! 74. 

Q Alld it hasn't beaa acted on? 

A Passed February 3t,d, 197.5. 

Q Doea the docket reflect-

A There's the docket sheet right there and 

think it's signed aa of the 17th day of May, 1975. 

Q Does it reflect who requested the case be 

paued? 

A No, sir, it does not reflect it. 

22U 

I 

MR. CANALES: Would it be the District 

Attornay in this particular type of matter? 

A I would assume it would be the District 

Attorney. I don't know. Under the Reciprocal Act I 

would :have to assume it. 

Q If there is a case there before the judge and 

the District Attorney comes up ~here, he's the movallt 

and he aays, "t want to pa;..s this case," does the 

judae-

A No reflection of this. Normally Judge 

Carrillo reflected who wanted what passed, if it was 

asked to be passed. 

Q Are you saying he passed it on his own motion? 

A I assume so, knowing how Judge Carrillo used 

to handle bis cases. 

Q Do you have personal knowledge of his doing 

l 
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that? 

He notes everything he does on the case. 

Q Do you have personal knowledge of hia doing 

that? 

A No, air, I do not. 

6 Q All right. Do you have personal knowledge of 

any other improprieties that you might want to accuse 

8 him of? 

9 A I don't think so at this time, Mr. Chavez. 

JO Q Well, this might ~e the only time you have now. 

II A I might make one more statement. 

12 Q Yea, air. Go ahead. 

13 A This is not pleasant to me. 

14 Q Well, it's not pleasant for us to be raking 

15 the Judge over the coals or anybody else. 

J6 A I know it's not. This is a very serious, 

17 serloue thing. 

18 Q Yea. air. 

19 A And I don't like sitting here. 

~0 Q I could be home with my family too, you know. 

21 A And I have already had to be out of my 

22 bualaeaa quite a bit 1 too. But 1f I didn 1 t think it 

23 waa laportant I wouldn't be sitting here. 

24 Q I'm sure that's true, Mr. Bercaw, and I don't 

25 ar1u• with that. 
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(The ~ocket sheet was 
WLrked "Exhibit 14," 
for identification.) 

Q Mr. Bercaw, the thinsa, as I understand it, 

4 that you miaht want to show this Committee, things that 

the Committee might consider as matters that might be 

6 called impeachable offenses, is that he would not, or 

7 he was disqualified in that Mangeb-Gue~ra lawsuit; that 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

the Beaumont Court cf r,ivil Appeals ma~e a reference 

about the record not being sent up there timely, and this 

other matter here that has not been acted on since 

October? 

A Well, let me &o one step further with you. 

Q Yea, sir. 

A There is definitely a connection, as has been 

ahown, both in the disqualification of the Starr 

County caae and in the action• that have been taken 

aince, let'a just aay March 19, 1975, however, I knew 

of lt before that, certainly show not an impartial 

judse sittlna fair, impartially and unbiased on the 

Bench of the 229th District in Duval County. 

Q All right. Bow, you as an attorney would 

recognize that, wouldn't you? 

A 

Q 

All I want is a fair and impartial judge. 

Right. But I say you as an attorney would 

25 recoanize that. 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q Would that not b~ also true of the attorneys 

that were involved in that litigation? Wouldn't they 

recognize that also? 

A I would assume so. 

Q Would you conaider that to be either mis-

conduct in office or a violation of the Rules and 

Caaaone of Ethics? 

A 1 would answer you in this way, Mr. Chavez, 

that Judge Carrillo appointed a man who ran for the 

ecbool board and lost very heavily to take my place, 

you know, and who was soundly defeated in the next 

ecbool election, and who made a public statement of bow 

be felt ia the newspaper, which you have in front of you, 

and you have quoted it, and thea makes these actions and 

than refuaaa to do what a normal judge tryina to be fair 

aad iapartial to all lltiaants and all attorneys in a 

caae. Add it up, Mr. Chaves. 

Q How, you know as an attorney, Mr. Bercaw, that 

no dl1trlct judge acts without eomeone initiating some 

lltiaatlon, don•t youf 

A 

q 

A 

Q 

That's risht. 

Who initiated tbe litigation on you? 

Joe a. Rlchols who work• for Clinton Mangas. 

Ia be an attorney? 

I 
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A No, sir. He's the foreman of the Grand Jury, 

choaen to be on the Grand Jury by Mr. Morris Ashby who 

took my place and alao worka for Mr. Clinton Manses. 

Q Maybe I ~isunderstood you. I thougat you said 

you were aerved with a citation and a petition. 

6 A On the Relation of Joe R. Nichols. 

7 Q Who filed that for Mr. Nichols? Did he file 

8 it himself or did somebody--

9 A No, certainly not. The District Attorney 

10 filed it. 

II 

12 

Q 

A 

Q 

All right. So the District Attorney-­

Is the attorney in the case. 

Do you think he might have made soma inveati-

14 aatton or ao .. thing and liatened to the complaint, or 

~~ are you also accusing the District Attorney of some 

16 impropriety? 

17 

18 

19 

A 

thiq. 

Q 

I'm not accusing the District Attorney of a 

So the District Attorney initiated the 

20 petition, took it to the judge, apparently convinced the 

21 judae that this was the proper thing to do and the judge 

22 ai&ned the order. Would that be a proper sequence of 

23 eventa? 

24 A May I ask you what order and how and in which 

25 aanner it was done and how was, you know, waa the law 
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complied with in doing so? 

Q But my point is that the judge himself did not 

initiate this petition. He didn't file it himself and 

issue an order himself, did be? 

A No, sir. 

6 Q All right. 

i A while ago I asked you if this matter of the 

8 disqualification in that Manges-Guerra litigation, if 

9 you might consider that as a violation of the Rules and 

10 Cannons of Ethics? You answered me but you started off 

11 somewhere else. I would like for for you to try to 

12 answer that question for me. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

A At the particular time this case was tried--

aaetn, as I say. this is new in my hands--we did not 

beve the rules promulgated by the Supreme Court of the 

State of Texas which we now have in effect. 

Q Well, we have always bad Rules and Cannons of 

Ethics, haven' .t we? 

A Well not in the manner in which we now have 

2o thea. We only have them since the court put them in in--

21 Q Let me ask you this way then. 

22 You're an attorney. You know whenever we saw 

23 thea come in. 

24 Q Since I've been practicing law I thought that 

25 we bad some Rules and Cannons of Ethics. Maybe I've been 



6 

7 

8 

9 

10 
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wrong all this time. Have we or have we not had some 

Rules and Cannons of Ethics over the past, say, ten or 

fifteen years? 

A Not judieial conduct. 

Q Don't the Rules and Cannons of Ethics apply to 

all lawye~s? 

A Lawyers, yes. We have had them since we 

integrated the bar. 

Q 

A 

Right. Aren't the District Judges lawyers? 

Certainly. 

11 Q You don't think that the Rules and Cannons of 

12 Ethic1 at that time affected them? 

13 I'm not going to prejudge or anything else 

14 about what transpired in Starr County in that case, Mr. 

15 Chavez. 

16 

17 

Q 

A 

Well, as 1 understand--

! submitted that to you for what Judge Manges 

18 Smith found in that case, for whatever probative value 

19 it may be to this Committee. That's all I submitted it 

20 for. 

21 Q You don't think that if that had been a 

22 aer1oua breach of his duty that somebody might not have 

23 brousht that to the attention of the Supreme Court or 

24 somethlns like that to remove this man if he was not 

2s doins his job like he was suppoted to? 
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A I tnink fie was doing it. I've been told that 

he was doing it. 

Q And the Supreme Court didn't agree? 

A And there was no Supreme Court--it was taken 

to the Qualification Board at a later time. 

6 Q You know that the statutes also provide another· 

7 manner to remove District Judges besides impeachment? 

8 

9 

10 

II 

I 2 

13 

14 

I~ 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Through the Supreme Court. Yes, sir. A 

Q 

A 

And no steps have been taken along that line? 

Bot to my knowledge. 

MR. CHAVEZ: Tnank you very much. 

Yea, air. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there any further 

que1tions? 

MS. THOMPSON: I would like to ask a coupl 

of them. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms • Thompson? 

BY MS. THOMPSON 

Q Sir, do you own any otner property 

besides a homestead? 

A I have three small rent houses in Freer and ~ne 

small rent house in Houston and one small little old 

place up hare on the river. 

Q But you don't own any land just itself? 

A No, ma• ... 
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MS. THOMPSON: Thank you. 

A Do you mean ranch land and that sort of thing? 

Q Yes, sir. 

A No, ma'am. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney? 

6 BY MR.. MALONEY 

7 Q Mr. Bercawi in your capacity as attorney for 

8 the county in the collection of delinquent taxes, did 

9 you ever have occasion to try to collect any delinquent 

10 taxes from Clinton Manges? 

II A Yes. I had several conversations with Mr. 

12 Manges in regard to the taxes and they were trying to 

13 get settled. 

14 What was the result of that? 

15 A They haven't been paid. 

16 Q They still have not been paid? Can you tell us 

17 a little bit more about that? 

18 A As of May 20, 1975, the Duval County Ranch 

19 Company owed Duval County, the Water District Vocational 

20 School $308,757.65. 

21 Q What period was that? 

22 A That was unpaid in May. 

23 Q What period does that cover? 

A 1972, '73, '74. 

25 Q What efforts have been paid to collect those 
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taxes? 

A I made several visits to San Diego with Mr. 

\ ! 

I 
Manges in regard to his taxes and try to get them cleared 

~ I up. 

Q Has a lawsuit been filed? 

6 A No, sir, not yet. 

; Q Why not? 

s A Well, I think-- I don't know, Mr. Maloney, 

~ obviously. The pure and simple reason is it was being 

10 discussed as of the other day when I found out my con-

11 tract was not on the agenda. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

li 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

Row long has that suit been in your office? 

I didn 1 t get your question. 

How long has that lawsuit been in your office? 

When was it referred to you? 

A Well, of course, as I say, there were some 

discussions with the Commissioners Court trying to 

settle the taxes over a period of time, and some time 

last month there were some discuasiona about probably 

the necessity of filing a suit over the taxes. 

Q The taxea have been delinquent how long? 

A Three yeara. And, as 1 aay, I made several 

tripa with Mr. Manses to try to settle his taxea. 

Q What is the point in trying to settle the taxea 

Why didn't you just file a lawsuit? 
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four years. 

Q But you filed how many? 

A Well, whoever is on the tax roll. 

A Whoever is on the tax roll. I blanket it 

and when they get out, well, then it's--you know, you 

collect your taxes in many ways, Mr. Nabers. 

Q 

A 

Yea, air. 

Mostly the easiest and best is personal contact 

10 with the bigger tax paying people, tax payers. Of 

II 

13 

course, our primary tax payers are oil companies, and 

of course they take their discounts. So we don't ever 

have much problem ln thla line, and those are the big 

14 aaounts of money that are on the tax rolla. They get a 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

3 per cent in October, 2 in November, l in December, 

and they all take their l per cent, and they're the blg 

taz payers. 

Q But you haven't had to do a lot of litlgetlon 

in regards to the dellnquen~ taxes? 

A OVer the years that I've had the contract with 

them, when I've had it, we, like I say, I'll try about 

every three or four years. One of the probleas you're 

faced with is, of course, you've go~, as I've said 

before, you •ve got a lot of. little:· 120 and 240 end 200 

acre people that are tryina to run elaht cows and can't 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 
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pay their grocery bill, you kno~. 

Q lea, alr. I underatand that. It ia just 

&eneral information I was interested in. 

A Yea. r try to send statements every year. 

Was there ao•ething elae7 

Q You might finiah your statement. 

A I try to send acatementa every year to 

everybody on the delinquent roll. 

Q To all the dellnquentaT 

A Yea. And then file auita periodically. Some 

of tbeae can grow fairly large, not too big in one year, 

but in three or four years they can get pretty bi&. 

Q Could you tell the Coamittee why the School 

Board waa--wbich superintendent wee indicted and 

A Tbe one in Freer. 

Q What ebout the attorney, Comataaioaar Orr, from 

Bouaton? Wby did you ell go that tar to get an attorney? 

A I didn't bAve anytbin& to do w1tb it. 

Q Who b1red the attorney? 

A He did. 

Q Who did? 

A Kr. Powell. 

Q The acbool auper1ntendent hired bt.? 

A Yea, air. 
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I 

Q All right. I 
I 

A This was how he became acquainted to us as 
I 

being a tax attorney. 

Q Sir? 

A This is how he got hired by us when we were--

if you're trying to find out how we got in contact with 
i 

Orr was through the handling of the cases that he handled i, 

I 
there we knew him to be a good tax attorney. 

Q Orr is a good tax attorney? 

A Yea, sir. 

Q I would think you might need a good criminal 

defenae lawyer. 

A Pardon? 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
Q I said I would think you'd need a good criminal I 

15 defenae lawyer if--

16 A That's what I'm talking about. IRS criminal, 

17 I mean, you know-

18 Q I a that what be is? 

19 A He handles IRS type stuff. Yes. 

Q I lee. Okay. I 1m not familiar. 

21 A That 1a where I became familiar with him. 

22 Q But the superintendent is the one that engaged 

23 him and the school board ratified by paying the bills? 

24 A No, sir. We didn't pay anything on that. 

25 CHAIRMAN HALE: Was there more than one 
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attorney involved in this $60.000 fee? 

A Yes, air. Mr. Orr and Mr. Foster got Judge 

3 1 Sharp in Brownsville to go with us to Judge Garza's 

4 court in regards to these two different ap,earances we 

made down there. Yes. sir, they hired them. 

6 BY CHAIRMAW ~LE 

7 Q 

8 A 

9 Q 

10 A 

So there were three lawyers involved? 

Yes, air. 

Mr. Orr, Mr. Foster and Mr. Sharp? 

Yea, air. All we did was pay Judse Sharp's 

11 expenses. I assume they paid his fees. 
I 

12 Q Were any of these attorneys under any obligatio~ 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

to perform any legal services for anyone other than the I 

School Board as part of the consideration for the 

$60,000 fee? 

A No, sir. Mot to my knowledge. 

Q Had the School Board during the time you were 

on it ever paid any legal fees to any lawyera for 

services other than those rendered to the School Board? 

A No, sir. Not to my knowledge. Like I say, 

we normally have retained attorneys throush the yeara, 

and whenever I have served as President, or whenever I 

needed some legal advice myself I have always called Mr. 

Prank B. Lloyd in Alice. And when I went back as 

President I hired him at a very small retainer just to 

I 
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1 • answer queations like that, and once in a while write 

I' 

I 
I: 

(, 'I 

I: 
I 

: I 
I 

me a letter in case I needed aomething confirmed. 

Q Who determined the amount of the attorneys 

feea that were to be paid in thia case? 

A I was not a party to that, Mr. Hale. I have 

no idea. I aaaume the attorneys did. 

Q Who made the contact with the attorneys 

initially to employ them to represent the School Board? 

A Like I say, I believe I did. I wouldn't even 

10 swear to that, but I'm sure I did. 

II Q Who made the final agreement with them to 

12 repreeent the School Board? 

I J 

14 

I~ 

16 

18 

A I vent with them to the Valley twice, if this 

is what you're asking, because I was under subpoena. 

So I a11ume--we discussed them that night at the board 

meeting when the board agreed to hire the attorneys to 

repreaent the board. 

Q Was there a motion put in the minutes of the 

19 school board to eaploy the attorneys? 

20 Yea, sir. 

21 Q Was there nothing said about fees in that 

22 motioD7 

23 

15 

A I do not recall. But I'm sure there wasn't 

because 1 didn't know it until aoae time later, aDd if 

it would have been in the Minutes I would have aeen it 

i 
i 
I 
I 
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1 • II the next time. I 

I 
I; 

! ' 
Q Was there any diecussion of feea at i 

the : hool 

3 I Board meeting? 

A No, sir. 
I 

5 I Q Were all seven members of the School Board 

6 I present at that meeting? 

7 A Yes, sir. 

8 Q Was it a unanimous vote to employ these 

9 attorneys? 

10 Yes, sir. 

II Q nere all seven members of the School Board 

12 present when the bill for $60 1 000 waa authorized to be 

13 paid? 

14 A I wa1 not preaent and do not know who ,.. 

15 pre1ent. There was no Board meetina for that payment 

16 that I kaow of. 

17 Q You .. aa the $60,000? 

18 A I thiak if it wa1 aade at a Board meetiag I 

19 would have Jaaowa about it. 

20 Q Was a $60,000 paymea~ made out of school funds 

21 without autborizatioa of the School Board? 

22 I a11u.e, as' I say ia retrospect, I assume 

23 that we--they authorized--we diacuaeed autho•iziag the 

24 hlriag of lawyer• to protect our interests a• a Board, 

25 and thea they eent u1 a bill and 10mebody paid it, 

J,...,!lrKM/l.I\.J OI="D~OTIP..Ir CC"0\/1-r-
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Q Where are the minutes of the Benavides 

School Board! Let me see that book. 

In all these minutes here, Mr. Bercaw, there 

is page after page of itemized achool disbursements. 

Here is one for $8.30, one for $8.10, one for $4.20, 

6 itemized by who it's disbursed to, the amount and the 

check number. Those are all itemized in the minutes. 

s Let me finish my ~uestion. 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

Those are all itemized in the minutes of the 

11 Board of Trustees of the Benavides Independent School 

12 District and approved by a motion made at a subsequent 

13 school board meeting. Is that right? 

14 

I~ 

16 

17 

18 

A 

Q 

11anner? 

A 

Q 

Yea. That's right. 

Now, waa the $60,000 item treated in that same 

No, sir. 

How was it handled? 

19 A It was handled, as I said, as 1 found out later 

20 through the salary fuaA instead of the maintenance fund. 

21 Q You don't approve salaries at the School 

22 Board meetings? 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

No, air. 

Who aete the salaries for the employees of the 

25 Benavidel Independent School District if the School Board 
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doesn't do it? 

A Tbe auper1nteadents end the priac1pal~ aDd 

the people vbo do the hiriaa of the personnel. 

4 Q Aud that'• D~t ratified at a aeetias of the 

School Board! 

6 A The only tbi~ ve r~tify, of cour1e, are 

1 coatracta for teacher&. You will see in tba aiaute111 

8 there where ve ratified the teachers for whatever 

9 1eare you've soc there. 

10 Q Aad you perait the superintendent to disburse 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

$60,000 without ever coatq to tbe School Board aDd .. ,. .... he'• aotaa to apead $60,000 of the tax payer•' 

Miley? 

A I didD 1 t kaow 1t, Mr. Hale, it that' • )'0\lr 

quaattoa. I did not know it waa done in that raaanar. 

Q Did the School Board llaow it? Dld tile ~reot 

tbe loard knew tt? 

t didn't kaow lt 1 aad I don't know wbo did. 

Whea did you f1ad out? 

of 

20 

A 

Q 

A AI I wa• ••ylaa, it ••• aubaequeat end I caa't 

21 r....._r, but it waa qulte a 'bit later. Tbe oaly t:bS.q 

22 that appeared aa you're quotiDS in tboae thinaa were 

23 the espeDaea of .Judae Sheep aatd..._ad then ho ude a 

24 refuad of aoae espeatae mooay. ~hoae were 1D the alautes, 

25 pa1d wt of tha •iatenaaoe. 



Q I~'s your statement then, to the best of your 

1 knowledse, that this $60,000 was never approved by the 
I 

3 1 Sobool Board? 

A Rot that amount at a School Board meeting. 

No, sir, it was never done. The hiring of the lawyers 

6 vaa. When tbe bills were presented, I do not know. 

i I don't even know what the date of the check was. I 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

have never seen it, I've heard about it but I've never 

seen it. 

Q Would you consider each member of tbe School 

Board equally responsible for the activities that go on 

in the school district? 

A Certainly. I would assume so. A School Board 

14 can't function without a quorum present. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

15 

Q If there was any misconduct involved in the 

payment of $60,000 in attorneys' fees, would you say 

that that misconduct would fall equally on all seven of 

tbe School Board members? 

Let's put it this way. Tbla wascthe way I 

felt. If I was guilty of misconduct then all seven 

aea~era were or ehould have been guilty of it. 

Q tf anyone was aotng to be removed for that 

purpo•e then all seven of them should have been removed? 

A Yea. That's rtaht. That's right, sir. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: ~re there any other 
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I! questions? 
'I 

I: , : Mr. Laney? 
I' 

3 ! BY MR. LANEY 

i 
Q You said you have heard of this check later, an~ 

you said before that each check had to have t~~ea 

6 signatures. OUt of this salary fund does each check 

7 have to have three signatures? 

8 A Yes, sir. I do not know whose names are on 

9 the check. I know Mr. Couling's had to have been on it. 

10 I know Mr. Ross would have had to have been on it if it 

11 waa paid in Benavides, and one of the officers of the 

u Board. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Q But you don't know whether the names that 

algned the check were ones that stayed on the Board or 

the ones that were kicked off? 

A No, air, I don't. Well, there had to be two. 

Two of thea had to be kicked off for the pure and simple 

reason the Secretary and Vice President were kicked off 

at the aame tlae I waa. 

Q The Secretary had to sign the check, the 

21 President had to sign the check and then any other meaber 

22 of-

23 A No, air. One officer and then the auperinten-

24 dent of whatever school, you know, Benavides or rreer, 

25 and then Mr. Cooling aa collector. The minutes reflect--
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12 

13 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Berea" - direct 3 
Q Okay. But two members of the Board are 

actually all it has, plus the superintendent? 

A One member of the Board, officer, the 

superintendent of either the schools in Freer or the 
schools in Benavides, and Mr. Couling. You' 11 find 
that in these minutes in the nineteenth meeting when 

they reorganized, Mr. Hale 1 if you want to read and 

Mr. Laney read how the checks are authorized to be 

signed, that you were asking me about a while ago, 

about whether the reaignations took place and then 

reorganized. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Yes, sir, I remember. 

2~2 

let 

Q In other words, either the President of the 

School Board or the Secretary of the School Board had to 

alan the checka? 

A Or the Vice President. 

Q Or the Vice Preaident. One of the officers? 

A Yea. 

CHAIRMAR HALE: Mr. Donaldson? 

BY Jm. DORALDSON 

Q You said earlier that you bad indicated that 

someone from the Judicial Qualifications Commission had 

contacted you? 

A 

Q 

No, sir. I said I bad talked to them. 

You talked to them? 

I 
: 
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J. Yes, sir. 

Q Did you contact them? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Who did you talk to? 

A Mr . Pitkin. 

6 Q When? 

7 A I don't remember what date it was. It wasn't 

s very long ago. 

9 Q Durins the last thirty days? 

10 A Oh, yes. 

11 Q Did they reveal to you whether or not they had 

12 looked into this matter at all? 

13 A He aaid their Board waa not meeting until 

14 I think it '• July. 

I~ Q I wonder when they met last. Do you have any 

16 idea? 

n A I have no idea. 

1s Q I don't want to keep going over this, but you 

19 indicated that you all felt it neceaaary to h1re an 

20 attorney when you were served with aubpoanas from the 

21 Internal Revenue Service? 

22 A Yea • air. 

23 Q were you served in your capacity as a School 

21 Board aaaber? 

25 A I was aerved as President of the Board, a 
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subpoena ducps tecum for which no records did I actually 

have. They are all in Benavides. 

Q Now, tan't Mr. Orr also Mr. Couling's lawyer? 

A Yes. He sure is. 

Q I wonder when he was retained to represent 

Mr. CouUng? 

A I have no idea. I have no idea. 

Q Do you suppose that any of that $60,000 

might be for that? 

A I would not think so. 

Q I have done a limited amount of practice in 

representing clients with Internal Revenue Service, 

auditing them and that kind of thing, and I'm a little 

bit surprised that on the service of these subpoenas 

you all felt that the gravity of the situation was such 

that you needed to lay out thie kind of money.for an 

attorney right at that poinQ. 

A It 1 a kind of like Mr. Cleofas Gonsalez said 

the other niaht. They were all over everywhere, and we 

didn't know what they were lookla& for or where they 

were aolna or what they wanted. 

Q You were, though, aware of what your conduct 

had been as President of the Board. 

A You bet. You bet. 

Q Did you have concern? 
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A No, sir. Personally? 

Q Peraonally. 

A No, sir. I b4ve none now. 

Q What can the Internal Revenue Service do to 

the Board as a Board? 

A I don't know. 

Q Well, you're an attorney. 

A I'm not a tax attorney, Mr. Donaldson. I have 

no idea what they can do to the Board. 

Q If they're going to do something to the Board 

collectively, they can't just say "The Board is going to 

jail." They are going to have to do it against 

iad ividuah. 

A Well, let me give you a little background on 

how this developed. This Internal Revenue agent ~ame to 

me and asked me if he could see the school recorda, and 

I said, ''Yea." They went down there and they photo-

stated whatever records they were interested in. The 

only request that I asked them to do was whatever he 

took a picture of, make two. And then he comes back and 

subpoenas the recorda to the Grand Jury in Brownsville. 

So, again, we don't know where we are or what we're 

doina, or where we're going. 

Q At that time waa Mr. Couliag still the tax 

aaaeaaor-collector? 



A Yes, sir. 

Q Were the subpoenas issued to all members of 

the Board or just to the Freer group? 

A No. They were to me, Mr. Couling-

Q The officers? 

6 A No, there were three. The Secretary. 

7 Q Then the whole Board wasn't subpoenaed? 

8 A No, sir. We were subpoenaed in our capacities 

9 with the Board. 

10 MR. DONALDSON: That's all I have, Mr. 

11 Chairmall. 

12 CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Weddington? 

13 BY MS. WEDDINGTON 

14 Q Mr. Couling was subpoenaed, but he has no· 

15 official conQection with the Board. Is that right? 

16 A That's right. 

17 Q He is the tax assessor-collector for the 

18 Board. but does the Board owe a responsibility to 

19 represent him in legal proceedings that might be 

20 conducted? 

21 A Personally? 

22 Q Well. in what capacitywaa he subpoenaed? 

23 A As the person who actually had the phyaical 

24 records. 

25 Q so his capacity was just one that be had the 
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recorda, and that vaa all? I mean aa far aa the subpoena 

vaa concerned? 

A Ta. collector. Yea. 

Q Okay. At the same t1ae, d1d he have Mr. Orr 

ae an attorney at that t1me personally? 

Q 

check, 

Q 

I believe he did, Ms. Weddington. 

He vaa ona of the people that aigned that 

riaht, as tax aaaesaor-collector? 

Yea. It would have been necessary. 

Then Mr. Roaa aa superintendent of Freer 

11 eiaaed that check? 

leaavidea. 

Q Of Benavidea aigaed that check. 

14 I aeeuae. 

I~ Q Did be have Mr. Orr aa an attorney, by aay 

16 cbaaceT 

~~ Ro, aa'aa. Rot to my knowledge. 

18 Q But the auperiateadeat at Freer did have Mr. 

19 Orr ae aa attorney 1a connection with hie own leaal 

m probleal with the IRS. I• that correct? 

11 But tbie had already been eettled at that tiae, 

22 •• I recall. I'• aot eure but I believe they bad already 

23 bad their plea baraaiaina aad wound it up. And they had 

their own contract, I uaderataad. 

Q One other unidentified officer of the School 
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Board would have signed the check, but you don't know 

who that wasT 

A Ro. ma'am. 

Q And the School Board officer who signed the 

check waa one that was not subpoenaed. Is that correct? ' 

A We were subpoenaed in our capacity as on--

Q You were aubpoanaed, Couling was subpoenaed, 

8 and who was the other person subpoenaed? 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A I believe it was Schuenemann. 

Q He was Secretary of the Board? 

A He laid that he had nothing, and I agreed 

to go down there. 

Q So Schuenemann did not respond to the subpoena? 

A That's right, 

Q Do you know if he was the other person that 

aianed that check? 

A 

Q 

A 

lot ma'am, I do not know, 

Do you know who the check was made out to? 

Well, I aeaume from what--like I say, I've 

never seen the chee~a. 

Q Yes. 

A I've heard about them. But I asauae they were 

made directly to the attorneys. 

Q And that would be Mr. Orr or to--

A And Mr. Foeter. 
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'l I! 
Q Ar~ they in the same firm? 

I 
I 

5 I 

4 I 
I 

5 

6 

A 

Q 

would you? 

A 

Q 

7 would you? 

8 A 

No. Mr. Foster is in San Diego and Mr.-­

You wouldn't make a check to both of them, 

Pardon? 

You wouldn't make a check to both of them then, 

Make separate checks. There's one for one 

9 amount and ona for another and the total was $60,000. 

10 

II 

12 

13 far. 

14 

15 

Q 

" 
Q 

Q 

There va1 more than one check involved then? 

That's my understanding. 

I'm lorry. We have talked about the check so 

Two checks. Yes, there were two checks. 

Two checks. Do you know how much each of 

16 those checks were for, approximately? Have you heard 

17 ruaora about that? 

18 I just remember the totala. 

19 Q Okay. So you ware the only per1on of those 

zo three vbo responded to the subpoena? 

21 A xo. Mr. Couling went. 

22 Q You and Mr. CouLinc vent down there? 

23 " Yea. 

24 Q And then you mentioned a while ago all the 

tlu lllvolved in preparing the brief. What was the 
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brief about? 

I 

3 I 

I 
I 

A In the first place, the first subpoena said 

lfc we just gave the IRS these recorda we wouldn't 

even have to go to the Grand Jury down there. 

I 

thai 

5 I Q And did you do that? 
I 

6 

7 

8 

A 

Q 

A 

Are you an attorney? 

Yea, I am. 

Then you know that public recorda cannot be 

9 taken in that manner. And I informed this young man 

10 of the IRS of this fact. But we had to answer it. 

II Q Yea. 

12 A And Judse Garza didn't even go into chambers. 

13 Be juat threw it out riabt there and then, of course, 

14 we had to go beck the second time because then they did 

15 lt. in the correct manner to brina it to the Grand Jury. 

16 Q At that time did you file a brief? 

17 A Yea, ma'am, they filed it. 

18 Q When was the brief filed? 

19 A I assume ln both of them. Aaaln, I wasn't 

20 aetiq ae an attorney in thls case. 

21 q But ae an attorney you weren't even lntereeted 

22 eaouah to look over the papers that were filed on your 

23 behalf? 

24 I'm sura I dld. 

25 q lut you don't remember anythtna about thea? 

I 
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A I don't have them. 

Q I mean I've just been sued once, but I 

3 read everything about it. 

.j That was a unique experience to me. That waa 

the firlt time I ever aat on the other side of the 

6 table. Now I know how my clients feel, you know. 

7 Q Butyou didn't read the document, or you don't 

8 remember much about them or--

9 You know, they worked in the law library. 

10 Aaain, an attorney who haa himself for a client has a 

11 fool for a client. 

12 Q Even a1 a client you might read what is in it. 

13 A I'm sure I read the pleadinas at aome time or 
\ 

14 other before or after they vera filed or after it waa 

15 over with, I don't remember, but I'm sure I read them. 

16 Q Were there reports made to the School Board 

17 on the proareaa of the lit1aation? 

18 A Oh, yea. 

19 Q Would those be reflected in the minutes of the 

20 School Board? 

21 A I don't know. I can't say. I ju1t don't 

22 remember. I reported the ultimate end of the thin& was 

23 that we brouaht the recorda on back to San Dieao, I mean 

24 to Benavldea without any--

25 Q Would there be any reflection in the minutes of 



6 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Bercaw - direct 3 252 
School Board as to papers or documents that were filed 

by the attorneys and therefore perhaps some indication 

of the amount of time that waa involved? 

A I'm sure there is nothing there like that. 

There would be no reason for that. 

Q You do have copies personally of the papers 

that were filed in your behalf? 

A No, ma'am. 

Q You don't have copies of them? 

A No, ma'am. 

Q ·fho haa'c:opiea of thea? 

A The attorney a. 

Q Would you be willing to get copies of those 

papera from the attorneys and just subait them to us? 

A 

Q 

A 

Why. I sure would. I have no objection. 

I would just be interested in looking at thea. 

Must be pretty good briefs because Judge Garza 

was real strong on that. 

Q Did Judge Garza have any lpec1al connections 

with the judge that heard the case? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Judae Garza was the one that heard it. 

Was Judge Sharp involved in the case? 

Yes, u'am. 

Did be have any special connection with Judge 

2s Qaraa? 
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A Let's put it this way. At one time I think he 

, . was his law partner. 
! • 

.l I Q Do you know whether that had anything to do 

with the fact that Judge--

' 
5 j A No. ma'am. I think Judge Garza ruled with the 

6 law • the way I understand it. 

7 

10 

II 

ll 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Q Do you think that had anything to do with the 

reason Judge Sharp was hired? 

A That, I don't know. I didn't hire Judge Sharp. 

Q 

A 

You'just paid his fee. 

Pardon? 

MS. WEDDINGTON: Pass the witness. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney? 

MR. MALONEY: Just two brief questions. 

It is getting very late. 

BY MR. MALONEY 

Q In relation to your job in collectiDg the 

18 delinquent taxes--

19 Ml. KASTER: Mr. Chairman. we've got a 

20 staff sitting around here and I just wondered how long 

21 we intend to go. It's quarter of two. 

22 CHAIRMAN HALE: I hope not much longer, 

23 Mr. Kaster. 

Q In your collecting delinquent taxes, may I 

25 ask if Archer Parr is one of the delinquent tax payers? 
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A Mr. Maloney, I ~ave laqies in San Diego w~o 

work from the tax rolls. The tax rolls are in San 

Diego, and I believe Archer Parr is on the delinquent 

rolls. Yes, sir. 

Q May I ask if you are one of those? 

A No, sir. 

Q Were you one? 

A No • sir. 

Q Not at any time this year were you delinquent 

in your own taxes? 

A I ~ve never owed any 4elinquent taxes at any 

place I've ever owned any property. 

MR. MALONEY: Thank you. 

BY CHAIRMAN HALE 

Q You submitted a tax statement here of what 

purports to be one written out in handwriting, showing 

a delinquent tax of $308,757.65 for the Duval County 

Ranch, Freer, Texas. Does that include the taxes due 

to t~e Benavides Independent School District also? 

A No • sir. 

Q Have you any idea w~at the tax bill would be 

to the Benavides Independent School District on that 

same property? 

A I do not know the amounts. He made a partial 

payment at the same time he started to make a payment in 
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San Diego. 

Q Are the school district taxes normally con-

siderably higher than the state and county taxes? 

A No, sir. Not considerably higher. In fact, 

I don't know how it was last year. They usually run 

about fairly close to the same. 

Q You mean the state and county taxes in Duval 

County are as high as the school taxes? 

A They usually run about the same. But I think 

by the time you add the Water District and everything 

else. If. Y\_u're asking about just state and cour)ty, no, 

but if you're asking about the total tax thing, why, 

as to the school it's about the same. 

Q Do you know whether or not the taxes on the 

Duval County Ranch were delinquent to the Benavides 

Independent School District for the same years as 

covered by this etateaent? 

A I'm certain they are, but I'm not absolutely 

certain. 

Q And if so, and if they were about the same, 

that would have been roughly $300,000 delinquent to the 

Benavides Independent School District in addition to 

this? 

A I can only state that Mr. Couling called me 

one day back whenever these checks came in and said he 
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I had gotten a cbeck from tbe Duval County Ranch COmpany 
I I 
I I for $34,000, and I said, 'bees that cover the taxes?" I' 

3 
II 

And he said, aa• I should write hin a partial payment, 

4 and that's what we did. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there any other 

6 questions of this witness? 

; (No response.) 

8 CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, what was 

9 your motion a minute ago or your suggestion about this 

10 witness? Something about getting some records? 

11 A That was the auditor, I think. 

12 CHAIRMAN HALE: The auditor? 

13 MR. CANALES: That was the auditor, 

14 Mr. Hinojosa. The Committee, you stated that you wanted 

15 

16 

I 7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

an inventory of the heavy equipment, et cetera, that he 

had there and I can't remember what the other point was. 

CHAIRMAN KALE: Rental cars• all 

vehicles, the inventory of the rental vehicles and 

an inventory of all county-owned vehicles. 

Ml. CANALES: And I was suggesting it 

ao that he could go set them, that we relieve him from 

the subpoena or give him another subpoena to go bring 

them or whatever it takes. 

CHAIRMAN KALE: The Chair is not disposed 

25 to relieve anybody under subpoena from their oblisation 
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to stand by on this, but I would interpret it, subject 

to correction, that as long as he doesn't leave the 

State of Texas and shows up when he's supposed to here, 

he wouldn't be in violation of the subpoena. 

We've got plenty of lawyers around here. no 

any of the lawyeradiaagree with me on my interpretation? 

MR. CHAVEZ: And about seven district 

8 attorneys. 

9 CHAIRMAN HALE: The Chair will authorize 

10 him to go down there and get those records on the 

11 condition that he understands he is still under sub-

12 poena and he will be here when we need him. 

13 A May it please, Mr. Chairman, I would like to 

14 ask this: I know I am under subpoena and under the same 

15 rules, but I do have quite a few things that need to 

16 be done, and if I could be relieved to be called if you 

17 want me and when you want me, I'll make myself available 

18 imaediately. I would like to proceed with my things 

19 that I have lined up to do, because, again, being the 

zo only lawyer----and I was supposed to be in Houston even 

21 today on some buaines•--

22 CHAIIMAN HALE: I'm sure you have a lot 

23 of sympathetic ears on this Coamittee with that problem. 

24 A If I could just aaaure the Chair that if you 

25 want me and when you want me and give me just enough time 



to &•t back here from whatever I may be doing at that 

particular tiae, I'll come right back. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman. I would 

advise the Committee that the only reason Mr. Bercaw 

is under subpoena ia to protect him from being 

subpoenaed away to some other point in the State of 

258 

7 Texas and to guarantee that he would be present tonight 

8 when hie teatiaony was set. 

9 I've got cases sat that I've aot to work on--

10 CHAIRMAN HALE: Well, with the under-

11 staadina. Mr. Bercaw. that you're still under subpoena 

12 ADd-

Yee. 1 won't deny or run from the subpoena. 

14 CBAIRMAR HALl: :You will be back here when 

15 we need yoa, wky, the Chair will authorize you to ao on 

16 abeut your bud.uu. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

A I woald like to go about my normal business 

aad TueadaJ or Wednesday or Tburaday or soaethina if you 

w&Dt ... jaat call. 

CHAIRKAR HALl: It may be that we will 

21 Dever Deed you aaain. 1 don't kaow. I can't anticipate. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MI. MITCB!LL: Mr. Chairman. aay I have 

ao.e--,es, I will want him. I have several questions. 

I wonder if we could have aoae tiae that I could, out of 

fair•••• to Mr. Bercaw. that I could notify the Chair 
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when I would like to ask him several questions? 

A Mr. Mitchell, let me ask you, do you anticipate 
1t soae tlae next week? 

Q Perhaps so. I would like to do it now but 

I'• aot penaitted to. 

A I 1111 on the docket for two cases next week. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Counsel, if you will 

direct your remarks to the Chair. 

A Oh, excuse me, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Mitchell is not a 

" party to this investigation other than aa an attorney 

12 for Judse C~nUlo. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

!0 

!1 

22 

23 

24 

A I would make myself available to Mr. Mitchell 

if he will let me know so tbat, like I've got Judge 

Joba Miller and some settings that I must. I hope, 

attead to, or set myaelf excused under the subpoena. 

CBAIEMAN BALE: You only have to worry 

about aettlns a call from the Chairman or someone 

autborlzed by the Chail'un of tbil Committee in order 

for you to turD up here and you don't have to worry 

about phoae calla from anybody else as far as this 

co .. lttee 11 coacerned. 

All right. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Mitchell, on thia 

2s .. tter of your queatlons-
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MR. MITCHELL: They are in writing. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: --we have the under-

standing on that that whatever questions you wanted to 

aek any of theae witnesses you would submit to the 

Chair in writing. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: And the Chair will 

8 decide whether to ask the questions or not and in what 

9 manaer. 

10 MR. MITCHELL: I understand that, Mr. 

11 Hale. I just wanted to get aoiDe sort of time sequence 

12 Oft lt. l 
13 CHAIRMAN HALE: ts there any further buai- \ 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

15 

nesa that we need to transact tonight other than go to 

bed? 

MR. NABERS: I move we recese until 

9;30 in the morning. The House ts in session. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Until 9:30 in the morning? 

MR. NABERS: Yes, sir. The Bouse is in 

session at 9:30, isn't it? 

CHAIRMAN BALE: The Rouse le in session 

at 9:30, I believe. 

We do need to haYe a bue1ae•• •••tins of the 

Co.mtttee here to discuss some of these thiaaa. 

MaJ 1 approach the Chair please, air? 

CBAIIHAB HALl: Yea, atr. 
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A Since Monday is a holiday, is the House in 

operattont 

CHAIRMAR HALE: tea, sir. 

MS. WIDDIHCTON: Rot Monday night. 

CBAII.HAR HAL!: Why not Monday? 

Ml. LANEY: Nr. Chairman, will you 

7 entertain me for a highly prtvile8ed motion? 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I will in just a moment. 

We need to re1olve of one or two things here about it. 

Is Monday nisht the arrangement on Speaker's Night? 

I have a feeling the speaker will be glad to 

eacuae this Comaittee from attendance in order for us to I 

get oa about our bua1ne•a. We can cross that bridge when I 
we aet to it, t au•••· But the Houae will be in sesaion 

Hoaday, I'• sure of that. 

A II l.t the COM1ttee'• intention to meet on 

Satu~daya end Sundays? 

CHAIKKA• HALl: No, air. We 1 1~ not meet 

on Saturday aad Sunday. At leaat we will not hear any 

teetiaony oa Saturday• and Sunday•. 

A t'• trytna to schedule in my mind to aet to 

ay calendar. You're not gotng to meet Monday night? 

CIAIRMAR HALE: We 11, we won • t need you 

24 aoacley a:Laht. 

25 So chea I could po1albly schedule a trial 
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Tuesday morning? 

I 

j CHAIRMAN HALE: We'll accommodate you, 
1 ! Mr. Bercaw, within reasonable limitations. 

I 

A I do have a setting in Judge Miller's court. 

They called the docket for the 26th but I think Judge 

o Miller ovel:looked this Federal change for the holiday 

7 aituation. I thought it had been changed but my 

s secretary today told me the opposing counsel said he 

9 could be ready the 27th. 

10 CHAIRMAN HALE: What holiday is Monday? 

II A That ia Memorial day. They changed one of 

12 theae five free day holidays. I just don't want to get 

13 m7aelf in a position of trying to do something and then 

14 belA& wrong with you folks in trying to accommodate me. 

15 CHAIRMAN HALE : Okay • We 11, we have 

16 already lo1t our quorum, obviously. 

17 A Will you understand then that I'm available 

1s when you call? 

19 CHAIRMAN HALE: Yes, sir. That's fine. 

zo You ao abead and schedule your plans and we'll let 

21 you lr.aow and alve you ample warning. 

22 Ma. ~LON~ I move we stand in recess. 

23 until 8:00 tomorrow evening. 

CHAiaMAN HALE: Mr.~oney moves that the 

2~ co .. tttee stand recessed until 8:00 o'clock tomorrow 
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evening or such earlier time as the Chairman might call 

the Committee. Is there any objection? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Committee stands 

recessed. 

(The witness, Mr. M. K. Bercaw, was 

excused.) 

(Whereupon, at 2:00 o'clock a.m., Friday, 

May 23, 1975, the Committee recessed, to reconvene at 

8:00 o'clock p.m., May 23. 1975.) 

L_ _______________ j 
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